SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
January 12, 2017
9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, January 12, 2017,
in the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20" Street Mall — Third Floor, 344 — 20" Street, Oakland,
California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board Room)
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved,
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a
Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_id=CATRANBART
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in advance of
the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire

1n connection with:

1.

CALL TO ORDER

A. Roll Call.

B. Pledge of Allegiance.

C. Introduction of Special Guests.

CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of December 15, 2016.* Board
requested to authorize.

B. District Base Pay Schedule. * Board requested to authorize.

C. Agreement with Crown Building Maintenance Co., Inc. (dba Able
Building Maintenance Company), for Carpet Cleaning Services for the
District’s Administrative Offices and District Board Room (Agreement
No. 6M4510).* Board requested to authorize.

D. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9019, Windows, Complete Assembly, C-
Car Cab.* Board requested to authorize.

E. 2017 Special Appointments.* Board requested to ratify.

PUBLIC COMMENT — 15 Minutes

(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at
the end of the Meeting.)

ADMINISTRATION ITEMS
Director Saltzman, Chairperson

A. Title VI Civil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update.* Board requested
to authorize.

B. Disparity Study Findings and Recommendations and Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise Program Update.* Board requested to adopt.

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS
Director McPartland, Chairperson

A. Award of Contract No. 15EJ-150, 34.5 kV Cable Replacement A-Line
ANA-ACO Substations.* Board requested to authorize.

* Attachment available 20f4



B. Award of Contract No. 15LK-120, Escalator Renovation Project.* Board
requested to authorize.

C. Award of Contract No. 15L.K-130, Street Entry Canopy, Powell Street
and Civic Center Stations.* Board requested to authorize.

D. Sole Source Procurement with Wabtec Corporation for Coupler Yokes.*
Board requested to authorize. (TWO-THIRDS VOTE REQUIRED.)

E. Change Orders to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Construction of Hayward
Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, with Clark
Construction.

i.  Change Order No. 58, for Revised Motor Control Center Units and
Mechanical Equipment Power.*

ii. Change Order No. 61.1, for Switchboard “A” Secondary Electrical
Feeders Replacement in Hayward Main Shop.*

Board requested to authorize.

6. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS. AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Raburn, Chairperson

A. Five Year Lease at 101 8th Street with East Bay Asian Local
Development Corporation and Asian Health Services.* Board requested
to authorize.

B. Metropolitan Transportation Commission Regional Measure 3 Update.*
For information.

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.

8. INDEPENDENT POLICE AUDITOR’S REPORT

A. Quarterly Report of the Office of the Independent Police Auditor. For
information.

9. BOARD MATTERS

A. Proposed Revision to Rules of the Board of Directors, Section 3,
Committees, Number and Functions.* Board requested to authorize.
(President Saltzman’s request.)

B. Board Member Reports.
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.)

* Attachment available 3of4



C. Roll Call for Introductions.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.)

D. In Memoriam.
{(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

10. PUBLIC COMMENT
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

11. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION

Name of Case: Shalisa Cannon v. San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Contra Costa Superior Court Case No. C14-02315
Gov’t. Code Section: 54956.9(a)

* Attachment available

4 of 4

9



DRAFT

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,778th Meeting
December 15, 2016

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held December 15, 2016, convening at
9:06 a.m. in the Board Room, 344 20" Street, Oakland, California. Director Saltzman presided;
Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn,
Saltzman, and Simon.

Absent: None.

Director Saltzman called for a moment of silence in memory of the people who had lost their
lives in the recent Oakland Ghost Ship fire.

Director Saltzman called for Introduction of Special Guests. Director Blalock introduced and
welcomed his wife, Gail Blalock.

Director Josefowitz introduced and welcomed Ms. Denise Obrero, Program Director of the
Tenderloin Neighborhood Development Corp., the District’s 2016 Holiday Toy Drive recipient.
Ms. Obrero addressed the Board.

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of December 1, 2016 (Regular), and
December 7, 2016 (Special).

2. Declaration of November 8, 2016, Election Results.

3. Interim Appointments to the Pleasant Hill BART Station Leasing
Authority Board of Directors and the West Contra Costa Transportation
Advisory Committee.

Director Raburn made the following motions as a unit. Director McPartland seconded the
motions, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —9: Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and Simon. Noes - 0.

1. That the Minutes of the Meetings of December 1, 2016 (Regular), and
December 7, 2016 (Special), be approved.

2. That there be entered into the Minutes of the Board the official canvass of
the returns for Election Districts 1, 3, 5, 7, 9, and Measure RR as taken by
the Registrars of Voters of Alameda County, Contra Costa County, and
the City and County of San Francisco for the election of November 8,

-1-



DRAFT

2016, the elected candidates having received the highest number of votes
cast in their respective election districts based on said official canvass; and
that Measure RR, the BART Safety, Reliability, and Traffic Relief bond,
received a “Yes” vote of more than two-thirds majority of votes cast,

based on said official canvass; and that the following candidates are

hereby declared elected to the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District:

District No.  Candidate Elected
Debora Anne Allen
Rebecca Saltzman
John McPartland
Lateefah Simon
Bevan Dutfty

NoREN BV, BRUS I

3. That the Board ratify the appointments of Debora Allen to the Pleasant
Hill BART Station Leasing Authority Board of Directors and Lateefah
Simon to the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee.

Director Saltzman noted that there were no items for the Administration Committee or the
Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation Committee.

Director McPartland, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the
matter of Amendments to General Engineering Services Professional Services Agreements, for
Increased Funding, before the Board. Mr. Robert Mitroff, Chief Planning and Development
Officer, presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Raburn moved that the General
Manager be authorized to execute Change Orders to the General Engineering Services
Professional Services Agreements Nos. 6M8067, 6M8068, 6M8069, 6M8070, 6M8080, and
6M8081, in order to increase each of their not-to-exceed limits from $15,000,000.00 to
$19,000,000.00. Director Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic
vote. Ayes —9: Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and
Simon. Noes - 0.

Director Saltzman called for the General Manager’s Report. General Manager Grace Crunican
reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had participated in, outstanding

Roll Call for Introductions items, and reminded the Board of upcoming events..

Director Saltzman brought the matter of Proposed Revision to Rules of the Board of Directors,
Section 3, Committees, Number and Functions, before the Board. The item was discussed.

Director Saltzman called for Board Member Reports and Roll Call for Introductions.
Director Blalock reported he had attended the annual Moose Feed.
Director Raburn reported he had attended the Moose Feed and the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers

Authority 25™ Anniversary event in Sacramento, and that he had been involved in the Alameda
County Board of Supervisors discussions on the proposed Raiders stadium.

-



DRAFT

Director Saltzman brought the matter of Election of Officers before the Board, and opened the
floor for nominations for President. Director Josefowitz nominated Director Saltzman for
President of the Board of Directors. Nominations were closed. Director Josefowitz moved that
Director Saltzman be elected Board President for 2017. Director Blalock seconded the motion,
which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes —9: Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller,
McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and Simon. Noes - 0.

President Saltzman shared comments on the upcoming year.

President Saltzman opened the floor for nominations for Vice President. Director McPartland
nominated Director Raburn for Vice President of the Board of Directors. Nominations were
closed. Director McPartland moved that Director Raburn be elected Board Vice President for
2017. Director Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous acclamation.

Ayes —9: Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and Simon.
Noes — 0.

Director Raburn shared comments on the upcoming year.
President Saltzman called for Public Comment. No comments were received.

The Board Meeting was adjourned at 10:04 a.m. in memory of the victims of the Oakland Ghost
Ship warehouse fire. :

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL:

4= TAV 2o

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 12/28/2016 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Orlgmator/Prepared by: Diane Iwata Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary BARC

pt Human Resources

‘}N\N‘M‘h
ure/Date

§ ‘Blijh‘q (] [ ]

Approval of Salary Schedule

PURPOSE:

To approve a base pay schedule that was in effect beginning January 1, 2017, in a form prescribed by
CalPERS.

DISCUSSION:

The District contracts with the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) for
employee retirement benefits. CalPERS’ rules control whether compensation qualifies as reportable to
CalPERS for purposes of retirement calculations. In order for base compensation to be reportable for
purposes of retirement calculation, CalPERS requires that the District's pay schedules be formally
approved by the Board, including each position title and pay rate, and that they be publicly available
(e.g. the District website).

Attachment A is the base pay schedule in effect from January 1, 2017. It is important to note this table
does not make changes to compensation for any District employee. It reflects negotiated salary
changes with each union already approved by the Board through its ratification of the Collective
Bargaining Agreements (CBA’s). The pay for Board-appointees have been approved by the Board.
Staff requests that the Board approve the attached salary schedule.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact to the District for this proposed action.
ALTERNATIVES:

To not approve the action. However, failure to do so may result in CalPERS’ disqualification of pay as
“compensation earnable” for reporting and determination of District employees’ retirement benefits.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the following motion.
MOTION:

The Board approves the base pay schedule in effect January 1, 2017.



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)
As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Job Title

Barg Unit

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME)

# Job Code
1 QC208
2 000070
3 000051
4 000019
5  FC230
6 MC215
7 TC220
8  IC120
9 QcC216
10  SF145
11 000021
12 MC350
13 sC132
14 1C159
15 FC240
16 000059
17 LC118
18 FC282
19 000001
20  FC205
21 vCosl
22 000023
23 FC215
24 MC225
25 000009
26 AC400
27 TC102
28 SCO75
29 uC12s
30 SC105
31 AC300
32 MC805
33 0c115
34 0C118
35  QF135
36 AC222
37 000067
38 FC139
39 VvC055
40  VC084
41 QC112
42 QC226
43 QC225
44 VC110
45 000015

- Access ,Coordinat,or

Accounting Supervisor

Asset Coordinator

Asst Logistics Program Manager
Asst Mgr of Revenue Control
Auto & Equip Maint Supv

~ Central Maint Supv

Data Base Admlnlstrator

’DIStFICt nght of Way Surveyor

Envurpnmental Administrator

Fac/Uti Location Coordinator

Facilities Maint Supv

,lndustnal Hygnemst ;

Info Systems Security Officer
Insurance Analyst

IT Project Manager

Legal Office Supv .
Liability Risk Analyst

' ~Maint Support Administrator

Manager of Time and Labor Adm
Marketing Rep Ii

Mgr of Access Programs

Mgr of Accounting

Mgr of Auto & Equip Mamt

» Mgr of Cyredlyty/Deblt Fare Progr k
Mgr of Customer Services

Megr of Drafting & Configuratio

- Mgr of Employee/Patron Safety

Mgr of Inventory Management
Mgr of Operations Safety

Mgr of Special Projects

Mgr of Transit Vehicle Cleanin
Operations Supv

‘Operations Supv- Ops Liaison

Planner
Prlnapal Admin Analyst AFSC

Principal EGIS Analyst

Principal Financial Analyst
Principal Gov & Comm Rel Rep.

Principal Marketing Rep

~ Principal Planner

Principal Prop Devlop Officer -
Principal Right of Way Officer

Public Informa‘tion Officer

Query & Reports Spec

BART Compensation and Analytics

~ AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Lo,calk3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993

~ AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993

~ AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Loca|V3993

AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993

~ AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993

AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993
AFSCME, Local 3993

Page 1 of 16

Grade

AFE
AFG
AFF
AFG
AFH
AFE
AFF

AFH

AFG
AFH
AFF
AFE
AFG
AFF

 AFF

AFi

~ AFD

AFE
AFD
AFH
AFE

AFH

AFI
AFH
AFG
AFH
AFI

~ AFI

AFG
AFH

~AFI

AFH
AFF
AFF
AFC

ARG

AFG
AFG
AFG
AFH
AFH
AFH

AFH .

AFE
AFF

Minimum

$91,033.67

1$103,591.71

$96,513.91
$103,591.71
$110,003.73

$91,033.67

$96,513.91
$110,003.73
$103,591.71
$110,003.73
$96,513.91
$91,033.67

$103,591.71

$96,513.91
$96,513.91
$117,361.73
$84,635.04
$91,033.67

1$84,635.04

SllO 003.73
$91,033.67

1$110,003.73

$117,361.73

© $110,003.73

$103,591.71

© $110,003.73

$117,361.73

- $117,361.73

$103,591.71
$110,003.73

1$117,361.73

$110,003.73
$96,513.91
$96,513.91
$76,663.94
$103,591.71

$103,591.71
$103,591.71
$103,591.71

$110, 003 73

© $110,003.73

$110,003.73

~ $110,003.73

$91,033.67

$96,513.91

Maximum

$118,343.77
$134, 669.23
$125,468.08
$134,669.23
$143,004.84
$118,343.77
$125,468.08
$143,004.84
$134 669.23
5143 004.84
$125,468.08
$118,343.77
$134,669.23
$125,468.08
$125,468.08
$152,570.25
$110 025.56
$118,343.77

$110,025.56
1$143,004.84

$118 343.77
$143 004. 84
$152 570. 25
$143,004.84
$134,669.23
5143,004.84
$152,570.25
$152,570.25
$134,669.23

$143,004.84

$152,570.25

$143,004.84

$125,468.08

$125,468.08

599,663.12

$134,669.23

5134,669.23
$134,669.23
$134,669.23

$143,004.84

$143,004.84
$143,004.84
$143,004.84

$118,343.77

$,12;5'468108

Data as of: 1/1/2017



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)
As of January 1, 2017

BART Compensation and Analytics

Page 2 of 16

ATTACHMENT A
# JobCode  JobTitle ~ Barg Unit Grade Minimum  Maximum
46 SF120  Safety Specialist AFSCME, Local 3993 AFD $84,635.04 $110,025.56
47' 000048 k Schedullng Superwsor ; AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF - 596,513.91 $125 468.08
48 MC725 - Sect Mgr Elev/Escalator I\/lalnt AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $103,591.71 $134 669.23
49“ MC724 Sect Mgr Power & Mech Mamt , AFSCME, LQcal 3993 AFG 5103'591'71, $134 669 23
50 MC726  Sect Mgr Struct Insp & Maint ~ AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG  $103,591.71 $134,669.23
51 MC721  Sect Mgr Structures Maint AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $103,591.71 $134,669.23
52 MC720  Sect Mgr Systems Maint AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $103,591.71 $134,669.23
53 MC722 Sect Mgr Track Maint AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $103,591.71 $134,669.23
54 MC701 Spec Proj Mgr. Tracks & Struct AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $103,591.71 $134,669.23
55 AC220 Sr Admin Analyst - AFSCME * AFSCME, Local 3993 'AFD $84,635.04 $110,025.56
56 1C142 Sr Applications Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH $110,003.73 $143,004.84
57 TC222 Sr Central Maint Supv AFSCME, Local 3993 AFH  $110,003.73 $143,004.84
58  FC137 - SrEnergy Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $96,513.91 $125,468.08
59  FC138 Sr Financial Analyst - AFSCME AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE $91,033.67 $118,343.77
60 VCO051 Sr Gov & Comm Relations Rep AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE $91,033.67 $118,343.77
61 UC108 Sr Inventory Control Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFD $84,635.04 $110,025.56
62 UC190 Sr Logistics Supv AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $96,513.91 $125,468.08
63  VC082 Sr Marketing Rep ~ AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $96,513.91 $125,468.08
64  SC135 ~ Sr Operations Safety Spec AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $103 591.71 $134,669.23
65 OC155 Sr Operations Supv-Ops Liaison: AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $103,591.71 $134,669.23
66 QC145 Sr Planner AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $96,513.91 $125,468.08
67 QC210 Sr Real Estate Officer AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $96,513.91 $125,468.08
68 QC224  SrRight of Way Officer AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $96,513.91 $125,468.08
69  SC130 Sr Safety Specialist AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $96,513.91 $125,468.08
70 1C200 Sr Systems Programmer AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE $91,033.67 $118, 343.77
71  FC200 Sr Time & Labor Admin Analyst , AFSCME Local 3993 AFD $84 635.04 $110 025.56
72 000029 Sr. Marketing Rep - PT AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE $91,033.67 $118,343.77
73 000010 Supv Business Sys Oper AFSCME, Local 3993 AFI $117,361.73 $152,570.25
74 MC395 ~ System Service Supv ~ AFSCME, Local 3993 ~ AFD , $84,635.04 $110,025.56
75 1C198 Systems Programmer ~ AFSCME, Local 3993 AFF $96,513.91 $125, 468.08
76 000007 “Tech Maintenance Support Coord AFSCME, Local 3993 AFE $91,033.67 $118,343.77
77 0C190 Train Controller AFSCME, Local 3993 AFI $117,361.73 $152,570.25
78  0C150 Transportation Supervisor AFSCME, Local 3993 AFG $103, 591 71 $134,669.23
79 FC275 Treasury Analyst AFSCME, Local 3993 AFD $84,635.04 $110,025.56

Data as of: 1/1/2017



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)
As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Job Title

Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU)

# Job Code
80  CB190
81 FB141
82  0B100
83  HB10S
84 0B108
85 0B120
86 OB130
87 OBI35
88  CBl4>
89 OB145
90 1B190
91  AB135
92  CB160
93 000031
94 000044
95 OBI55
9 OB156
97 000068
98  OB160
99  OB161
100 000033
101 CB175

Admlmstratlve Technician- ATU
Budget Clerk ATU

Communications Specuallst

Employee Dev Speuahst ATU

Lost & Found Clerk

Operatlons Foreworker
Power & Support Controller
Scheduling Analyst

- SrClerk - ATU

Sr Operations Foreworker
Sr Operations Supp Syst Anlyst
Sr Secretary - ATU

Sr Transportatlon CIerk
kSr Scheduling Analyst - ATU

Sr. Transp Training Clerk

Station Agent

Station Agent - PT

T|me & Labor Admin Analyst -ATU
Train Operator

Train Operator - PT

~Transportation Adm Specialist

Transportation Clerk

BART Compensation and Analytics

Barg Unit

ATU, Local 1555

ATU, Local 1555

ATU, Local 1555 i
ATU, Local 1555‘

ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555

ATU, Local 1555

“ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555

ATU, Local 1555

ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555
ATU, Local 1555

Page 3 of 16

Grade

036
031

81
- 839

019
821

831

731
031
831
742
061
031
732
036
521
541
741

- 621

641
031
021

Minimum

$61,663.89
- $58,818.45

$84,401. 62

 $88,599.47

$58,818.45

 $76,768.85
$84,401.62
$88,599.47
$58,818.45

$84,401.62

$93,997.90

$58,818.45

$58,818.45

$97,415.34
$61,663.89
$62,900.24
$69,190.16
$81,905.82
$62,900.24

$69,190.16

$58,818.45
$58,818.45

Maximum

$72,545.82
1$69,198.27

£$99,296.08

$104, 234 83

~ $69,198.27

$90,316.51
$99,296.08
$104,234.83
$69,198.27
$99,296.08
$110,585.90
$69,198.27
$69,198.27
$114,606.34
$72,545.82
$74,000.37
$81,400.38
$96,359.95
$74,000.37
$81,400.38
$69,198.27
$69,198.27

Data as of: 1/1/2017



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

# Job Code Job Title
BART Pollce Managers Association (BPMA)

102 PD111 Police Admin Supervisor |

103 k' 0001‘11 Police Admin Supervisor Il
104 000124 ; Police Admin Supervisor Ili

105 060125 Police Admin Supervisor IV

106 000126 , Police Admin Supervisor V

107 000127  Police Admin Supervisor VI
108 PD116 Police CAD/RMS Administrator |
109 000128 Police CAD/RMS Admin |l

110 000129 Police CAD/RMS Admin Il

111 000130  Police CAD/RMS Admin IV

112 000131  Police CAD/RMS AdminV
113 000112 ' Police CAD/RMS Admin Vi

114 PD115 Pollce Civilian Supv. Admin |
115 000132 Pohce CIVlhan Supv. Admin II
116 000133 Pohce C:vman Supv. Admin Il
117 k0,00134 Police C|V|l|an Supv. Admin IV
118 000135 Police Civilian Supv. Admin V
119 0001‘36 Police Civilian Supv. Admin VI
120 PD118 Police Civilian Supv. Comm |
121 000137 ~ Police Civilian Supv. Comm II
122 000138 Police Civilian Supv. Comm Ili
123 000139 Police Civilian Supv. Comm IV
124 000113 Police Civilian Supv. Comm V
125 000140 Police Civilian Supv. Comm VI
126 PD125 Police Lieutenant |

127 000146 Police Lieutenant Il

128 000119 Police Lieutenant Ill

129 000147 ~ Police Lieutenant IV

130 000120 Police Lieutenant V

131 000121 Police Lieutenant VI

132 PD135 Police Sergeant |

133 000114 Police Sergeant Il

134 000115 ~ Police Sergeant Ill

135 0001‘1‘6 - Police Sergeant IV

136 000117 Police Sergeant V

137 000118 ~ Police Sergeant VI

138 PD138 ~ Police Support Serwces Supvl
139 000141 Pollce Support Services Supv I
140 000142 Police Support Services Supv Il
141 1000143 - ‘Police Support Servioes Supv IV
142 000144  Police Support Services Supv V
143 k 000145 ~ Police Support Services Supv VI

BART Compensation and Analytics

As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit

BART Police Managers Assn
'BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn

BART;PQ“CQ Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn

k - BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn
- BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managérs Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
- BART Police Managers Assn
~ BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn

- BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Manager’s Assn
'BART Police Managers Assn

- BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn

BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
BART PoliceManégers Assn
- BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn
BART Police Managers Assn

Page 4 of 16

Grade

CS

Cs2
cs3
Cs4

S5

cs6.

- cS

Cs2
Cs3

cs4
cs5

cs6

()
cs2

03

4
Cs5
CS6

s

Cs2
Cs3
Cs4

o5

CS6

LT2

LT3

LT4

 |_T5 : :

LT6
SGT

sG2

5G3
SG4
SG5
5G6.
cs
cs2
cs3.
cs4
cs5
Cs6

Minimum

$108,504.00

- $111,768.00

$112,836.00
$116,640.00
$118,272.00
$122,604.00
$108,504.00
$111,768.00

$112,836.00

$116,640.00

$118,272.00

$122,604.00
$108,504.00

’5111,768’.00’

$112,836.00
$116,640.00
$118,272.00
$122,604.00

1$108,504.00

$111,768.00
$112,836.00
$116,640.00

$118,272.00

$122,604.00
$130,836.00

~ $134,760.00

$136,080.00
$140,652.00
$142,620.00
$147,852.00
$106,776.00
$109,992.00
$111,048.00

 $114,792.00
$116,388.00

$120,660.00
$108,504.00

© $111,768.00

$112,836.00
$116,640.00

~ $118,272.00
$122,604.00

Maximum

$125,904.00
$129,696.00
$130,944.00
$135,360.00

4137, 256.00

$142 284, oo

1$125,904.00

$129,696.00
$130, 944.00
$135,360.00
5137256-00,
$142,284.00

$125,904.00

$129 696 00
$130 944.00
$135,360.00

$137,256.00

$142,284.00
$125,904.00
$129,696.00
$130,944.00
$135,360.00
$137,256.00
$142,284.00
$149,844.00
$154,344.00
$155,856.00
$161,088.00
$163,344.00
$169,332.00

,512’6,6‘9‘6‘,00

$130,500.00
5131 772.00
5136 200.00
$138,108.00

$143,172.00

$125,904.00
$129,696.00
$130 944.00
$135 360. oo
$137,256. 00
$142,284.00

Data as of: 1/1/2017



# Job Code

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)
As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Job Title

BART Police Officers’ Association (BPOA)

144 PEO76

145 000096

146 PE132
147 000109
148 000123
149 000110
150 CE175
151 000097
152 PE115
153 000098
154 PE130
155 000100
156 000101

157 000122

158 PE129
159 PE140
160 000099
161 PE131

162 000102
163 000103

164 000104

165 000105

166 000106
167 000107
168 000108

Community Services Officer |

~Community Serwces Officer Il
- Master Police Officer |

Master Pollce Ofﬁcer 1]
Master Pollce Offlcer III

Master Police Officer IV

Police Admin Specialist |

B Police Admln Specialist 1l

Police Dlspatcher |

Police Dispatcher Il

Police Officer |

,Po’lice Officer Il

Police Officer lll

~ Police Officer IV
- Police Offlcer in Academy

Revenue Protection Guard i
Revenue Protection Guard 1l
Sr Police Ofﬁcer [ -Int.

‘ * Sr Police Ofﬁcer Il -Int.

Sr Police Officer Il - Int.

Sr Police Ofﬁcer IV - Int.

Sr Police Ofﬁcer I - Adv.
Sr Pollce Officer Il - Adv.
Sr Pohce Ofﬁcer 1 - Adv

* Sr Police Officer IV - Adv.

BART Compensation and Analytics

Barg Unit

BART POI|ce Offlcers Assn
BART PO|IC€ Officers Assn
BART Police Officers Assn

; 'BART Pohce Ofﬁcers Assn n

BART Police Officers Assn
BART Police Ofﬂcers Assn
BART Police Officers Assn

' ; ‘BART Pohce Ofﬁcers Assn
BART Pohce Ofﬁcers Assn

BART Pohce Officers Assn
BART Pohce Ofﬁcers Assn
BART Pohce Ofﬁcers Assn

k , BART Police Oyfﬁcers Assn
BART Police Officers Assn
BART Police Officers Assn

~ BART Police Officers Assn

BART Police Officers Assn

~ BART Police Offlcers Assn

BART Police Ofﬂcers Assn
BART Police Offlcers Assn
BART Police Offlcers Assn
BART Police Officers Assn
BART Police Officers Assn
BART Police Ofﬂcers Assn

~ BART Pohce Ofﬂcers Assn

Page 5 of 16

Grade

027
029
798
799

800

801
045
046
048
049
778
779
780
781
778

098

099
788
789

790

791
792

793
794

795

Minimum Maximum

851, 833.60 $63,663.81
$53, 129. 44 $65, 255.42

$100,304.88 $100,304.88
$103,314.02 $103,314.02
$104,316.99 $104,316.99
$105,821.46 $105,821.46
$64,595.23  $75,493.81
$66,210.14  $77,380.99
$67,147.81 $81,728.61
$68,826.37  $83,771.79
$58,669.10  $93,865.82
$80,571.92  $96,681.94
$81,354.42  $97,620.43
$82,527.54  $99,028.38
$58,669.10  $93,865.82
$62,579.92  $75,092.37
$64,144.08  $76,969.57
1$95,974.74  $98,338.03
$98,853.66  $98,853.66
$99,813.58  $99,813.58
1$101,253.36 $101,253.36
$98,338.03  $98,338.03
1$101,287.89 $101,287.89
$102,271.52 $102,271.52
$103,746.45 $103,746.45

Data as of: 1/1/2017



#

Job Code

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

Job Title

As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit

Non-Represented Employees and Board Appointed Officers

169
170
171
172
173
174

175

176
177
178

179

180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195

196

197
198

199

200
201
202
203
204
205

206

207

208

209
210

211

212

213

OF050
OF075

'AF200

AF101

- CF190

000046
LF100
AF100

000086

000082
000083
000093
FF225
AF105
ZF050
ZF105

XF213

000076
ZF117
ZF118
MF822
000090
MF830
000020
FF230
000091

000061

000058
LF105
LF110
LF115
CA116
CA113
CA114
TF275
XF125

£ 000084

EFOSO
MF805

000094

SF200
000050
XF100
EF200
HF230

ACTO. Central Control
ACTO. Service Delivery

‘kAdmmlstratlve Analyst - NR k
, Administrative Secretary NR
‘Admlmstrat;veTechmaan -NR

Architect

Associate General Counsel
Asst Admin Ana!yst NR

Asst Chief Maint & Eng Offlcer

"Asst Chief Mechanical Offlcer

Asst Chief, Employee Relations
Asst Chlef Human Resources
Asst ControHer

Asst Dlstrlct Secretary

Asst General Mgr. Admin*

Asst General Mgr. Operations*

© Asst GM, Admin & Budget*

Asst GM, Human Resources*

Asst GM, External Affairs*

Asst GM, Planning & Developmnt*
Asst Rolling Stock Maint Super
Asst Super Vehicle Maint eBART
Asst Super. Systems Maint

Asst Super. Way & Facilities

Asst Treasurer

Asst. Super Operatlons eBART

’ Asst. Supt. Power & Mech. Main

Attendanyce, Program Coordinatqr

Attorney |

Attorney Il
Attorney Ill
Benefits Assistant 1 - PT

; kBenefits Asst |

Benefits Asst Il

Central Veh Trouble Desk Super
Chief Informatlon Officer

‘Chlef Labor Relations Offcr
Chief Maint & Engineer Officer
Chlef Mechanical Officer

,Chlef Op Officer eBART/OAC

Chlef SafetyOfflce,r

- Chief Transit Sys Dev Officer

Chief Transportation Officer
Civil Engineer
Civil Rights Officer |

BART Compensation and Analytics

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non—Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees '

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

~ Non-Represented Employees

~ Non-Represented Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non—Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non~Repkresented Employees ,
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non—Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Nqn-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Page 6 of 16

Grade

N11
N11
NO4
071
036
NO5
N13
NO1
N12
N12

~ N10

N10
N13
NO8
N14
N14

 N14

N14
N14
N14
NO9
NO9
N10
N10
N13

NO9

N10
NO6
NO6

NO9

NIO
020
021
031
N11
N14

N13

N14
N13
N13
N12
N13
N13
NO5
NO2

Minimum

$116,749.40

$116,749.40

$75,258.09
$58,863.38

$61,143.06

$79,020.35
$135,152.38
$61,913.29
$122,588.66
$122,588.66
$111,189.47
$111,189.47
$135,152.38
$100,851.84
$156,452.48
$156,452.48
$156,452.48
$156,452.48

$156,452.48
$156,452.48
£ $105,894.61

$105,894.61

$111,189.47
$111,189.47

$135,152.38
$105,894.61

1$111,189.47

$87,120. 03
$87,120.03

$105,894.61
1$111,189.47

$57,368.48
$52,200.30
$58,339.22
$116,749.40
$156,452.48
$135,152.38
$156,452.48

~ $135152.38

$135,152.38
$122,588.66
$135,152.38
$135,152.38
$7902035
56&26023

Maximum

$180,964.53
$18096453
$116,651.17

- $69,817.49

$72,545.82
$122,483.33
$20&48856

$95,967.65

$190,013.37
$19001337
$17234532
$172,345.32
$209,488.56
$156,322.31
$242,505.03
$242,505.03
$242,505.03
$242,505.03
$242,505.03

$242,505.03

$164,139.13
$164,139.13
317234532
$17z34532
$20948856

1$164,139.13

$172,345.32
$135,037.58
$13503758
$164,139.13
$17234532
568,004.35
$61,869.18
$69,198.27

1$180,964.53

$242,505.03
$209,488.56
$242,505.03
$209,488.56
$209,488.56
$190,013.37
$209,488.56
$209,488.56
$122,483.33
510580586

Data as of: 1/1/2017



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

# Job Code Job Title

214 HF231 Civil Rights Officer Il

215 HF205 Civil Rights Tech

216 CF100 Clerk - NR/PT

21:7k VF101 Communlcatlons Officer

218 000074 Community Outreach Specialist
219 EF102 Computer Systems Engineer
220 EF205 Construction Engineer

221 UF221 Contract Specialist |

222 UF222  Contract Specialist |l

223 UF223  Contract Specialist Ill

24 XF105 Controller-Treasurer

225 000071 Cyber Security Architect

226 000072 - Cyber Security Engineer

227 FF090 Dept Manager, Financial Sves
228 XF142 Dept Mgr Communication

229 QF101 Dept Mgr Customer Access
230 XF117 Dept Mgr Customer Service
231 XF123 Dept Mgr Gov't & Comm Rel
232 XF120 - Dept Mgr Human Resources
233 XF126 Dept Mgr Internal Audit

234 000004 Dept Mgr Labor Relations

235 XF132 Dept Mgr Marketing & Research
236 XF115 Dept.Mgr Office of Civil Right
237 FF095 Dept Mgr Operating Budgets
238 XF133 Dept Mgr Operations Liaisons
239 - XF0O40 Dept Mgr Operations Planning
240 XF065 Dept Mgr Ops Training & Dev
241 XF103 - Dept Mgr Perf & Learning

242 XF128 Dept Mgr Planning

243 ‘XkF135 ~ Dept Mgr Procurement

244 000027 Dept Mgr Property Development
245 EF111 ‘Dept Mgr Rail Veh Capital Prog
246 XF106 Dept Mgr Risk Management
247 AF115 Deputy Asst District Secretary
248 Z7F111 Deputy Executive Manager

249 ZF110 Deputy General Mgr*

250 000028 - Deputy Managing Dir., Cap Corr
251 000043 Deputy Police Chief

252 EF060 District Architect

253 XF150 District Secretary

254 MF410 Division Mgr. Malnt Support ;
255 HF108 Drug Testlng Coordlnator

256 EF215 ~ Electrical Engineer

257 EF110 Electromcs & Comm Engmeer
258 VF100 Employee Comkmumckatlon Manager
259 HF107 o Employee Services Rep

BART Compensation and Analytics

As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit
Non-Represented Employees
- Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees
- Non-Represented Employees
Board Appointed Officer
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
‘Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non—Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
‘Non-Represented Employees
- Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
‘Non-Represented Employees
Board Appointed Officer

» , Non-Represented Empyloyees '

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
‘Non-Represented Employees

Page 7 of 16

Grade
NO4
036
010

- No

NO8
NO5
NO5
NO2
NO3

NO5

cT
NO8
NO7
N12
N12

N11

N11
N1i1

N12

N12
N12
N12
N12
N12
N12

N13

N12

N12
N12

N12

12

N10
NO7
N13

N14

N12

N13

N11
DS

N10
NO4
NO5
NOS

~ No8

NO3

Minimum
$75,258.09
$61,143.06
$50,168.98
$105,894.61
$100,851.84
$79,020.35
$79,020.35

$68,260.23

$71 673 37
$79, 020.35
$241 773 65

$100,851.84
£ $91,475.20

$122,588.66

© $122,588.66
~ $116,749.40

$116,749.40

- 5116,749.40

$122,588.66
$122,588.66

1$122,588.66

$122,588.66
$122,588.66
$122,588.66
$122,588.66

$122,588.66
- $135,152.38

$122,588.66
$122,588.66
$122,588.66
$122,588.66

$122,588.66
$111,189.47

$91,475.20
$135,152.38
$156,452.48

1$122,588.66

$135,152.38
$116,749.40
$190,345.84
$111,189.47
575,258.09
$79,020.35
$79,020.35
$100,851.84

$71, 673 37

Maximum
$116,651.17
$72 545.82
$59, 323 26
$164 139.13
$156 322.31
$122,483.33

$122,483.33
1$105,805.86

$111,095.97
$122,483.33
$241,773.65
$156, 322.31
$141, 788 10
$190,013.37
$190,013.37

1$180,964.53

$180,964.53

$180,964.53

$190,013.37
$190,013.37

$190,013.37

$190,013.37
$190,013.37
$190,013.37
$190,013.37
$190,013.37

1$209,488.56

$190 013.37
$190 013.37
$190, 013. 37

1$190,013.37

$190,013.37
$172 345.32
$141,788.1O
$209,488.56
$242,505.03
$190,013.37
$209 488.56
$180 964.53
5190 345 84
$172, 345.32
5115,55_1.17

$122,483.33

5122,483.33
$156,322.31
$111,095.97

Data as of: 1/1/2017



260
261
262
263
264

265

266
267
268
269
270
271

272

273
274
275
276
277
278

279

280
281

282

283
284
285
286
287
288
289

290

291

292

293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300

301

302
303

304

305

Job Code
EF500
000026
000032
000073
000006
ZF114
ZF116
AF146
XF160
ZF130

000017

000041
EF113
EF122
KF300
EF223
EF222
EF224
OF426
OF112
EF121
EF107
MF807
EF124
EF114
EF109

- 000088

EF108
EF080

1000056

EFO75
EF106
HF116
HF 144
HF090

000062

000054
000042
IF129
IF130
FF260
OF025
CF105
CP105
FF251
FF252

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

Job Title
Engineer

Engineer (Mechanical Focus)
Engineer Intern

Enterprise Securlty Suppt Spec
Environmental Engineer

"Exec Mgr Transit System Corhpl*

Exec Mgr West Bay Ext*
Executive Staff Asst
General Counsel

k’G‘eneraI Megr

Group Manager '

Group Mgr, Capitel Projects
Grp Mgr AFC Capital Prograym
Grp Mgr Capital Program -
Grp Mgr Capitol Corridor

k - Grp Mgr Elec & Mech Engr.

Grp Mgr Engineer

~Grp Mgr Engineering Liaison

Grp Mgr Operations Liaison ,
Grp Mgr Ops Support & Review ;
Grp Mgr Project Controls

Grp Mgr Rail Vehicle Cap Prog
Grp Mgr Rollmg,Stock & Shops

~Grp Mgr Seismic Retrofit Cap
Grp Mgr Shops & Struct Capital
‘Grp Mgr Stations Capital Prog

Grp Mgr Sustainability Program
Grp Mgr Systems Capital Prog

Grp Mgr Systems Engineer
~ Grp Mgr Tech Support Srvc

Grp Mgr Vehicle Maint Engineer
Grp Mgr Warm Springs Ext
HR Administrative Asst

‘HR Info Systems Analyst

HR Receptionist

Human Resources Program Mngrk ’
lndependent Pol Investigator

Independent Police Auditor
Information Systems Analyst |

Information Systems Analyst I

Information Systems Auditor
Instructional Design Spec

; ,Intermed!ate Clerk - NR
~ Intermediate Clerk - NR / PT

Internal Audltor |

~ Internal Auditor II

BART Compensation and Analytics

As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-’Repkreksentyed Employees ; '

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
k Board Appointed Officer
Board Appointed Officer
Non- Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

, Non—Representekd Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

' ~ Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non—Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees
an-Repfesented Employees
Non—Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
u'Non-Représented Employees
No‘nr—Repres,ent,ed Employees
Non-Represehted Employees

Non-Represented Employees '

Board Appointed Officer
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
- Non-Represented Employees
Non-kRepresented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Page 8 of 16

Grade
NO5
NO5
081
NO7
NO5
N14
N14
NO3
GC
GM

~ N10

N12
N12
N12
N12

N12

N12

N11
N11
N12
N12
N12

' N12

N12

N12

N12
N12

N12

N11
N12
N12
036
NO6
021
N09
NO8

IPA

NO2
NO6

© NO5

NO5

921

020

 NO2

NO4

Minimum

$79,020.35
$79,020.35
$37,440.00
$91,475.20

$79,020.35

$156,452. 48

- $156, 45‘2.”48

$71,673.37

$267,315.58
 $360,761.85

$111,189.47
$122,588.66

$122,588.66
$122,588.66

$122 588 66
$122,588.66

$122,588.66
$122,588.66

$116,749.40
$116,749.40

$122,588.66

$122,588.66
$122,588.66

- $122,588.66
$122,588.66
1$122,588.66
$122,588.66

$122,588.66
$122,588.66
$116,749.40
$122,588.66

$122,588.66

$61,143.06
$87,120.03
$52,200.30

$105,894.61
5100,851.84
5182,072.00

$68,260.23

©$87,120.03

$79,020.35
$79,020.35
sszzoaao
$57,368.48
$68,260.23
$75,258.09

Maximum

$122,483.33
$122,483.33
$37,440.00

$141,788.10
$122,483.33
5242,505.03
$242,505.03
$111,095.97
$267,315.58
$360,761.85
$172,345.32
$190,013.37
$190,013.37
5190,013.37
$190,013.37
5190,013.37
$190,013.37

1$190,013.37

$180,964.53
$180,964.53
$190,013.37
$190,013.37

1$190,013.37
$190,013.37

$190,013.37
$190,013.37

$190,013.37

$190,013.37
5190,013.37
$180,964.53

$190,013.37

$190,013.37
$72,545.82
$135,037.58

$61,869.18

$164,139.13

$156,322.31

$182,072.00

$105,805.86

5;13‘5'037"58

$$122,483.33

$122,483.33
$61,869.18

$68,004.35
$105,805.86

$116,651.17

Data as of: 1/1/2017



306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315

316

317
318
319
320
321
322
323

324

325
326
327
328
329
330
331

332

333
334
335

336

337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349

350

351

Job Code
CF200
CF201

CF202

EF400
HF122
HF123
000011
000060
000077
000063
ZF200
KF100

'EF240

HF151
000024
000081
FF119
FF116
OF115
OF120
EF225
HF225
000008
QF109
EF119
MF400
UF225
FF121
HF1/0
EF120
EF235
EF233

000065
HF104

SF111.
000014
SF140
FF297
FF290
FF117
IF177
FF285
QF110

'HF130

QF107
UF130

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

Job Title
Investment Plans Asst |
Investment Plans Asst I

- Investment Plans Tech

Junior Engineer

Labor Relations Rep |

Labor Relations Rep I
Legislative Officer
Maintenance Engmeer
Manager of Special PrOJects

Manager, Engineering Liaison
- Managing Director, Capitol Cor*

Mech Officer Capital Corridor

‘Mechanical Engineer

Media Producer

‘Mgr of Access/Acce55|b|I|ty

Mgr of Accred Police Sves
Mgr of Capital Budgets
Mgr of Capital Project Control

- Mgr of Central Control

Mgr of Central Support
Mgr of Civil & Structural Eng
Mgr of Civil Rights Programs

Mgr of Communications

Mgr of Community Relatlons
Mgr of Computer Sys Engineer

Mgr of Construction Services

Mgr of Contract Administration
Mgr of Control & Scheduling
Mgr of EEO Training

Mgr of Elect & Comm Engineer

Mgr of Elect & Mech Eng

Mgr of Electrical Engr.

Mgr of Emerg Preparedness
Mgr of Employee Services
Mgr of Engineer Safety

Mgr of Enterprise Perf. Mgmt.

Mgr of Env Compliance

Mgr of Fmancnal Planmng

Mgr of Fleet and Capacity PIng -
Mgr of Grant Dev & Reporting

Mgr of lnformatlon Systems
Mgr of Internal Audit

Mgr of Joint Development
Mgr of Labor Relations

Mgr of Local Govt & Com Rel

k - Mgr of Logistics

BART Compensation and Analytics

As of January 1, 2017

ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit

Nonk-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-RepresentedEmployees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

~Non-Represented Employees

Non—Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represeynted Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees ,

~ Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

~ Non-Represented Employees
- Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

~ Non-Represented Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees

Page 9 of 16

Grade
021
031
036

~ NO3

NO2
NO4
NO8
NO5
NO8
N10

N14

N10
NO5
NO5
NO9
N10
NO9

'NO9

NO9
NO8

N10

NO9
NO9
NO9
N10

N10
NO9

N0
NO9

~ N10

N10
N0
NO8
NO8
NO8
N09
NO9
N9
NO9
N10
NO9
N10
NO9
NO9

NO9

Minimum

' $52,200.30

$58,339.22
$61,143.06

$71,673.37

$68,260.23
$7525809

$100 851. 84

$79,020.35

$100,851.84

$111,189.47
$156,~4k52.48
$111,189.47

£ $79,020.35
1$79,020.35
$105,894.61
$111,189.47

$105,894.61

© $105,894.61
~ $105,894.61
1$100,851.84

$111,189.47

1$105,894.61
$105,894.61

$105,894.61

$111,189.47

$111,189.47
$105,894.61

$105,894.61
© $105,894.61

$111,189.47
$111,189.47
$111,189.47

© $100,851.84

$100,851.84
$100,851.84
$105,894.61

- $105,894.61

$105, 894.61
$105 894.61

© $105,894.61

$111,189.47
$105,894.61
$111,189.47

- $105,894.61

$105,894.61
$105,894.61

Maximum
$61,869.18
$69,198.27
$72,545.82
$111,095.97
$105,805.86
1$116,651.17
1$156,322.31
$122,483.33
$156,322.31
$172,345.32
$242,505.03
$172,345.32
$122,483.33
$122,483.33
$164,139.13
$172,345.32
$164,139.13
$164,139.13
$164,139.13
$156,322.31
$172,345.32
$164,139.13
$164,139.13

$164,139.13

$172,345.32
$172,345.32
$164,139.13
$164,139.13
$164,139.13
$172,345.32
$172,345.32

$172,345.32

$156,322.31

1$156,322.31

§156,322.31
$164,139.13
$164,139.13
$164,139.13
$164,139.13

1$164,139.13

$172,345.32
$164,139.13
$17234532
$16413913
31543139-13

$164,139.13

Data as of: 1/1/2017



352
353
354
355
356
357

358

359
360
361

362

363
364
365
366

367

368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382

383

384

385
386

387
388

389

390

391

392
393
394

395
396

397

Job Code
000055
MF405
TF241
AF206
KFZOO
EF234
FF125
OF425
HF135
QF115
QF111
UF215
000005
TF230
EF159
FF295
QF197
OF111
SF100
OF140
MF840
EF118
MF420
MF421
IF190
EF236
EF130

" OF160

OF170

FC278

TF237
MF850
HF152
HF111

HFI6S
000092
QF102

HF146
HF147
PF 110
000038
AF222

000045

EF256
EF090

'EF262

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

Job Title

Mgr of Maint & Eng Tech Trng
- Mgr of Maint Administration

Mgr of Maint Engineer

' 7 k Mgr of Management Analysis

Mgr of Marketing, Capitol Corr
Mgr of Mechanical Engr.
Mgr of Operating Budgets

' - Mgr of Operations Liaison

Mgr of Personnel Services
Mgr of Plannlng

‘Mgr of Property Development

Mgr of Purchasing
Mgr of Real Estate Services
Mgr of Reliability Engineer

- Mgr of Research & Development.

Mgr of Revenue Control

Mgr of Right of Way Serwces

Mgr of Schedules & Services
Magr of Security Programs
Mgr of Station Ops Support

‘Mgr of Strategic Maint Progr

Mgr of Systems Config Control
Mgr of Telecom Revenue Const

Mgr ofkaeIe,com Revenue Prog
Mgr of Telecommunications

Mgr of Traction Power Engr.
Mgr of Train Control Engineer
Mgr of Train Ops Support

| _ Megr of Transp Ops Suppt
Mgr of Treasury Operations
~Mgr of Vehicle Sys Engineer

Mgr of Warranty Admmlstratlon
Multimedia Producer

Operations Training Supv

Outreach Recruiter

Paralegal

Parking Division Mgr
Personnel Analyst |
Personnel Analyst II

"kPollce Chlef*

Police Consultant
Prmc;pal Admm Analyst NR

Principal Archxtect

~ Principal Civil Engineer
i ' Principal Computer Sys Eng
~ Principal Construction Eng

BART Compensation and Analytics

As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees '

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Répresented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
- Non-Represented Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
anfRebresented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

 Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Repreks‘eknted Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represehted Employees
'Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Noyn-Represent‘ed Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees

Page 10 of 16

Grade
NO9
NO8
N10
NO9
NO8
N10
NO9
NO9
NO9.
NO9
N10

NO9
NO9

N10
N10

BCE

NO9
NO9
N13
NO8
N11

N10

N10
N10
NO9
N10

N10

NO9

..NO3,

N11
N10
NO3

NO5

NO6
NO5
710

~ N09

NO2
NO4
N14

N4

NO7

.

NO8
NO
NO8

Minimum

$105,894.61

$100 851.84
$111 189.47

$105,894.61

$100,851.84
$111,189.47
$105,894.61

$105,894.61
5105,894.61

5105,894.61

$111,189.47

$105,894.61
$105,894.61
$111,189.47
$111,189.47
$116,749.40
$105,894.61
$105,894.61
$135,152.38
$100,851.84
$116,749.40
$111,189.47
$111,189.47
$111,189.47
$105,894.61
$111,189.47

; ‘$111,”189.47

$105,894.61
$105,894.61
$116,749.40
$111,189.47
5105,894.61

1$79,020.35

$87,120.03
$79,020.35

 $72,990.53
- $105,894.61

$68,260.23
$75,258.09

$156,452.48
1 $156,452.48

$91,475.20

- $100,851.84
- $100,851.84
$100,851.84

$100,851.84

Maxnmum '

1$164,139.13

$156,322.31
$172,345.32
$164 139.13
$156 32231
$172,345.32

$164,139.13

$164,139.13
$164,139.13
$164,139.13
$172,345.32
$164,139.13

1$164,139.13

$172,345.32

1$172,345.32

$180,964.53
$164,139.13

1$164,139.13

$209,488.56
$156,322.31
$180,964.53
$172,345.32
$172,345.32
$172,345.32
$164,139.13
$172,345.32

$172,345.32

$164,139.13
5164,139.13
$180,964.53
$172,345.32
$164,139.13
$122 483.33

$135,037.58
$122,483.33
- $80,086.86

5164 139. 13

$105,805.86

$116 651 17
$242,505.03
S242 505. 03

1$141,788.10

$156 322.31

$156,322.31

$156,322.31

$156,322.31

Data as of: 1/1/2017



398
399
400
401
402
403
404

405

406
407
408
409
410
411

412

413
414

415

416
417

418

419
420
421
422

423

424

425

426
427
428
429

430

431

432

433
434
43>
436
437
438

439
440

441
442

443

Job Code
UF230
EF267
EF502
FF301

HF128

EF271
HF156
EF259
TF256
AF234
SF129
EF276
EF146
TF236
MF842

1000079

000018
EF456
000080

1000003

EF250
EF451
KF175
EF212
EF252
TF245
EF142
AF231
AF233

MF817

MF818
MF810

'MF819

EF251
AF220
LF120
EF255
HF232
CF146

CF147
000089

EF138
EF260

EF265

EF140

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

Job Title
Principal Contract Specialist

Principal Electrical Engineer
Principal Engineer

Principal Internal Auditor
Principal Labor Relatlons Rep

~ Principal Mechanical Engineer
~ Principal Personnel Analyst
~ Principal Rail Vehicle Eng

Principal Reliability Engineer
Principal Resrch Proj Analyst
Principal Safety Engineer ;
Prir\cipal Structural Engineer

, Pr‘i‘ncipal Track Engineer

Principal Train Control Eng
Principal Vehicle Sys Engineer

k ~ Program Logistics Manager

Program Manager |
Program Manager I ‘
Project Development Mgr
Project Manager I

i Project Manager, BAPk

Project Mgr

' Project Support Mgr B
~ Rail Svs Compl Officer.Capitol
~ Rail Vehicle Engineer

Rail Vehicle Project Mgr
Relnablllty Engineer

' ~Research & Dev Specrallst '
‘ Research PrOJects Analyst

Research Projects Supv
Rollmg Stock Comp Maint Supt
Rolling Stock Maint Super
Rolling Stock Project Mgr
Secondary Repair Super
Seismic Engineer Mgr

- Sr Admin Analyst - NR

Sr Attorney -
Sr Civil Engmeer

k Sr C|V|I Rights Officer ;

Sr CIerk NR

‘Sr CIerk NR/PT ;
Sr Compensation Analyst
~ Sr Computer Systems Engineer
k - Sr Construction Engineer

Sr Electrrcal Engineer
Sr Electromcs & Comm Engmeer

BART Compensation and Analytics

As of January 1, 2017

ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
NenV-Rkepresented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
; ‘kNoh-Repre‘senteyrd Employees
~Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Noh-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non«Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
; Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non—Represented Empioyyeesk

Non-Represented Employees
~ Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Repres‘kenyted Employees
Non-Represented Employees
, an—Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

‘Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Repres‘ekhted Employees

Page 11 of 16

Grade
NO7

oS

NOg
NO7
NO7
NO8

- NO7

NO8
NO8
NO7

NOS
No8

NO8
NO8
NO8
NOS
NO9
N10
NO9

 N10

N12
NO9
NO9
NO7

NS

NO9

- NOS
NO6

NO4
NO7
N11
N11
NO9
N11
NO9
NO5
N12

NO6

NO5
031
030
NO5
NO7

NO6

NO7
NO6

Minimum

- $91,475.20

$100,851.84

$100,851.84
1$91,475.20

$91,475.20

$100,851.84

$91, 475 20

- $100,851.84
$100,851.84

$91, 475. 20
$100 851. 84

$100,851.84

$100,851.84
$100,851.84
$100,851.84
$105,894.61

$105,894.61
1$111,189.47

$105,894.61
$111,189.47
$122,588.66
$105,894.61

1$105,894.61

$91,475.20
$79,020.35

$105,894r61 ’

$79,020.35

 $87,120.03

$75,258.09
$91,475.20
$116,749.40
$116,749.40
$105,894.61

$116,749.40

$105,894. 61

1$79,020.35
$122,588.66

1$87,120.03
$79,020.35
$58,339.22
$64,120.78
1$79,020.35
$91,475.20

~$87,12003

$91,475.20
$87,120.03

Maximum
$141,788.10
$156 322.31
$156 322.31

$141,788.10

$141,788.10
5156,322.31
$141,788.10
$156,322.31
$156,322.31
$141,788.10
$156,322.31
$156,322.31
$156,322.31
$156,322.31
$156,322.31
$164,139.13
$164,139.13
$172,345.32

1$164,139.13

$172,345.32
5190,013.37
$164,139.13
$164,139.13
$141,788.10
$122,483.33
»164,139.13
$122,483.33
$135,037.58
$116,651.17
$141,788.10
$180,964.53
$180,964.53

$164, 139.13

$180,964.53
5164,139.13
5122,483.33
$190,013.37
$135,037.58
$122,483.33

$69,198.27

$76,066.22

$122,483.33

$141,788.10
$135,037.58
5141,788.10

1$135,037.58 ’

Data as of: 1/1/2017



#
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453

455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466

467

468
469
470
471
472
473’
474

475

476
477
478
479
480
481

482

483

484

485

Job Code
HF114
HF109
EF501
000002
FF138
FF253
HF126
EF270
HF155
EF238
EF258
TF255
AF232
AF135
AF138
EF275

EF145

TF232

TF234

000047
000053
000052
AF139
000057
EF280

000085

MF535
MF703

MF605

MF610
000087
HF133
EF310
TF263
EF085
HF160
FF130
OF424
EF165

KFOS0
OF080

TF233

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

Job Title

~ SrEmployee D’yé‘v Specialist
‘Sr Employee Services Rep

Sr Engineer

~ Sr Executive Staff Ass;stant
S Fmanaal Analyst NR

Sr Internal Audltork

Sr Labor Relations Rep
Sr Mechanlcal Engineer
Sr Personnel Analyst

kSVr Quallty Engineer

Sr Rail Vehicle Engineer

Sr Rellablllty Engineer

Sr Research Projects Analyst
Sr Secretary - NR

Sr Staff Asst

Sr Structural Engineer

Sr Train Control Engmeer
Sr Transportatlon Engineer
Sr Vehicle Systems Engineer
Sr. Architect

Sr. Maintenance Engineer
Sr Product|on ‘Engineer
Staff Asst

‘Strategic Prg Mgr, Ext Affalrs k

Structural Engineer

* Super of eBART & BART to OAK
Super of Power & Mech Maint

Super of Systems Maint
Super of Track & Structures
Super of Way & Faalltles
Superintendent of Sys eBART

Supv Human Resources Programs

Survey Party Chief

~ Survey Taker -PT
System Archltect -Asst Grp Mgr

Technlcal Recru:ter

V ; Technology Advances Admm

Test Track Mgr
Train Control Engineer
Trans Officer.Capitol Corridor

~ Transportation Operations Mgr
Vehicle Systems Engineer

As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

»Non—Re‘presentedrEmployees
“Non-Represented Employees
- Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non—Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non—Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

“Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Reprkeseynted, Employees
Non-Represehted Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employeés
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

~ Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

Non-Represented Employees
Non-Represented Employees

‘Grade
NO5

NO6
NO6

 NO4

NO5
NO5

NOG

NO6
NO5

NO6

NO6

~ NO6

NO5

061
No2

NO6
NO6
NO6
NO6
NO6
NO6
NOG

ol
N12

NO5
N11
N11

N1L

N11
N11
N11
NO8
NO5

© 093

N1L
NO5
NO7
N0

N0

N10

~ N09

NO5

Minimum
$79, 020. 35

$87,120.03

$87 120.03

$75,258.09

$79,020.35
$79,020.35

~ $87,120.03

$87,120.03
$79,020.35
$87,120.03
$87,120.03

$87,120.03

$79,020.35
$54,815.49
$68,260.23
$87,120.03
$87,120.03
$87,120.03
$87,120.03
$87,120.03
$87,120.03
$87,120.03
$61,913.29
$122,588.66
$79,020.35

 $116,749.40
$116,749.40

$116,749.40
$116,749.40
$116,749.40
$116,749.40

$100,851.84

$79,020.35
$70,209. 98
$116 749 40

1$79,020.35

$91,475.20

$105,894.61

$79,020.35
$111,189.47
$105 894, 61
$79,020.35

Maximum
$122 483.33
5135 037.58
$135 037.58
$116,651.17
$122,48333

‘ $’122‘,‘483’.33

$135,037.58
$135,037.58
$122,483.33
$135,037.58
5135,037.58
$135,037.58
$122,483.33
$64,884.77
$105,805.86
$135,037.58
$135,037.58
$135,037.58
$135,037.58
$135,037.58
$135,037.58
$135,037.58
$95,967.65
$190,013.37
$122,483.33
$180,964.53
$180,964.53
$180,964.53
$180,964.53
$180,964.53
$180,964.53
$156,322.31

$122,48333

$70,209.98

$180,964.53
$122,483.33
$141,788.10
$164,139.13
$122,483.33
$172,345.32
- $164,139.13
$122,483.33

* Due fo the unique nature of these jobs as executive management employees reporting directly to the General Manager, these
c/assrﬁoat/'ons are eligible to receive Management Incentive Pay of $4,800 annually (26 equal pay period installments of $184.61).

BART Compensation and Analytics

Page 12 of 16

Data as of: 1/1/2017



#

Job Code

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

Job Title

Service Employees International Union (SEIU)

486
487

488

489
490
491

492

493

494

495
496
497
498

499

500
501
502
503

504

505
506
507
508
509
510

>11

512
513
514
515

516

517

518

519

520

521
522
523
524
525

526

527
528

529,
530

FA200

FA205
FA210

FA215
AA200
AG100

AA230

CA190
MA100
MA105

MAS560

IA100
AA100
UA200
UA205
SA100
FA274

'MA200

MA205
FA100

MA300

MA310
UA210

UA213

TA298
FA245
000095
FA249
FA250

G100

MA115
MA120
000013

1A105
MA700

IA110

000064
1A115

UA215

1000049

CA120
VAL20

000016

VA110
IA135

Account Clerk
Accou ntant

' . Accountlng Analyst

Accounting Tech

~ Administrative Analyst - SEIU
~ Administrative Secretary -SEIU

Administrative Support Officer
Adminis‘t‘ratiye Technician SEIU
AFC Electronic Tech

: AFC Foreworker
,AFC Parts Runner
~ Appl Programmer Analyst

Asst Admin Analyst - SEIU
Asst Buyer

, Asst Contract Admlnlstrator

Asst Safety Spemahst
Asst Treasury Analyst
Auto & Equip Foreworker

k Auto & Equip Mechanic
- Budget Analyst

Buildings Foreworker

Buildings Worker
- Buyer

Buyer Technician

CAD Drafter
, Cash Handler

Cash Handler - PT

, Cash Handling Electromc Tech

Cash Handling Foreworker
Clerk SEIU

- Comm Electromc Tech

Comm Foreworker

- Communlcatlon Coordlnator

Computer Doc‘umentatxon Asst

~ Computer Electronic Tech
Computer Operator
~ Computer Support Admlnlstrator

Computer Support Coordlnator
Contract Administrator

Contracts Technician - SEIU

Customer Service Clerk
Customer Services Admm ‘
Customer Serv:ces Assrstant

kCustomer Services Rep

Data Controller

BART Compensation and Analytics

As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit

SEIU, Local 1021 -Cl& Maint

SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter ’

SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

~ SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- ProfChapter

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

SEIU Local 1021 - CI& Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

* SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

- SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021 CI & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - al & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021-Cl & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint.
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

~ SEIU, Local 1021- Prof_Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Locavl 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

Page 13 of 16

Grade

011
508
511
036
508
071
513
036
301
825
151
508
S06
506
506
506
506

825

301

508

825
301
S08
036
508
025

026

301
813
011
301
825

s11

031

301 ,

031
S05

514

s08
036
031

513

506
s11

031

Minimum

$39,620.05

$66,749.04

$77,208.24
$55,497.52

$66,749.04

$53,410.24
$85,081.56

 $55,497.52

$66,685.01
$73,313.97
$50,158.37
$66,749.04

$60,580.20
$60,580.20
 $60,580.20

$60,580.20
$60,580.20
$73,313.97

$66,685.01

$66,749.04
$73,313.97

$66,685.01
$66,749.04

$55,497.52
$66,749.04
$48,839.02

1$53,722.86
$66,685.01
$73,313.97

$39,620.05

© $66,685.01
- $73,313.97
$77,208.24

$52,936.62

$66,685.01
$52,936.62

$57,714.36
$89,315.76
$66,749.04
$55,497.52
$52,936.62

$85,081.56

$60,580.20

$77,208.24

$52,936.62

‘Maximum

$53, 977 25
$87, 253 68
s1oo 925 76
$72, 545, 82
$87,253.68
$69 817-49

1$111,217.68

1$72,545.82
$87,170.10
$95,835.38
$65,566.59
$87,253.68

1$79,189.80

1$79,189.80
$79,189.80
$79,189.80
$79,189.80
$95,835.38
$87,170.10

- $87,253.68

$95,835.38

1$87,170.10

$87,253.68
$72,545.82
$87,253.68
$63,842.06
$53,722.86
$87,170.10
1$95,835.38

$53977.25

$87,170.10
$95,835.38
$1OO 925.76

1$69,198.27

$87 170.10

$69,198.27

$75,443.64
$116,752.68
587,253.68

$72,545.82
$69,198.27
$111,217.68

$79,189.80
$100,925.76
$69,198.27

Data as of: 1/1/2017



531

532
533
>34
535
536
537
538
539
540

541

542

543

344
545
546

547

548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560

561

562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573

374

575
576

‘Job Code

IA140

‘TA300

TA310
MA313

1000078

MA145
MAS500
000034
MA510
MAS515
MA530
MA525
HJ105
MA150
MA155

'UA195

UA100
MAS550
MA330
VA0S0
TA313
MA335
MA345
MA346
FA265
CJ105
UA105
UA120

‘MA348

1A160
FA275
LA115

LA100
MA350

CAL10
TA215

UA130
UAI135

UA145

UA150
VA125
CA111
CA115
MAS547
MA360
MAS535

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

Job Title
Data Entry Operator

Documentation Config ControHe

Drafting Supv
Dump Truck/Equipment Op
EIec/Electro Mech Assembler Il

EIect/Electro Mech Assembler

Electrical Foreworker

Electrical Helper ,
EIectrrcuan

; kEIevator/EscaIator Foreworker

EIevator/Esc,alator Trainee

i EIevator/Escaklatkor Worker ,;
Employee Dev Specialist - SEIU

ERS Foreworker
ERS Tech
Expedltor

,Expedltor/C|erk

Fire Protectron Worker
Fire Service Worker
Gov & Comm Relations Spec

Graphic Artist

Grounds Foreworker
Grounds Worker

Grounds Worker/Apphcator ;
Intermedkrate Account Clerk

Intermediate Clerk - SEIU

Inventory Control Analyst
Inventory Control Tech
Irrigation/Grounds Worker
Jr Appl Programmer Analyst

v Junlor Accountant

Legal Admmlstratlve Analystk
Legal AdmmlstratlveAsst
Locksmith

~ Mailand Supply Clerk

Maint Planner
Matenal Control Analyst

7 MaterlalControl Sys Analyst

Material Coordlnator
Materlal Expeditor
Multlmedla Assistant Producer

, Offlce Serwces Support Clerk

Offrce Servnces Supv

k ; Overhead Door Worker
kPamter

Power & Mech Foreworker

BART Compensation and Analytics

As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
~SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI &, Maint
' SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 cl & Malnt

SEIU Local 1021 CI&Malntk ;

SEIU Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU Local 1021-Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - a & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

- SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 -l & Maint

, SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU Local 1021 -Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - cl & Maint

' SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

SEIU, kLocal 1021 - CI & Maint
SEIU, Lecal 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 Prof Chapter

; ‘S,EIU,‘,LQcaI 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 Prof Chapter
SEIU Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, LocaI 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU Local 1021 ProfChapter
SEIU Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI&Malnt
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI&Malnt

 SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

Page 14 of 16

Grade
031
S09
s11
301

152

151
824
151
301

825
331

301

CEDS

825
301
S06

031

301
301
s11

509

825
201
301

92t

021
508

036

301
503

505

S06
S05
301
021

508

508
508
301
508
s11
021
800
301
301

824

Minimum
$5,2:936:62
570,066.92

1$77,208.24
$66,685.01
© $52,009.78
$50,158.37

$76,520.91
$50,158.37
$66,685.01
$73,313.97
$60,056.46

$66,685.01
$$79,740.12

$73,313.97
$66,685.01
$60,580.20

$52,936.62
$66,685.01
$66,685.01
$77,208.24
- 570,066.92

$73,313.97
$56,610.32

~ $66,685.01

$47,329.78

$47,329.78

$66,749.04
$55,497.52

$66,685.01

$52,385.49

- $57,714.36

$60,580.20
$57,714.36

$66,685.01

547,329.78

$66,749.04
$66,749.04

$66,749.04

~ $66,685.01
$66,749. 04

$77, 208 24

1$47,329.78
$61,832.37
$66,685.01
$66,685.01
$76,52091

Maximum
- $69,198.27
$91, 590 72
$100 925.76
$87,170.10
$67,986.67
$65,566.59
$100, 027. 41
$65,566.59
$87,170.10
$95,835.38
1$78,505.23
$87,170.10

1$104,235.48
- $95,835.38

$87,170.10
$79,189.80
$69,198.27
$87,170.10
$87,170.10
$100,925.76
$91,590.72
$95,835.38
$74,000.58
$87,170.10
$61,869.18
$61,869.18
$87,253.68
1$72,545.82
$87,170.10

568,477.76

$75,443.64
$79,189.80
$75,443.64
$87,170.10
$61,869.18
$87,253.68
1$87,253.68
$87,253.68
1$87,170.10
$87,253.68
1$100,925.76
$61,869.18
$80,826.72
587,170.10
$87,170.10
$100,027.41

Data as of: 1/1/2017



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

# JobCode  JobTitle

577 MA545 Power & Mechamcal Worker
578 FA130 PrOJect Control Admlmstrator V
579 VA115 Public Information Rep '
580 TA110 Quality Assurance Analyst

581 000066 Quality Assurance Officer

582 000035 Quality Team Leader

583 QA205 Real Estate Officer

584 QAlOO Real Estate Tech

585 1A185 Real Time Programmer Analyst
586 CA140 , Reprographics Equipment Oper
587 MA810 Rolling Stock Foreworker
588 MA225 Shop Machinist

589 TA260 ~Shop Scheduler

590 MA230 Shop Welder

591 FA288 Sr Account Clerk

592 1A190 Sr Appl Programmer Analyst
593 FH140 ~ Sr Budget Clerk - SEIU

594 FA290 Sr Cash Handler

595 (G145 S Clerk SEIU N
596 000075 Sr Computer Suppt Coordlnator
597 TA314 Sr Graphic Artist

598 AA130 Sr Legal Secretary

599 TA220 Sr Maint Planner ,

600 CAl12 Sr Ofﬁce Services Support Clk
'601 - CA155 Sr Office Services Supv

602 AJ135 Sr Secretary - SEIU

603 UA160 Sr Storekeeper

604 1A210 Sr Telecommumcatlons Tech
605 UA170 7 Storekeeper

606 MA615 Structures Equ1pment Operator
607 MA620 ‘Structure,s Foreworker

608 MA637 Structures Inspector

609 MA636 k - Structures Inspector Asst

610 MA638 VStructures Inspector Forewrk
611 ,MA630 Structures Welder

61'2  MA635 - Structures Worker

613 000036 Structures Worker - PT

614 UE,A315 ; . Survey Tech

615 MA385 System Service Crewleader
616 MA390 ; ~ System Service Foreworker ;
617 ‘MA400 - System Service Worker

618 MA399 System S Servrce Worker - 141
619 MA401 System Service Worker - PT
620 ‘TA1’40 - Tech Publications Admln

621 TA302 Techmcal Administrator

622 TA125 TechnrcaI‘Edltor

BART Compensation and Analytics

As of January 1, 2017

ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

- SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

- SEIY, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021- - Prof Chapterk

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
‘SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint

- SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

~ SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
'SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - ClI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

- SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - ClI & Maint

- SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Clk& Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI‘ & Maint
‘SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, LocaI41021- Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

Page 15 of 16

Grade

301

508
s11
508
s11
313

s11

036
513
031
827

301

510
301
031

s14

031
035
031
516
$10
071

s11

031
509
061
171
S14
201
301
825
311
201
810
301
201
221

091

141
818
111
141
121
510

su

S03

Minimum

| $66,685.01

$66,749.04

~ $77,208.24

$66,749.04

1$77,208.24
£ $70,013.84

$77,208.24
$55,497.52

© $85,081.56

$52, 936 62

- $78,402.90

$66 685.01

$73,550.40.
$66,685.01

$52,936.62
$89,315.76

 $52,936.62

$52,200.72
$52,936.62

$97,454.28
1$73,550.40

$53 410.24

1$77,208.24
$52,936.62
$70,066.92
$49,636.70
$61,832.37.

$89,315.76

$56,610.32

$66,685.01
§73,313.97

$69,721.18

$56,610.32

~ $76,653.20
$66,685.01

$56 610.32
$62 271.25

$58,064.45
$49,708.88
~ $67,815.70
$45,807.42

$49,708. 88

852, 971.15
$73, 550.40

$77,208.24

1$52,385.49

Maximum
$87 170.10
$87 253.68
SlOO 925.76

£ $87,253.68

$1oo 925.76
$91,521.46
5100 925 76
$72,545.82
$111, 217 68
$69, 198.27
$102,487.63
$87,170.10
$96,144.24
$87,170.10
$69,198.27

1$116,752.68

$69,198.27
$68,236.27
$69,198. 27

$127,391.28
- $96,144.24

$69,817.49

1$100,925.76

$69,198.27
$91,590.72

$64,884.77

$80,826.72
$116,752.68
$74,000.58

1$87,170.10
$95,835.38

$91,138.94
'$74,000.58
$100,200.46
$87,170.10
$74,000.58
$62,271.25
$75,901.49
$64,978.99
$88,648.14
$62,948.91

1©64,978.99

$52,971.15
$96,144.24
$100,925. 76

$68,477.76

Data as of: 1/1/2017



# Job Code
623 1A300
624 000025
625 TA301
626 1A200
627 1A205
628 FA212
629 UA180
630 MA640
631 MA645
632 MAGSS
633 MAG60
634 000022
635 MA720
636 MA725
637 CA165
638 CA175
639 CA159
640 MA825
641 MAS30
642 000037
643 CA180
644 MA826

645 MA840

646 MA835
647 MA836
648 TA130
649 MA900
650 TA135
651 TA311

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Pay Schedule (Noted by Bargaining Unit)

Job Title

- Technical Programmer Analyst
; Techmcal Publications Analyst
Technical Resources Admin
Telecommunications Specialist

Telecommumcanons Tech

Tlme and Labor Admin Analystk

Tool Room Attendant

: Track Equipment Operator

Track Foreworker
Track Welder

‘Track Worker

Track Worker - PT

Train Control Electromc Tech
Train Control Foreworker
Transit Information Clerk
Transit Information Supv
Transit Informatron Tech
Transit Vehicle Electronic Tec

Transit Vehlcle Mechamc ,
Transit Vehlcle Mechanlc PT
‘ TroublekDesk Data S‘pecrahst

TVET Trainee

Utility Foreworker
Utility Worker

Utility Worker - PT
Vehicle Inspector
Warranty Administrator

‘Wayside Inspector

Web Page Specialist

BART Compensation and Analytics

As of January 1, 2017
ATTACHMENT A

Barg Unit

~ SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter k

SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 Prof Chapter

SEIU, Local 1021- ProfChapter ,
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

SEIU Local 1021 Prof Chapter

~ SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
'SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

. SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

- SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

- SEIY, Local 1021 - CI&Malnt

SEIU Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl’& Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - CI & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint

- SEIU, Local 1021 - Cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter
SEIU, Local 1021 - cl & Maint
SEIU, Local 1021- Prof Chapter

Page 16 of 16

k ~ Grade

511
509

513

S06
509

TAD

201
301
825
301
201

o

301
825
031
s11
036
301
301
314
036
331
818
111
121
311
511
311
510

Minimum
$77 208.24

© $70,066.92

$8}5,0_81.,5,6
$60,580.20

~ $70066.92
$73,715.20

$56,610.32
$66,685.01
$73,313.97

 $66,685.01
© $56,610.32

$62,271.25

 $66,685.01

$73, 313 97
$52,936. 62

1$77,208.24
$55,497.52
$66,685.01
 $66,685.01
1$73,353.49

$55,497.52
$60,056.46
$67,815.70
$45,807.42

$52,971.15

$69,721.18
$77,208.24

$69,721.18
$73,550.40

- Maximum

$100,925.76
$91,590.72
$111,217.68
$79,189.80
$91,590.72

$96,359.95

$74,000.58

- $87,170.10

$95,835.38
$87,170.10
1$74,000.58
562,271.25
$87,170.10
595,835.38
569,198.27
$100,925.76
$72,545.82
$87,170.10

$87,170.10

$73,353.49
$72,545.82
$78,505.23
$88,648.14
$62,948.91
$52,971.15
$91,138.94
$100,925.76
$91,138.94
$96,144.24

Data as of: 1/1/2017



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGYFR APPROVAL: A f? GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
? A ZC- g To award Agreement No. 6M4510 for Carpet Cleaning Services to Crown Building
/ /M. CARI e Maintenance Co., (dba Able Building Maintenance Company)
DATE: 11/17/2016 £~ BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Fola Da Silan
Dept: Real Estate and Property Developmgnt H

1(3{‘7 1 (] ' [

Signature/Date:

N Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC W
saNgL o ST A i AT g
NN N M A4 /
i

//

AWARD OF AGREEMENT No. 6M4510 FOR CARPET CLEANING SERVICES

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Agreement No. 6M4510 to provide
carpet cleaning services for District offices and the Board room, to Crown Building Maintenance Co.,
Inc. (dba Able Building Maintenance Company) of Redwood City, California. The term of the
Agreement will be for three (3) years, with two (2) one year options, in the amount not to exceed
$163,862.00

DISCUSSION

The Agreement consists of providing carpet cleaning services for twelve (12) District floors at the
300 Lakeside Drive Headquarters and the BART Board Room. The carpet cleaning services, although
normally conducted by the building owner, would be more expensive if paid for by the building.
Therefore, the District has received permission to contract for these services on its own. The District
currently does not have the capability in-house to provide these services. The Sponsor, Real Estate
and Property Development Department, has determined that these services are necessary and are not
duplicative of any duties performed by District employees.

The Advance Notice announcing the release of the Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 6M4510 was
emailed to 32 prospective proposers on July 14, 2016. The RFP was posted on BART’s Procurement
Portal on July 18, 2016. The RFP was Advertised on July 16, 2016. The Pre-Proposal Meeting and
Site Tour were held on July 28, 2016 with eight (8) firms in attendance. Five (5) proposals were
received by the District Secretary on August 23, 2016.

The proposal submitted by Corporate Care was determined to be non-responsive since it failed to
meet two (2) of the minimum technical requirements. The remaining four (4) technical proposals were
reviewed by a Source Selection Commiittee, chaired by Contract Administration, consisting of
representatives from the Real Estate and Property Development Department, Human Resources and
the Office of Civil Rights. The Committee reviewed the technical proposals for compliance with the
five (5) minimum technical requirements set forth in the RFP and determined that the four (4)
proposals were technically acceptable.

Price proposals for the 3-year base period and 2 additional option years were evaluated and ranked
as follows:



Agreement No. 6M4510, Carpet Cleaning Services

PROPOSER RANK TOTAL PROPOSAL
PRICE

Able Building Maintenance Company, Redwood City, Ca. #1 $163,862.00

DFS Green, Inc. Millbrae, Ca. #2 $171,251.84

Aim to Please Janitorial Services, Inc. San Francisco, Ca. #3 $314,820.00

Transpacific Building Maintenance, Inc. Santa Clara, Ca. #4 $213,424.50

Staff has determined that the proposal submitted by Able Building Maintenance Company is
technically acceptable and responsive to the solicitation. Staff has also determined upon review of
the proposer’s business experience and financial capabilities that the proposer is responsible and that
the $163,862.00 proposal price submitted by Able Building Maintenance Company is fair and
reasonable based on sufficient price competition.

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights sets a 5%
Small Business Prime Preference for this proposal for Small Businesses certified by the California
Department of General Services. The lowest responsive proposer, Able Building Maintenance
Company, is not a certified Small Business and, therefore, is not eligible for the 5% Small Business
Prime Preference.

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability

Percentages for this Agreement are 16% for Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs) and 20% for.

Women Business Enterprises (WBEs). The Proposer, Able Building Maintenance Company, will not
be subcontracting any portion of the Work and therefore, the provisions of the District’s Non-
Discrimination Program for Subcontracting do not apply.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the Agreement as to form.
FISCAL ACT:

The cost for this Agreement is not to exceed $163,862.00. This amount covers the 3-year base period
($95,268.00), and options to renew for two (2) additional one (1) year periods (option year | -
$34,297.00; option year 2 - $34,297.00). The term of the Agreement will commence in the third
quarter of fiscal year 2017 and expire at the end of fiscal year 2021.

Assuming both options are exercised, the estimated maximum costs for carpet cleaning services are as
follows:

FY17  FY18 FY19 FY20  FY21  FY22 Total
Year 1  $15878  $15,878 $31,756
Year 2 $15,878  $15,878 $31,756
Year 3 $15,878  $15,878 $31,756
Option Year 1 $17,149  $17,149 $34,297
Option Year 2 $17,149  $17,149  $34297

Total $15,878  $31,756  $31,756  $33,027 $34,298 $17,149  $163,862



Agreement No. 6M4510, Carpet Cleaning Services

The agreement will be subject to the availability of fiscal year funding. All funding will come from
Real Estate and Property Development Department’s Operating Budget.

- ALTERNATIVES:

1. To initiate another Request for Proposal (RFP) which is unlikely to result in more competitive
pricing.

2. The discontinuance of carpet cleaning services which would compromise the appearance of
District offices as well as the health of District employees.

RECOMMENDATION:

Adoption of the following motion.
MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Agreement No. 6M4510 for carpet cleaning services to
Crown Building Maintenance Co., Inc. (dba Able Building Maintenance Company), including the
exercise of options to renew the Agreement for two (2) additional one (1) year periods, for a total
compensation amount not to exceed $163,862.00 pursuant to notification to be issued by the General
Manager and subject to compliance with the District’s Protest Procedures.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 4_
Tiu 2017
DATE: 12/9/2016 A BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary

e
ﬂ%m] -

Originator/Prepared by: Cristiano Torresi

Dept: Rolling Stock and Shops
" L

Signat;rf;te'/ 7

77

Invitation for Bid No. 9019 — Phase 2: Purchase of C-Car Cab Hinged Windows

PURPOSE: To obtain Board Authorization to Award Invitation for Bid (IFB) No. 9019 to John
Marron & Associates of Danville, California in the amount of $334,224.00 for the purchase of
hinged cab window assemblies for C Car revenue vehicles.

DISCUSSION: The District’s revenue vehicle fleet currently consists of 230 C Cars which were
originally equipped with two vertically sliding cab windows. Train Operator are required to open
these windows to perform the required “look back” of the platform at each station stop. Due to
inherent design issues and obsolescence of the original parts, the mechanical reliability of these
windows has deteriorated over time, making routine use increasingly difficult for Train Operators.
As part of the C Car cab retrofit project new cab windows were designed to replace the existing
vertical sliding cab windows.

Prior to this IFB the District completed a ten (10) car pilot program and successfully installed forty
five (45) modified cab windows approved in 2016 via IFB 8981 (Phase 1). Phase 1 was
completed in September of 2016. After each phase of the installation engineering staff used
feedback from train operators and maintenance staff to make further refinements to the cab
window specifications. The technical specifications in IFB 9019 incorporate the staff feedback and
will provide the materials needed for Phase 2 of the C Car Window modification. This IFB will
allow the District to complete an additional forty five (45) C Cars for a total of 100 C Cars.

This Contract is for the purchase of ninety (90) window assemblies, consisting of forty five (45)
left side (Automatic Train Control or ATC) and forty five (45) right side (T/0) window assemblies.
Forty Five (45) rehabilitated C Cars, which will likely remain in service for the longest period of
time, were selected for these new window assembly installations. The retrofit scope includes (a)
removal of existing vertical sliding cab windows and installation of new hinged cab windows, (b)
relocation of door controls on the Train Operator (T/0) side to the console, and (c) replacement of
woven T/0 seat cushions with vinyl cushions. (Note that scope items (b) and (c) are not part of
IFB No. 9019 and will be procured separately).

This is a two (2) year estimated quantity contract. Pursuant to the terms of the District’s standard




Invitation for Bid No. 9019

estimated quantity contract, during the term of the Contract the District is required to purchase
from the supplier a minimum amount of 50% of the contract bid price. Upon Board approval of
this contract, the General Manager will also have the authority to purchase up to 150% of the
contract bid price, subject to availability of funding.

A notice requesting bids was published on November 1st, 2016. Bids were opened on N0vember
22nd, 2016 and two bids were received.

Bidder Description and Unit Price Quantity | Total Price Including
Sales tax (10%)

Annex Item 1 - ATC Side Window 45 $ 628,385.67

Precision,

Santa Clara, $6.642.29

CA

Item 2 - T/O Side Window

$6,052.37 45
John Marron | Item 1 - ATC Side Window 45 $ 334,224.00
& Associates
Danville, $ 3,488.00
California

Item 2 - T/O Side Window

$ 3,264.00 45

Independent Cost Estimate by BART Staff: $422,280.00 (including sales tax).

The District’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to Invitations for
Bid. Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) and
Women Business Enterprise (WBE) Availability Percentages for this IFB.

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set a 5%
Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses certified by the California
Department of General Services. The lowest responsive Bidder, John Marron & Associates, is not
a certified Small Business and, therefore, is not eligible for the 5% Small Business Prime
Preference.

John Marron & Associates of Danville, California submitted the low bid of $334,224.00 including
sales tax. After a review, Staff has determined that John Marron & Associates’ bid is responsive
and responsible and that its bid price is fair and reasonable based upon the independent cost
estimate.

Pursuant to the IFB provisions, John Marron & Associates shall submit First Articles of the
window assemblies to the District for approval within seventy five (75) days following a Notice of
Award of this Contract. Upon approval of the First Articles, the initial delivery of these window
assemblies to BART shall take place within thirty (30) days.



Invitation for Bid No. 9019

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding of $334,224.00 for this agreement with John Marron & Associates
IFB NO. 9019 will come from project budget 43KC001 C Car Cab Windows. The following table
depicts funding assigned to the referenced project, and is included in its totality to track funding
history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from the
sources listed. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to

meet this obligation. As of December 15, 2016 $1,200,000.00 is available for this project from the
following fund sources:

30 6 Operating Capital Allocation (Phas

8531 FY17 Operating Capital Allocation (Phase 2) © $600,000.00

BART has expended $376,120.00 and committed $30,327.00 to date for other actions. This action
will commit an additional $334,224.00 leaving an uncommitted balance of $459,328.00 in this
project. There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES: The alternative to awarding this contract would be to reject the bid received
and re-advertise the contract, which staff believes would not result in a better price or more
competition.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 9019 to John
Marron & Associates of Danville, California for the Bid price of $334,224.00 including sales tax,
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject to the District's Protest
Procedures.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: January 6, 2017
FROM: District Secretary
SUBJECT: 2017 Special Appointments

Board Rule 3-3.2 requires the ratification by a majority vote of all members of the Board any
appointment of any Committee member by the Board President. The Rule includes a provision
that such appointments shall be submitted directly to the Board.

In accordance with Board Rule 3-3.2, President Saltzman is bringing the 2017 Special
Appointments before the Board of Directors for ratification at the Regular Board Meeting on
January 12, 2017.

The appointments to the Standing Committees are not presented for ratification pending the Board
of Directors decision on President Saltzman’s proposed revisions to the Rules of the Board of
Directors: Chapter III Board Meetings and Committees, Section 3. Committees, on the January 12
Regular Board Meeting agenda.

Should you have any questions about the recommended appointm;nts, please contact President
Saltzman or me at your convenience. / (

Kenneth A. Duron

Attachment

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Acting Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff

MOTION:

That the Board of Directors ratifies the proposed Special Appointments for 2017 (attached).



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION OF COMMITTEES AND SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS

SPECIAL COMMITTEES
PERSONNEL REVIEW SPECIAL COMMITTEE**
Rebecca Saltzman, Chairperson Robert Raburn Joel Keller

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS - LIAISON

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) LIAISON
Robert Raburn Lateefah Simon

CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY** LIAISON
Joel Keller, Primary Debora Allen, Alternate

SAN FRANCISCO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY** LIAISON
Nicholas Josefowitz, Primary Bevan Dufty, Alternate

** Brown Act Committee, subject to public meeting requirements.

Proposed: January 6, 2017



SAN FRANISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
ORGANIZATION OF COMMITTEES AND SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS - EXTERNAL

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION **
Rebecca Saltzman, Primary Thomas M. Blalock, Alternate

ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE TO THE AMERICAN PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Thomas M. Blalock

BART AND AC TRANSIT COORDINATING COMMITTEE

Rebecca Saltzman (Co-Chair) Robert Raburn Lateefah Simon

CAPITOL CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS BOARD#*#**

Debora Allen, Contra Costa County Robert Raburn, Alameda County

Bevan Dufty, San Francisco County Rebecca Saltzman, Alameda County
Nicholas Josefowitz, San Francisco County John McPartland, Alternate Alameda County

Joel Keller, Contra Costa County

DIRIDON STATION AREA JOINT POLICY ADVISORY BOARD (City of San Jose)***
Thomas M. Blalock

OVERSIGHT BOARD TO SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF SAN FRANCISCO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY ##**
Nicholas Josefowitz

PLEASANT HILL BART STATION LEASING AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTOR S##*#*
Debora Allen Joel Keller

SILICON VALLEY RAPID TRANSIT CORRIDOR/WARM SPRINGS BART EXTENSION POLICY ADVISORY
BOARD*##*
Thomas M. Blalock John McPartland

SOUTH HAYWARD BART STATION ACCESS AUTHORITY **
Thomas M. Blalock John McPartland Rebecca Saltzman, Alternate

TRI-VALLEY REGIONAL RAIL ADVISORY GROUP#**
John McPartland

TRI-VALLEY REGIONAL RAIL POLICY WORKING GROUP**
John McPartland

WEST CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (WCCTAC)**
Lateefah Simon, Primary Joel Keller, Alternate

**  Brown Act Committee, subject to public meeting requirements.
*#%  Brown Act Board, subject to public meeting requirements.

NOTE: BART Directors discharging liaison functions do not serve as members of either a committee of BART or the other organization, nor
as members of a joint committee. Any action on behalf of BART must be taken by the full Board.

Proposed: January 6, 2017



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL:

VicA 14 Fown

4 TAn 2oity

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 12/28/2016

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Seema
Parameswaran
Dept: Office of Civil Rights

.

o

Wi

Y

\

-5

(fen al unsel

Controller/Treasurer

District Secretary

[

k!“fﬁ“‘?ﬁ[ 1

Title VI Civil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update

PURPOSE:

To request Board approval of the District’s Title VICivil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update.

BACKGROUND:

As a recipient of federal funding, the District is required by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to conform to Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Act) and its related regulations. Pursuant to FTA Title VI Circular 4702.1B Title VI

Regquirements and Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients, effective October 2012 (Circular), BART

is required to submit a Title VI Civil Rights Program (Title VI Program) to the FTA once every three years. The Title VI

Program must be approved by the Board prior to submission to the FTA.

DISCUSSION:

The Title VI Civil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update documents that BART’s services and benefits are provided in
an equitable and nondiscriminatory basis and comply with the requirements outlined in the Circular. BART’s 2016 Title
VI Program includes Title VI compliance efforts during the reporting period, January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2016,
and sets forth BARTs future Title VI policies for the next three years. The Board will be approving these past efforts

and future guidelines. BART’s previous Title VI Program, dated 2013, was approved by the FTA on July 16, 2014.

Requirements and Guidelines:

BART’s Title VI Program consists of the following general requirements and guidelines:

¢ © ¢ © e o © o

Notification to Beneficiaries of Protection under Title VI
Title VI Complaint Procedures and Complaint Form
Recording and Reporting of Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits
Promoting Inclusive Public Participation
Providing Meaningful Access to LEP Persons
Minority Representation on Planning and Advisory Bodies
Assisting and Monitoring Subrecipients
Determination of Site or Location of Facilities




Title VI Civil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update

The Circular also requires that all fixed route transit providers, such as BART, comply with the following requirements:

System-Wide Service Standards and Policies

Transit Service Monitoring

Collection and Reporting of Demographic Data
Major Service Change Policy

Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy
Equity Analysis of Service and Fare Changes

e © © © o o

Title VI Compliance Efforts, 1/1/14 - 12/31/16:

In addition to the requirements and guidelines listed above, the Circular requires Board approval of Title VI related
policies, service and fare equity analyses, and transit service monitoring. These documents demonstrate BART’s Title
VI compliance during the Program’s reporting period.

Title VI Service and Fare Equity Analysis:

BART must conduct an equity analysis for any Fare Change or Major Service Change to determine if the proposed
change will have a disparate impact on minority populations or a disproportionate burden on low income populations.
The list below summarizes the Fare and Service equity analyses conducted during this reporting period. None of the
following equity analyses resulted in a disparate impact or disproportionate burden on minority or low-income
populations, respectively.

e Warm Springs Extension Title VI Equity Analysis and Public Participation Report. This report is a service
and fare equity analysis and was approved by the Board on May 14, 2015.

e Title VI Assessment for Discontinuing the BART Plus Ticket Program as Jointly Offered by: BART,
County Connection, Tri Delta Transit, Union City Transit, WestCAT, and Wheels. Approved by the Board
on December 3,2015.

e Title VI Assessment for the Proposed Productivity-Adjusted Inflation-Based Fare Increase effective
January 1, 2016. Approved by the Board on July 23, 2015.

Monitoring Transit Service:

Staff seeks Board approval of the Service Monitoring results, included in the Title VI Program. As a fixed route transit
provider, BART is required to monitor the performance of its transit system relative to its adopted system-wide Service
Standards and Policies every three years. BART’s transit service in the 2016 Title VI Program was monitored based
on the standards adopted by the Board in BART’s 2013 Title VI Program (valid from 1/1/14 — 12/31/16).

The Service Standards Monitoring Results are divided into four sections: Vehicle Load, Vehicle Headway, On-time
Performance, and Service Availability. The Service Policies Monitoring Results are divided into two sections:
Distribution of Transit Amenities and Vehicle Assignment. For all categories except Transit Amenities, BART’s
Disparate Impact/Disproportionate Burden (DI/DB) Policy threshold is used as guidance in applying a 5% threshold
for assessment of these System-wide Standards and Policies. Transit Amenities are to be distributed equitably,
generally in proportion to station ridership and as a function of location (urban/suburban) and station design. Applying
this methodology and threshold to an assessment of BART’s system-wide Service Standards and Policies, there is no
disparate impact in the levels of service BART provides to minority communities.

Future Title VI Policies:

The 2016 Title VI Program sets standards and policies for BART to incorporate and comply with for its future Title VI



Title VI Civil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update

efforts. Once adopted, these policies will be in place for the following three years, 2017-2019. These policies also
require Board approval.

e Major Service Change Policy: Establishes a threshold to determine when a service change is considered
“major.” The Board adopted an amended version of this Policy on October 13, 2016. Amendments include
revising the exclusion of temporary services in effect from 180 days to 12 months for consistency with the FTA
Circular and adding a Major Service Change exclusion to include service changes or service interruptions as a
result of urgent or necessary maintenance.

e Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy: Establishes a threshold to determine when adverse
impacts are borne disproportionately by protected populations or riders. The current policy establishes a 5%
threshold for assessing impacts on existing fares and service and a 10% threshold for evaluating new fares and
service. The Board adopted this Policy on July 11, 2013.

e System-wide Service Standards and Policies: Establishes quantitative standards for the following indicators:

¢ Vehicle Load

» Vehicle Headway

+ On-time Performance
< Service Availability

e Additionally, policies are developed for each of the following service indicators: i) Distribution of Transit
Amenities and ii) Vehicle Assignment to address how service is distributed across the BART system. The Board
adopted the standards and policies used for the 2016 Title VI Program on January 9, 2014. The current
amendments to the Service Standards and Policies include:

= Vehicle Load: Increasing Peak Load level from 100 passengers per car (PPC) to 115 PPC and Off Peak
from 63 PPC to 80 PPC.

+ On-time Performance: Amending the Train On-Time performance goal (set in the current operating
budget) to 92% and Customer On-Time performance goal to 95%.

Environmental Justice:

At the Board’s request, staff reviewed service monitoring results for low-income populations and found no
disproportionate burden in the levels of service BART provides to low-income communities.

To seek input on this report, contents of the 2016 Title VI Program was shared with BART’s Limited English Proficient
(LEP) and Title VI & Environmental Justice Advisory Committee at its December 12, 2016 meeting. The Committees
provided comments and asked follow up questions, but concurred with the contents of the Program.

Staff now seeks Board approval of the Title VI Civil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update. A complete copy has
been made available to the Board for review.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Approving the Title VI Civil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update would allow the District to maintain its eligibility for
federal funding.

ALTERNATIVES:
The alternative would be not to approve the Title VI Civil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update. The District will not

be in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and its related regulations, putting its federal funding at
risk.



Title VI Civil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the Board approves the following motion.
MOTION:

The Board of Directors approves the District’s Title VI Civil Rights Program 2016 Triennial Update.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: T GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 12/22/2016 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Hoa Sin
Dept: Office of Civil Rights

Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary

il

Adopt the Resolution and Findings and Approve the Modification to the
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program

[1 [1]

PURPOSE:

The Board adoption of the Resolution and Findings and approval of modification of
BART's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program; and delegation to the General
Manager the authority to approve DBE Program documents.

DISCUSSION:

In April 2015, the Board approved award of an Agreement with Miller3 Consulting (Miller3)
to conduct a Disparity Study (The Study) in support of BART’s DBE Program. The

Study satisfies the requirements established by the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals in the
case of Western States Paving Co., Inc. vs Washington State Department of
Transportation, (Western States) and U.S. Department of Transportation regulations
promulgated in response thereto.

The Study found statistically significant disparity evidence to support the continuance of a
race and gender conscious goal-based program for construction contracts. In addition,
BART will re-establish race-and-gender conscious goals on federally funded Architectural &
Engineering (A&E) services, professional services, other services Agreements and
procurement contracts.

The revised DBE Program, a copy of which is attached, reflects the results of the Study.
The key proposed changes to the DBE Program are as follows:



k Adopt the Resolution and Findings and Approve the Modification to the Disadvantaged Business Enterpr (cont.)

a. The District will continue to establish race-and-gender conscious goals on construction
contracts as well as re-establish DBE contract specific goals for A&E, professional
services, other services Agreements, and procurement contracts. The DBE goals will
be set at the contract level based on the scope of work and availability, with the
exception of on-call agreements where they will be based on the anticipated scopes of
work or on the scopes of work seen in previous similar on-call agreements, as well as
availability, and will be monitored as work plans for each of the Agreements are
developed and executed. These goals will only be met by those DBE firms that are
located or do business in the BART market area or have attempted to do business in
BART’s market area within two years prior to the solicitation of a Contract.

b. The District will implement a Mentor-Protégé Program (MP Program) that will assist
DBEs and Small Businesses to become more proficient in their respective areas of
work. The MP Program will focus on increasing the technical capacity of small
businesses in non-traditional areas of work.

c. In construction contracts, the District will count DBE prime participation and may
also count participation on multiple tiers of subcontracting.

d. In A&E, professional services and other services, the District will require that the DBE
goal be met through participation of DBE subconsultants, even if the prime consultant
is a DBE.

e. The District will increase the cap on Micro-Small Business Entity (MSBE) set-aside
contracts to $3M on construction and procurement contracts and $6M on A&E,
professional services and other service Agreements.

f. The District will add a self-performance requirement to MSBE contracts.

g. The District may not pay for work that is performed or materials that are supplied by
firms other than the DBE listed for such work or material, unless the DBE is substituted
in accordance with the contract requirements.

The revised DBE Program supports the District’s Strategic Plan Goals of Economy:
Contribute to the region’s global competitiveness and create economic opportunities; and,
Equity: Provide equitable delivery of transit service, policies, and programs.

FISCAL IMPACT: The Implementation Plan for the Disparity Study recommendations is
being developed and will be brought forth as part of the Fiscal Year 2018 budget process.

ALTERNATIVES:

The alternative would be not to adopt the Resolution and Findings or approve modifications
to the DBE Program. Failure to adopt the Resolution and Findings or approval of
modifications to the DBE Program would prevent BART from proceeding with changes to
its DBE Program that are consistent with the results of the Disparity Study.



| Adopt the Resolution and Findings and Approve the Modification to the Disadvantaged Business Enterpr (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board adopt the attached Resolution and Findings and approve
modifications to the DBE Program.

MOTION: The Board adopts the attached Resolution and Findings; approves the
modifications to the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program; and delegates to
the General Manager the authority to approve the DBE Program documents.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Adopting Findings and Modifying
BART’S Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program Resolution No.

Introduction:

As a recipient of federal funds, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
(BART) is required to follow federal statutes and U.S. Department of Transportation
(DOT) regulations governing participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises
(“DBEs”) on federally funded projects. (As used in this Resolution, the term “DBE”
includes both minority and women-owned enterprises.) Consistent with DOT
requirements, the program has attempted to remedy the effects of discrimination against
minority and women-owned businesses in the industries in which BART does business,
to prevent future discrimination on BART projects in those industries, and to provide
meaningful opportunities for minority-owned and women-owned businesses to
participate in BART projects.

Background:

On May 9, 2005, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit issued a decision in
Western States Paving Co. v. Washington State Department of Transportation. The
Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals held that Washington State Department of
Transportation’s (WSDOT) DBE Program was not narrowly tailored and was therefore
unconstitutional because the State’s evidence of discrimination supporting the use of
race-conscious measures was inadequate to justify a race-and-gender-conscious
contracting program.

In response to the Western States case, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) of the
DOT published guidance concerning the federal DBE program that applies to recipients
of DOT grants in states within the Ninth Circuit. This guidance instructs that if a
recipient does not currently have sufficient evidence of discrimination or its effects in the
local market to justify race and gender conscious contracting, the recipient must meet its
annual overall DBE goal solely through race and gender neutral measures.

In the Western States case, the court found deficiencies in Washington DOT’s analysis:
the statistical analysis conducted was inadequate, in addition, Washington DOT"s



calculation of the capacity of DBEs to do work was flawed because it failed to take into

- account the effects of past race-conscious programs on current DBE participation. The
court also found that the disparity between DBE participation on contracts with and
without race-conscious goals did not provide any evidence of on-going discrimination.
Furthermore, Washington DOT did not present any anecdotal evidence of discrimination.
Despite different holdings in other jurisdictions, the case law issued by the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, applies to all states comprising the Ninth Circuit, including
the State of California. The Western States case principally governs BART’s DBE
Program activity.

BART’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program:

As arecipient of federal funds from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), BART’s
Disadvantaged Business Program has been developed pursuant to the requirements of 49
CFR Part 26'. The purpose of the DBE Program is “to create a level playing field on
which a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”) or Small Business (“SB”) can
compete fairly for federally funded agreements, contracts and subcontracts, including but
not limited to construction, procurement and proposal contracts, professional and
technical services agreements and purchase orders.”?

The District sets a triennial DBE participation goal covering projected federally funded
contracts over a three-year period. The triennial goal is based upon a review of the
District’s contracting record over previous years; the availability of certified or certifiable
DBEs; the estimated dollar volume of contract activity; opportunities for DBE
subcontractors, vendors and suppliers; and DBE goals being applied in the BART service
area by other governmental and transit agencies. The Triennial DBE goal for FFY 2017
to FFY2019 is 17%. The District also sets DBE participation goals for individual
contracts on a case-by-case basis, and evaluates good faith efforts on a case-by-case basis
when the specific contract goal is not attained. BART also in 2014 began issuing set aside
Contracts and Agreements for Micro-Small Business Entities (MSBEs) which limits
bidding to certified MSBEs. MSBE set aside contracts have the following cap limit: for
services agreements, at $3M; for construction contracts, $2M; for procurement contracts,
$3M. An MSBE is a race and gender neutral category and is limited to small businesses
with average gross receipts over the three previous fiscal years for itself and its affiliates,
not exceeding $10M for construction firms, $6M for procurement firms; and $6M for
services related firms.

149 CFR Part 26 was enacted on January 8, 1999 and revised on October 1, 2006 and October 2, 2014,
2 San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program, February
2012, p. 4.



Disparity Study:

In April 2015, the Board approved awarding an Agreement with M? Consulting to
prepare a Disparity Study (Study) to determine, among other things, if there is evidence
of discrimination or its effects in BART federally funded contracts.

Study Scope:

In conducting this Study, M® Consulting collected and developed data to determine
disparities, if any, between the availability and utilization of minority, woman and
disadvantaged- business enterprises (MWDBEs) for contracts awarded from January 1,
2011 through December 31, 2014 (the Study Period).

Market Area Analysis:

M? Consulting identified the relevant market in which BART conducts the bulk of its
commercial transactions. In calculating relevant market, M* Consulting sought to
determine where at least 70 percent of firms were located. The market areas by
procurement type were used to determine inclusively where the bulk of commercial
activity by BART occurs. M* Consulting determined the percentage of firms meeting the
70 percent threshold based on BART bidder, sub-bidder, and awardee, purchase order,
and accounts payable data. Based on the data for the Study, five relevant markets were
defined for BART: the architecture and engineering market area consists of the 5-county
San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward, CA MSA (MSA); the construction market area
consists of the 9-county San Francisco Bay Area (Bay Area); and the professional and
other services market area is the State of California, and the procurement market area is
nationwide. ‘

Availability Analysis:

M? Consulting, collected and measured the availability of MWDBEs and Non-MWDBE
firms in the relevant market that are “ready, willing, and able” based on BART’s bidder,
sub-bidder, and awardee data.

Utilization Analysis:

To determine BART’s utilization activity of MWDBESs, M? Consulting analyzed data on
MWDBE’s utilization in awards and payments for Calendar Years 2011- 2014 based on
contract awards, accounts payable and purchase order data including prime and
subcontractor utilizations.



Marketplace Conditions and Anecdotal Evidence:

M? Consulting conducted qualitative and quantitative analyses of conditions in the
BART’s local marketplace to examine whether barriers exist for MWBESs as they attempt
to do business with BART. M? Consulting analyzed anecdotal evidence through
interviews, focus group meetings, surveys, and one-on-one interviews that found a
number of barriers affecting the ability of MWBESs to do business with BART.

Statistical Evidence of Disparities:

The availability and utilization data was evaluated to identify statistically significant
disparity, if any, between MWDBE availability in BART’s relevant geographic market
areas and MWDBE utilization data regarding contract awards, purchase orders, and
accounts payable payments. M? Consulting analyzed disparities in the industry
categories of Architecture and Engineering, Construction, Professional Services, Other
Services and Procurement.

M? Consulting findings of statistically significant disparity are made for the following
groups in the following procurement categories:

Architecture and Engineering: African American-owned firms, Hispanic
American-owned firms, Native American-owned firms, Caucasian Female-owned
firms.

Construction: African American-owned firms, Asian American-owned firms,
Hispanic American-owned firms, Native American-owned firms, Caucasian
Female-owned firms.

Professional Services: Asian American-owned firms, Hispanic American-owned
firms, Caucasian Female-owned firms.

Other Services: African American-owned firms, Caucasian Female-owned firms.

Procurement: African American-owned firms, Asian American-owned firms,
Caucasian Female-owned firms.

Assessment of Procurement Policies, Procedures, and Practices:

M? Consulting reviewed BART’s Procurement and federal DBE and SBE, as well as
BART’s non-federal SB and Non-Discrimination Program procedures, policies and
practices in relation to their effect on DBE, SBE, and MWBE participation. The Study

4



found that BART has a number of areas in its policies, procedures and practices that may
create barriers to the ability of DBEs, SBEs, and MWBEs to participate in BART’s
contracting and procurement opportunities.

Summary of Proposed Board Action:

The Board will be asked to take the following actions: 1) adopt Findings; 2) approve a
revised DBE Program containing the elements described in Attachment A attached
hereto; 3) delegate to the General Manager, with approval of the General Counsel, the
authority to implement a revised DBE Program consistent herewith.

THE BOARD HAS NOW CONSIDERED THE FOLLOWING EVIDENCE:

The Board has considered the expert qualifications of M? Consulting as described in its
presentation on December 1, 2016.

The Board has considered the findings and conclusions of the report prepared by M?
Consulting for the District dated December 1, 2016, regarding the statistically significant
under-utilization of African-Americans, Asian-Americans, Hispanic-Americans, Native
Americans and women in the construction, A&E, professional services, other services
and in procurement industries in BART’s relevant market area, as presented to the Board
in testimony by M? Consulting on December 1, 2016, and submitted into evidence on that
day. In addition, the Board acknowledges that the Public meetings were conducted to
present the Study in each of the three counties comprising the BART District, Alameda,
Contra Costa and San Francisco. The Study was also presented to the District’s Business
Advisory Council (BAC) which represents small, minority and women-owned
businesses.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD HEREBY MAKES THE FOLLOWING
FINDINGS:

1. Based on the evidence (statistical and anecdotal) presented in the Disparity Study
and considered by the Board, the Board hereby makes findings with respect to the
under-utilization of minority and women firms in BART’s market area in
construction, Architectural and Engineering, professional services, other services,
and procurement.

2. Consistent with applicable DOT regulations, BART engages in extensive race- and
gender-neutral efforts to meet the triennial DBE goal and to ensure participation by
minorities and women. Based on the M? Consulting findings, these race-and



gender-neutral efforts have not been sufficient to ensure participation by DBEs in
BART contracts consistent with their availability.

3. Based upon the evidence of continuing discrimination against minority- and
women-owned firms in BART's contracting and subcontracting, the Board finds
that the evidence in the M?® Consulting Study supports the continuance of race and
gender conscious DBE goals in Construction, and the establishment of race and
gender conscious contract goals for Architecture and Engineering, Professional
Services, Other Services, and Procurement contracts. In order to implement the
Study’s recommendations, the following programmatic changes to the DBE
Program are required: counting DBE participation on multiple tiers of
subcontracting; implementation of Mentor-Protégé program to increase the capacity
of DBE subcontractors to perform larger sized contracts, including firms who are
new to BART work, and preparing DBE subcontractors to become prime
contractor; increase cap limits on MSBE set-aside contracts to $3 million on
construction and procurement contracts and $6 million on services contracts.

4, It is necessary that availability and utilization studies be conducted on a regular
basis in order to maintain reliable information, including pertinent statistical data, to
determine if there is continuing evidence of discrimination which justifies the
continuation of the race- and gender-conscious elements of the DBE Program under
applicable legal principles.

5. Itis necessary for BART to comply with DOT’s DBE regulations (49 CFR Part 26)
as a condition for eligibility for receipt of federal funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Program applicable to BART’s federally funded contracting activities, revised as shown
in Exhibit A attached hereto is hereby approved and adopted in accordance with the
Department of Transportation regulations (49 CFR Part 26).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board delegates to the
General Manager the authority to approve DBE Program documents consistent with this
Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board directs that
availability and utilization studies be conducted on a regular basis in order maintain
reliable information, including pertinent statistical data, to determine if there is



continuing evidence of discrimination which justifies the continuation of the DBE
Program under applicable legal principles.

###



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERANAGER APPROVAL: (g ? Al z@‘ f? GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE; ) BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

' Ge I Counsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC
@ﬁ&/ A W/

\
')/6/[’?“[1& [ [ [
I

Award of Contract No. 15EJ-150 34.5 kV Cable Replacement A-Line ANA-ACO
Substations:

Originator/Prepared by: Victor Austria
3,
Dept: Maintentance & Engineering \

_ Mifﬂlgn for. Vigror Avsra

Signdture/Date: ‘ ’C { 26 [ ,7

PURPOSE:
To obtain the Board's authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No.15EJ-150

34.5 kV Cable Replacement A-Line ANA-ACO Substations, to Blocka Construction, Inc. in
the amount of $5,325,500.00.

DISCUSSION:
The 34.5 kV cables from substations ANA to ACO on the left cable circuit (ALC) are made

of Paper Insulated Pipe Enclosed (PIPE) Cables . These original cables dating back from the
construction of the BART aerial system on the A-Line are showing signs of circuit failure
due to the age of the PIPE cables. The cables are nitrogen pressured and are constantly
leaking increasing the rate of cable deterioration. These PIPE cables which are no longer

manufactured will be replaced with new technology cables made of Ethylene Propylene

Rubber (EPR) construction. They are state of the art, more reliable, and have anticipated
longer cable life. ‘

The scope of work of Contract No.15EJ-150 includes:

1. Demolition and disposal of the existing feeder cable system

2. Furnishing a raceway system, including associated support systems to comply with
BART seismic requirements, other supporting electrical equipment.

3. Installation of Isolation Disconnect Switches

4. Installation of District-furnished 34.5 kV feeder cables, and furnishing of cable splicing
materials and terminations

5. Testing and commissioning in service of the new cable system



15E1-150 34.5 kV Cable Replacement

Contract No. 15EJ-150 was advertised on July 1, 2016 in local publications and Contract
Books were sent to twenty-three (23) plans rooms. An Advanced Notice to Bidders was
sent on June 28, 2016 to One-Hundred Thirty-Six (136) prospective Bidders.

A pre-Bid meeting and site tour were held on Wed, July 13, 2016 and eight (8) prospective
Bidders attended the pre-Bid meeting and site tour. One (1) Addendum was issued

Six (6) bids were received and publically opened on August 2, 2016. A tabulation of the
Bids, including the Engineer’s Estimate, is as follows:

No. Bidder Location Tatal
I. Shimmick Construction Co., Inc. Oakland, CA

$4,842,000.00

2. Blocka Construction, Inc. Fremont, CA
$5,325,500.00

3. Bleyco , Inc. ~Castro Valley, CA
.$5,935,500.00

4, DMZ Builders Concord, CA
$6,090.000.00

5. Aldridge Electric, Inc. Libertyville,

IL, $8,776,500.00

6. Contra Costa Electric. Martinez, CA
$10,677,349.00

Engineer's Estimate
$8.535.000.00

Pursuant to the District’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”) Program, the Office
of Civil Rights reviewed the scope of work for this Contract and determined that there were
DBE subcontracting opportunities; therefore, a DBE participation goal of 15% was set. The
apparent low Bidder, Shimmick Construction Company, Inc., committed to 14.4% DBE
participation. Shimmick Construction Company, Inc., did not meet the DBE goal; therefore,
it was required to submit Good Faith Efforts documentation to the Office of Civil Rights.
The subsequent Good Faith Efforts analysis conducted by the Office of Civil Rights



15EJ-156 34.5 kV Cable Replacement

concluded that Shimmick Construction Company, Inc., did not demonstrate sufficient Good
Faith Efforts to meet the DBE goal, rendering the Bid non-responsive. At Shinmick
Construction Company, Inc.’s request, a Good Faith Efforts hearing was held on November
29,2016 before an independent hearing officer. The hearing officer upheld the findings of
the Office of Civil Rights that Shimmick Construction Company, Inc. neither met the DBE
goal nor demonsirated sufficient Good Faith Efforts to do so, therefore, rendering Shimmick
Construction Company, Inc.’s Bid non-responsive. The second lowest Bidder, Blocka
Construction, Inc., committed to subconiracting 16.6% to DBEs. The Office of Civil Rights
has determined that Blocka Construction, Inc., has met the DBE participation goal set for
this Contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $5,325,500 for the award of Contract# 15EJ-150 is included in the total project
budget for FMS #15EJ150 - 34.5K'VCable Between ANA and ACO. The Office
ofController/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet thisobligation. The
following table depictsfunding assigned to the referenced project and is included in totality to
trackfunding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be
expended from a combination ofthese sources as listed.

As of January 4, 2017, $10,434,144 is available for this project from the following sources:

Fund Number |Fund Description , Fund Source Ameunt
226E 1998 ST Rev Debt Sarv BART §11
2361 1808 5T Rev Debt Serv BART 28,162
A4 FTA CA-90-Y048-00 Federal . 250 400
47w FTA Grant No CA-03-0726 Federal 2443
47X FT& CA-03-0211-00FY 08 Federal 25400 |
347 FTA CA-BS-0216 90 TYO7 FG MOD Federal 115,596 |
332x CA-00-V330FVO5 Cap Assist Prg Faderal 104 648
353K CA-00-X447 FYOIPTSB&AER Federal f62 340
334G CA-20-Y604.FY08 Cap Assist Prg Faderal %14 000
3602 FY13 Cap Improve FG/ROGR 3337 Federal 1,800 000
3603 FY 14 Cap Improve BOGR 5337F Federal 4.844 000
6214 FM?Z - datch to 353G, 546G, 347 Regonal 111,000
6302 MTC B-TOLL ABG64 FY12-13 Regonal 40,299
£303 MTC B-TOLL ABGOY FY13-14 Regional 80000
830w FY00-06 Capital Allocation BART $,351
831W FY{7-11 Capital Allocation BART 420 285
8523 FY13 Capital Allocation BART 1,131 000




TETY 1en 0 L X] Molmle T3 pontorep o &
ISEJ-150 34.5 &V Celble Replacement

BART has expended $2,170,010 committed$407,845, and reserved $0 to-date for other
action. This action will commit §5,325,500 leaving anavailable fund balance of $2,530,789 in
this project.

There 1s no {iscal impacton available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE:

The Board may reject all Bids and re-advertise the work or reject all Bids and decline to re-
advertise the work. There is no assurance that a rebid would yield lower prices. Failure to
proceed with the Contract will result in increasing cable faults and increasing risk of 34.5 kV
supply loss to the area. By proceeding with the award the District would reduce its

operational risk since the cables should be replaced as soon as possible.

RECOMMENDATION:
It 1s recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTEON:
The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No.15EJ-150 34.5 k'V Cable

Replacement A-Line ANA-ACO Substations, to Blocka Construction, Inc. in the amount of
$5,325,500.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject io
compliance with the District’s Protest Procedure and FTA’s requirements related to protest

procedures.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

P s TAN 2oy 7 Approve and Forward to E & O Committee
DATE: 12/14/2016 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prepared by: Shirley Ng G| ’nel ounsel Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary

gl
Dept: Extensions \7\)
Wo |, e
A § E,,t
Signature/Date: \ /! *5 Y ti/%/
. H H
%%\/4/;’1 41 !l '; }H ] ]

Award of Contract No. 15LK-120, Escalator Renovation Project

PURPOSE:

To obtain the Board's authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. 15LK-120, Escalator
Renovation Project to Schindler Elevator Corporation (Schindler).
DISCUSSION:

Contract No. 15LK-120 provides for the design, furnishing, and installing of new or renovated (Truss-up)
escalators at various locations in BART stations. The work includes providing an inspection report of
existing trusses to be reused, new trusses at new escalators, all new parts as well as required
components and safety devices. This Confract consists of eight (8) base escalators (2 street and 6
platform) and 15 optional escalators (1 street, 2 new and 12 platform). The Contract also includes one
year of maintenance with an Option for an additional two-year maintenance period for each escalator.

This Contract was advertised in the Daily Construction Builder and the San Francisco Examiner on
September 2, 2016. Advance Notices were sent out to 74 companies with B-Licenses and 14
Elevator/Escalator companies. A pre-Bid meeting and site tour was conducted on September 22,
2016; with four (4) prospective Bidders attending. Two (2) Addenda were issued, one of which
extended the Bid due date to November 22, 2016 from the original Bid due date of October 25, 2016.
Over 60 questions were answered for this Contract and a total of 10 plan holders purchased Bid
Documents. One (1) Bid was received and opened publicly on November 22, 2016. Instructions to
Bidders specified that Bids will be evaluated on the basis of the Total Bid Price (Total Base Bid plus
Option bid). Schindler was the sole Bidder on this Contract. Staff is seeking authority to award the
Base Bid only at this time and may return for authority to exercise the Option at a later date.

The tabulation of the Price Bids, including the Option and the Engineer's Estimate are shown below.



Award of Contract No. 15L.K-120, Escalator Renovation Project

BIDDER LOCATION TOTAL BASE | TOTAL OPTION | TOTAL

BID BID

BID PRICE

Schindler San Leandro, CA $27,851,950 $40,126,774 $67,978,724
Elevator
Corporation
Engineer’s $17,415,263 $34,530,982 $51,946 246
Estimate

The apparent low Bid submitted by Schindler is approximately 31% above the Engineer's Estimate.
Polling was performed immediately following the Bid Opening requesting potential Bidders to explain
why they did not bid. Respondents acknowledged there were limited manufacturers who could comply
with BART's specifications and another failed to meet the Bid due date. Given the current business
activity in the Bay Area resulting in a shortage of certified conveyance mechanics, the limited number of
escalator manufacturers, and the risk to the manufacturer of replacing an unseen escalator, Staff

has determined that the Bid is fair and reasonable. A review of Schindler's business experience and
financial capabilities resulted in a determination that Schindler is a responsible Bidder.

District staff has determined that this work is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Section 15301,
Existing Facilities, because it consists of minor alterations of existing facilities involving no expansion of
use.

Pursuant to the District’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability Percentages
for this Contract are 23% for Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs) and 12% for Women Business
Enterprises (WBEs). Schindler, committed to 0% MBE and 0% WBE participation. Schindler, did not
meet either the MBE or WBE Availability Percentages; therefore, Schindler, was requested to provide
the Office of Civil Rights with supporting documentation to determine if it had discriminated on the basis
of race, national origin, color, gender or ethnicity. Based on the review of the information submitted by
Schindler, the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence of discrimination.

Pursuant to the District’'s Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set a 5%
Small Business (SB) Participation Goal for this Contract. Bidders who meet the SB Participation Goal
are eligible for a Small Business Preference of 5% of the lowest responsive Bidder's Bid. The Office of
Civil Rights determined that Schindler committed to subcontracting 1.9% to SBs. Schindler, did not
meet the SB Participation Goal and, therefore, is not eligible for the Small Business Preference.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $27,851,950 for the award of Contract No. 15LK-120 is included in the total Project budget
for FMS #15LK001 ~ Canopy/Escalators Replacement. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies
that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts funding assigned to
the referenced project and is included in totality to track funding history against spending authority.
Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from a combination of these sources as listed.

As of December 23, 2016, $43,702,547 is available for this project from the following sources:



Award of Contract No. 15LK-120, Escalator Renovation Project

Fund | Fund Description . Source | Amount .
535A FY10-11 Prop 1B - PTMISEA State $21,202,547
535B | FY14-15 Prop 1B - PTMISEA State $7,500,000
802A | 2017 Measure RR GOB BART $15,000,000
Total $43,702,547

BART has expended $1,770,157, committed $2,158,282, and reserved $4,444,910 to-date for
Contract No. 15LK-130. This action will commit $27,851,950 leaving an available fund balance of
$7,477,248 in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board may elect to reject the Bid and authorize staff to re-advertise the Contract. Re-advertising
the Contract would result in additional cost and time to the District with no assurance that rebidding will
result in lower Bid prices.

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:
MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No.15L.K-120, Escalator Renovation Project to
Schindler Elevator Corporation for the Bid Price of $27,851,950 pursuant to nofification to be issued by
the General Manager.



| EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

»'Z l g ‘U‘A-AJ ZG‘V Approve and Forward to E&O Committee
\ M ?cxwﬂs—*

DATE: 12/14/2016 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
!
Originator/Prepared by: Shirley Ng  General Counsel Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary
Dept: PD&C 3 !1 ,g")
il

“"‘-.1. ’z> | ; A
ignature/Date: ' ! | g
(\:fU%( 4l ‘/4“:%[ I !’ IS []
S ¥ ’

v

Award of Contract No. 15LK-130, Street Entry Canopy, Powell Street and Civic Center
Stations

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to Award Confract No. 15LK-130, Street Entry
Canopy, Powell Street and Civic Center Stations to SilMan Construction (SilMan).

DISCUSSION:

Contract No. 15LK-130 provides for the construction of two new street level canopies with an Option to

install a second canopy at the Powell Street Station. The work consists of off-site fabrication and the
“installation of a new support system for the canopy with a glass enclosure, new lighting system and light

fixtures and a real time display unit. The initial canopies are a pilot and further canopies along Market

Street in San Francisco will proceed incorporating lessons learned from this Contract.

The procurement for Contract No. 15LK-130 was undertaken as a two-step sealed Bid process by
which minimum technical requirements necessary for the performance of the work were evaluated by a
Selection Committee prior to the opening and disclosure of Price Bids. Price Bids for those determined
to be technically qualified to perform the work were publicly opened and publicly announced.

The Bid was advertised in various publications on August 29, 2016 with a Pre-Bid Meeting held on
October 17, 2016. An outreach meeting was held on November 2, 2016. The Bid Documents were
purchased by nine (9) prospective Bidders and distributed to 24 plan rooms. A total of one (1) Bid was
received on November 15, 2016 from SilMan Construction, San Leandro, CA. As part of the first step in
the two-step award process, the Selection Commitiee, composed of District and San Francisco Staff
evaluated the Technical Qualification Bid received to determine if it met the Minimum Technical
Requirements set forth in the Contract Documents on a pass/fail basis.

The Selection Committee determined that the Bid submitted by SilMan did meet the Minimum Technical
Requirements and SilMan was notified on November 22, 2016 of the time and place of the Price Bid
opening. On November 29, 2016, the sealed Price Bid was publically opened. The Instructions to
Bidders specified that Bids will be evaluated on the basis of of the Total Base Bid Price. The tabulation
of the Price Bids, including the Option and the Engineer’s Estimate are shown below.



Award of Contract No. 15LK-130 Street Entry Canopy, Powell and Civic Center

BIDDER LOCATION TOTAL BASE BID | OPTION
SilMan Construction San Leandro, CA $4,444 910 $1,693,229
Engineer’s Estimate $4,477,363 $1,885,321

After review, staff determined that the apparent low Bid submitted by SilMan is fair and reasonable
based on staff's independent cost estimate. A review of SilMan’s business experience and financial
capabilities resulted in a determination that SilMan is responsible.

District staff has determined that this work is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Section 15301,
Existing Facilities, because it consists of minor alterations of existing facilities involving no expansion of
use.

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability Percentages
for this Contract are 23% for Minority Business Enterprises (‘MBEs”) and 12% for Women Business
Enterprises (“WBEs”). SilMan committed to 61.7% MBE and 6.8% WBE participation. SilMan did not
meet the WBE Availability Percentage; therefore, SilMan was requested to provide the Office of Civil
Rights with supporting documentation to determine if it had discriminated on the basis of gender. Based
on the review of the information submitted by SilMan, the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence of
discrimination.

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set a 5%
Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses certified by the California
Department of General Services. The lowest responsive Bidder, SilMan, is not a certified Small
Business and, therefore, is not eligible for the 5% Small Business Prime Preference.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $4,444,910 for the award of Contract No. 15LK-130 is included in the total Project budget for
FMS #151.K001 ~ Canopy/Escalators Replacement. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that
funds are currently available fo meet this obligation. The following table depicts funding assigned to the
referenced project and is included in totality to track funding history against spending authority. Funds
needed to meet this request will be expended from a combination of these sources as listed.

As of December 23, 2016, $43,702,547 is available for this project from the following sources:

Fund | Fund Description Source | Amount

535A | FY10-11 Prop 1B - PTMISEA State $21,202,547
535B | FY14-15 Prop 1B - PTMISEA State $7,500,000
802A | 2017 Measure RR GOB BART $15,000,000
Total $43,702,547

BART has expended $1,770,157, committed $2,158,282, and reserved $27,851,950 to-date for
Contract No. 15LK-120. This action will commit $4,444,910 leaving an available fund balance of
$7,477,248 in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.



Award of Contract No. 15LK-130 Street Entry Canopy, Powell and Civic Center

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board may elect to reject the Bid and authorize staff to re-advertise the Contract. Re-advertising
the Contract would result in additional cost and time to the District with no assurance that rebidding will
result in lower Bid prices.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No.15LK-130, Street Eniry Canopy, Powell
Street and Civic Center Stations to SilMan Construction for the Bid Price of $4,444,910 pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager.

The General Manager is further authorized to exercise the Option subject to certification from the
Controller/Treasurer of funding availability.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 43 F ZO ( 7 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
i M. o
DATE: 12/19/2016 ) BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originater/Prepared by: Cristiano Torresi,\ %Gen{e 1 Counsel Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary
Dept: Rolling Stock and Shops \ 1 ; } /1
J | %‘ / t | ﬁ, ,

\ J i y A1l

K I 4 i
Signature/Date: { Lg(ﬂr\f 1’{7’3“{

/12/25//¢ ST a0 [ ]
T

Seole Source Contract with Wabtec Corporation - Yokes

PURPOSE: To request Board Authorization, in accordance with Public Contract Code Section
20227 to negotiate and execute a Sole Source Contract with Wabtec Corporation of Wilmerding,
PA, for the purchase of Coupler Yokes.

DISCUSSION: The District operates 669 revenue vehicles, each with 2 Coupler Yokes (except
the 59 A2 cars that have 1 standard Coupler Yoke and a smaller one on the front for towing
purposes). The Yoke is a component of the coupler and works in a system with other coupler
components to form an integrated coupler assembly. All coupler components on BART revenue
vehicles, including the Yoke, are designed, built, and supplied by the Wabtec Corporation. The
Yoke used on BART revenue vehicles is of a proprietary design unique to the Wabtec Corporation
and is the only coupler available that is operationally compatible with the fleet’s existing couplers.
This procurement is to provide for the supply of replacement Y okes for maintenance purposes.

Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20227, the Board may direct the purchase of any
supply, equipment or material without observance of competitive bidding upon a finding by two-
thirds of all members of the Board that there is only a single source of procurement and that the
purchase is for the sole purpose of duplicating or replacing equipment currently in use. Since the
Wabtec Yoke is the only available product that is compatible with the existing fleet and this
procurement is for the purchase of replacement Yokes, this Contract constitutes a sole source
procurement under Public Contract Code Section 20227.

The District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting Program is not applicable to sole
source contracts. Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business Enterprise
or Women Business Enterprise Availability Percentages for this Contract.

The Procurement Department will review the Contract to confirm compliance with the District's
procurement standards.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the Contract as to form.



Sole Source Contract with Wabtec Corporation - Y okes (cont.)

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for this Contract in the amount of $760,000 will be funded by the
Rolling Stock and Shops (RS&S) Maintenance Repalr and Other account (#680-230) as the parts
are ordered from inventory.

Expenditures for the out year portions of the Contract will be included in future RS&S operating
budgets which are subject to future Board approval.

ALTERNATIVE: The alternative is not to authorize the purchase. However, there are no other
sources of supply for these Yokes. Wabtec is the only company that can provide the product
needed. Thus, procuring this product through a competitive bidding process would only result in a
single Bid.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION: The Board finds, by a two-thirds majority vote pursuant to Public Contract Code
Section 20227, that Wabtec Corporation is the sole source supplier for the procurement of the
Coupler Yoke and that the purchase is for the sole purpose of duplicating or replacing equipment
already in use. The General Manager is authorized to enter into direct negotiations with Wabtec
Corporation to execute an agreement for the purchase of Yokes in an amount not-to-exceed
$760,000 including all taxes.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

/ 7 4 Ui@ﬁf ZO { ’7 Approve and forward to Board of Directors
DA!['E: 10/27/2016 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prepared by: Kevin Sanderson | G¢neral Counsel Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary

Dept: Planning, Development &

Constraiction

o e | | Ity W %@ | Wi
Signature/Date: /%G/@ YZ%{:’Z)//E} ClY @/’?) [ [ 1] [ 1

Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance
Facilities, Change Order No. 58, MCC and Mechanical Equipment Power

PURPOSE:

To authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 58 with Clark Construction to
Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities,

for revised motor control center (MCC) units and mechanical equipment power at the Component
Repair Shop, for an amount not to exceed $300,000.00.

DISCUSSION:

The Board of Directors authorized the award of Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance
Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, to Clark Construction on July 23, 2015, for the amount of
$98,390,000. The Contract will construct the new Component Repair Shop and add additional
vehicle lifts and associated utilities and trackwork at the existing Hayward Shop.

After award of the Contract, it was determined that there was inadequate design coordination
between mechanical and electrical disciplines, resulting in a requirement to modify the
configurations of the MCCs, variable frequency drives (VFDs), and motor starters associated with
the new Component Repair Shop mechanical equipment. Because this additional work is not
described in the Contract Documents, a change to the Contract is required. The estimated value of
this Change Order is an amount not-to-exceed $300,000.00.

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000
require Board approval. The Procurement Department will review this Change Order prior to
execution for compliance with procurement guidelines. The Office of the General Counsel will
approve the Change Order as to form prior to execution.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding for the total not to exceed amount of $300,000 for the award of Change Order No. 58 is ‘



Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, Change Order No. (cont.)

included in the total budget for 01RQO003, Hayward Maintenance Complex (HMC). The Office of
Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The
following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is included in totality to track
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended
from a combination of these sources as listed.

As of November 10, 2016, $125,097,958 is available for this project from the following sources:

dDescription. [ Source | Amownt
5602 High Speed Passenger Rail Bond State $63,389,000
8526 FY 14 Bart Operating Alloc to Capital | BART $2,477,367
8529 FY 15 Bart Operating Alloc to Capital BART $7,386,920
8530 FY16 Bart Operating Alloc to Capital BART $2,134,671
656K | VTA Local $49,710,000

BART has expended $36,409,447, committed $66,795,337, and reserved $0 to-date for other
action. This action will commit $300,000 leaving an available fund balance of $21,593,173 in this
project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of this Change Order. If this Change Order is
not approved, the mechanical equipment for the new Component Repair Shop will not operate
with incompatible electrical equipment.

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommend that the Board approve the following motion:

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 58, revised MCC units and

mechanical equipment power, to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project
Maintenance Facilities, with Clark Construction, for an amount not to exceed $300,000.00.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

ATTACHMENT #1

CONTRACT NO. 01RQ-110 CO No: 058
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

BACKGROUND

Name of Contractor:  Clark Construction Group
Contract No./NTP: 01RQ-110 / October 21, 2015
Contract Description: ~ Hayward Maintenance Complex Project — Maintenance Facilities

Percent Complete as of: 10/31/2016 - 30%

Dollars Percent Complete as of: 10/31/2016 - 38%

COST % of Award Cost_ Contract Amount
Original Contract Award Amount $98,390,000.00
Change Orders:

Other than Board Authorized C.O.s: 1% $655,553.14

Board Authorized Change Orders: 9% $902,000.00

This Change Order No. 58: 3% $300,000.00

Subtotal of all Change Order 1.9% $1,857,553.14 $1,857,553.14
Revised Contract Amount: $100,247,553.14
SCHEDULE

Original Contract Duration: 860 Days

Time Extension to Date: 29 Days

Time Extension Due to Approved COs: 29 Days

Revised Contract Duration: 889 Days

SUMMARY REASON FOR THIS CHANGE ORDER

Revised Motor Control Center (MCC) Units and Mechanical Equipment Power (RFI #443) due to
insufficient design coordination between mechanical and electrical disciplines.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

RAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 4 &4 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
VP 7 N @i i7 Approve and forward to Board of Directors

DATE: 10/28/2016 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Kevin Sanderson | Gengral Counsel Controller/Treasurer | District Secretary

Dept: Planning, Development &
Constructmn 1, 4
72 ~— /}« i W

Signature/ate: A//Z{’i//‘a CG/ (v

S
=
=
_—

—_ =

[1] [ ]

Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Maintenance Facilities,
Change Order No. 61.1, Switchboard "A" Secondary Electrical Feeders Replacement
in Hayward Main Shop

PURPOSE:

To authorize the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 61.1, with Clark Construction to
Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, for
switchboard "A" secondary electrical feeders replacement in the Hayward Main Shop, for an
amount not to exceed $900,000.00.

DISCUSSION:

The Board of Directors authorized the award of Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance
Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, to Clark Construction on July 23, 2015, for the amount of
$98,390,000. The Contract will construct the new Component Repair Shop and add additional
vehicle lifts and associated utilities and trackwork at the existing Main Shop.

After award of the Contract, it was determined that existing electrical feeders in the Main Shop
could not fit with the shape of the new Switchboard "A", and that a ductbank leading to
Switchboard "A" was in conflict with other work. This change reroutes electrical feeders overhead
to resolve fit and conflict issues. Because this additional work is not described in the Contract
Documents, a change to the Contract is required. The estimated value of this Change Order is an
amount not-to-exceed $900,000.00.

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000
require Board approval. The Procurement Department will review this Change Order prior to
execution for compliance with procurement guidelines. The Office of the General Counsel will
approve the Change Order as to form prior to execution.



Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Maintenance Facilities, Change Order No. 61.1, Sw (cont.)

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding for the total not to exceed amount of $900,000 for the award of Change Order No. 61.1 is
included in the total budget for 01RQ003, Hayward Maintenance Complex (HMC). The Office of
Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The
following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is included in totality to track
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended
from a combination of these sources as listed.

As of November 10, 2016, $125,097,958 is available for this project from the following sources:

5602 High Speed Passenger Rail Bond State $63,389,000

8526 FY 14 Bart Operating Alloc to Capital BART $2,477,367

8529 FY'15 Bart Operating Alloc to Capital BART $7,386,920

8530 FY 16 Bart Operating Alloc to Capital | BART $2,134,671
VTA

BART has expended $36,409,447, committed $66,795,337, and reserved $300,000 for CO #58.
This action will commit $900,000 leaving an available fund balance of $20,693,173 in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of this Change Order. If this Change Order is
not approved, existing conflicting underground conduit in the Hayward main shop will not be
removed and the new vehicle shop lifts will not be operable.

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommend that the Board approve the following motion:

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 61.1, switchboard "A" secondary
electrical feeders replacement in Hayward Main Shop, to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Hayward
Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance Facilities, for an amount not to excced $900,000.00.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

ATTACHMENT #1
CONTRACT NO. 01RQ-110

BACKGROUND

Name of Contractor:
Contract No./NTP:
Contract Description:

Percent Complete as of:

Dollars Percent Complete as of:

Clark Construction Group
0TRQ-110/ October 21, 2015
Hayward Maintenance Complex Project — Maintenance Facilities

10/31/2016 - 30%
10/31/2016 - 38%

CO No: 061.1

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

COST % of Award Cost_ Contract Amount
Original Cbntract Award Amount $98,390,000.00
Change Orders:

Other than Board Authorized C.O.s: 1% $655,553.14

Board Authorized Change Orders: 9% $902,000.00

This Change Order No. 61.1: 9% $900,000.00

Subtotal of all Change Order 2.5% $2,457,553.14 $2,457,553.14

Revised Contract Amount:

SCHEDULE

Original Contract Duration:
Time Extension to Date:

Time Extension Due to Approved COs:

Revised Contract Duration:

SUMMARY REASON FOR THIS CHANGE ORDER

$100,847,553.14

860 Days
29 Days
29 Days
889 Days

Switchboard “A” Secondary Electrical Feeders Replacement in Hayward Main Shop

The basic reason for change is due to the discovery of unknown ductbanks in conflict with the new
turntable and car lift work along Track MR3. It was also decided by the District to replace the existing
feeders as a preventative maintenance measure for power distribution at the Shop.



foi

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and forward to Board .

GENERAL ER APPROVAL:

Originator/Prepared by: Susan Shaffer General C; nm:,

Dept: Real Estate and Property Devejopment f; [* \ i
(- RO

SignatureiDate: g / = / 11 3 f&i _3}1 | !

DATE: 11/18/2016 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Conftroller/Treasurer, District Secretary

fnldy

//{//:7’ L ¥

Metro Center Leases with Asian Health Services and East Bay Asian Local Development Corporation

PURPOSE: To request the Board of Directors to authorize the General Manager or her designee to execute
leases with Asian Health Services (AHS) and the East Bay Asian Local Development Corporation (EBALDC)
for space at the Joseph P. Bort Metro Center Building (the “Metro Center”), 101 8" Street, Oakland, California.
The leases, which relate to portions of the first floor of the Metro Center, would be executed after BART takes
title to the condominium interests in the Metro Center currently held by the Metropolitan Transportation
Commission (MTC) and the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG).

DISCUSSION: BART currently holds condominium ownership interest in approximately 33% of the Metro
Center, with MTC and ABAG owning the remainder of the building. MTC and ABAG purchased a replacement
building in San Francisco and completed their move to the new building in Spring 2016. Consistent with the
Board’s authorization, BART is in the process of purchasing MTC’s and ABAG’s interests. Escrow is expected
to close on this transaction in February/March, 2017.

EBALDC and AHS are local non-profit entities that have historically provided a community benefit to the Lake
Merritt station area and greater Oakland Chinatown community. Pursuant to direction from the Board, BART
has been actively discussing leases of portions of the Metro Center with both non-profit groups. Staff has
recently completed initial lease negotiations and EBALDC and AHS have each executed a nonbinding Letter of
Intent (LOI) that address the proposed leases. The leases would commence after BART closes escrow on the
condominium interests.

The LOI for AHS relates to Suite 100, the office space previously used by ABAG, consisting of approximately
14,908 square feet (s.f.) as well as the Library space consisting of approximately 2,336 s.f. for a total of 17,244
s.f. AHS will use the space for the performance of administrative services. The spaces will be delivered “as-is”
with no tenant improvement allowance offered. Rent will start at $2.85 per s.f., inclusive of operating,
maintenance and utility costs, and net of janitorial service. The first two months would be rent-free. The initial
lease term would be sixty-two months, commencing approximately two weeks after escrow closes, with an
annual rent increase of three percent (3%) each year thereafter. Subject to nine months’ prior written notice to
BART, AHS would have two renewal options of one year each, with continued 3% annual rent increases. BART
may rescind these renewal rights only if it plans to redevelop the property.

The LOI for EBALDC relates to the Metro Center’s cafeteria space, consisting of approximately 3,119 s.f.. This
space would be used to operate a cafeteria/restaurant. Initial rent would be $1.85 per s.f., inclusive of operating,
maintenance and utility costs, and net of janitorial services. The first three months would be rent-free. The
property would be delivered in “as-is” condition with no tenant improvement allowance offered. The initial
term, annual rent increases and the renewal options are the same as for the AHS lease discussed above.

The tenants will need to procure their own janitorial services. Both leases will allow the tenants the right to



Metro Center Leases with Asian Health Services and East Bay Asian Local Development Corporation

assign or sublease all or part of their respective premises subject to BART’s prior written consent. EBALDC
intends to sublease the cafeteria to another entity that will operate a restaurant in the space. This entity may
desire to sell beer and wine. The proposed lease for the cafeteria space would permit the sale of beer and wine,
provided that the subtenant obtains all necessary permits and licenses to do so.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve both leases as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT: The AHS lease will generate approximately $491,000 and the EBALDC lease will generate
approximately $52,000 (total of $543,000) in revenue during the first twelve months of the respective leases.
Over the five-year terms for each lease, the leases are expected to generate approximately $3,600,000 in
revenue. The rents collected will offset approximately 33% of the annual costs of operating, maintaining and
providing utilities to the Metro Center.

Total Lease Revenues
FY17  FYI8§  FY19  FY20  FY2i  FY22 | Totals- | FY23  Fy24 Total
Year Option  Option Option
Lease Year Year Term
Term
AHS $98.291 $595,642 $613,512 $631917 $650,874 $670,401 [ $3,260,636 | $690,513 $711,228 | $1,401,741
EBALDC _ $11,540 $69,934 $72,032 $74,193 $76419 $78,712| $382,831| $81073 $83.505| $164,578
Total Revenues $109,831 $665,576 $685,544 $706,110 $727,293 $749,112 | $3,643,467 | $771,586 $794,733 | $1,566,319
ALTERNATIVES: Reject one or both leases and either renegotiate different terms, or not lease at all to one or

both of the proposed tenants. Failure to enter into lease agreements with AHS and EBALDC would result in
BART bearing the full cost of operating, maintaining and providing utilities to the Metro Center, and would result
in the elimination of a community benefit to the Lake Merritt Station area and greater Oakland Chinatown
community.

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the following motion:

MOTION: The General Manager or her designee is authorized to complete negotiations and execute the
following lease agreements relating to space on the first floor of the Joseph P. Bort Metro Center Building, 101
8" Street, Oakland, California and to take any other actions necessary in connection with the execution of said
lease agreements:

1) Lease Agreement with Asian Health Services for the Suite 100 space of approximately 14,908 s.f. and
the Library space of approximately 2,336 s.f., and

2) Lease Agreement with East Bay Asian Local Development Corporation for the cafeteria space of
approximately 3,119 s.f.




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: BART Board DATE: January 6, 2017
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: Regional Measure 3 Update

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is sponsoring legislation in 2017 to
authorize MTC to place on the ballot a measure asking Bay Area voters to approve a bridge toll
increase for the seven Bay Area state-owned toll bridges to fund congestion relief, rail
connectivity, and improved mobility in the bridge corridors. This would be known as Regional
Measure 3 (RM3). MTC staff expects the legislation, to be authored by Assemblyman Jim
Frazier (Oakley), to include a detailed expenditure plan of projects, as was done in developing
Regional Measures 1 (1988) and 2 (2004). In addition, it is likely that a Bay Area legislative
select committee will be created to solicit agency and public input on the measure. MTC seeks
to pass this bill in 2017 so that a measure could be placed on either the June 2018 primary, or the
November 2018 general election ballot. The bridge toll revenue provides a benefit to those
paying the user fees (i.e., toll bridge users) or mitigates for the activity associated with the fees,
Because it is proposed as a user fee, rather than a tax, such a measure would require a simple
majority vote, rather than the two-thirds required for tax measures.

In order to better understand the process and timeline for RM3, BART invited MTC staff to
make a brief presentation to the BART Board. As background, enclosed are three attachments
presented at the MTC Commission Workshop on Dec., 14, 2016.
A. Map showing major investments included in Regional Measures 1 (RM1) and 2 (RM2).
B. Key Policy Considerations, as proposed by MTC.
C. Charts illustrating shares of revenues by bridge corridor, revenue generated by county of
residence, and county voters.

BART staff will return to the Board in February to begin the discussion of principles and
prioritized projects.

| » Grace Crunican




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors DATE: January 6, 2017
FROM: District Secretary

SUBJECT: Proposed Revision to Rules of the Board of Directors: Chapter III, Section 3.
Committees

The attached document is a Board Rules revision initially proposed by President Saltzman and
presented for discussion at the December 15 Regular Board Meeting. President Saltzman
subsequently recommends the proposed revisions be adopted and implemented temporarily from
February through June 2017. The Board of Directors would reconsider adoption of the proposed
revisions at the June 22 Regular Board Meeting. .

The proposal may affect several subsections of the Rules of the Board of Directors: Chapter III
Board Meetings and Committees, Section 3. Committees (attached) including:

3-3.1 Number

3-3.2 Recording of Committee Meetings

3-3.3 Membership

3-3.4 Attendance at Meetings

3-3.6 Nature and Responsibilities of Committees
3-3.7 Functions of the Standing Committees

Should the Board permanently adopt the proposed revisions, staff.will conform the applicable
Board Rules sections. Please contact the General Manager if you require any additional
information. A

.”/'/ {15
A AN é‘i S N

Kenneth A. Dufon

Attachments

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Acting Deputy General Manager

MOTION:

The Board of Directors adopts the proposed Board Rules revisions to the Rules of the Board of
Directors: Chapter III Board Meetings and Committees, Section 3. Committees (attached) for the
period of February through June 2017.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
To:  Board of Directors Date: December 9, 2016
From: District Secretary

Re:  Proposed Revision to Rules of the Board of Directors: Chapter I1I, Section 3. Committees

The attached document is a Board Rules revision proposed by Director Saltzman and presented
for discussion.

The proposal may affect several subsections of the Rules of the Board of Directors: Chapter III
Board Meetings and Committees, Section 3. Committees (attached) including:

3-3.1 Number

3-3.2 Recording of Committee Meetings

3-3.3 Membership

3-3.4 Attendance at Meetings

3-3.6 Nature and Responsibilities of Committees
3-3.7 Functions of the Standing Committees

Staff has not completed review of other Board Rules sections for potential impacts.

Should you require any additional information, please contact th¢ General Counsel or me at your
earliest convenience.

Kenneth A. Duron

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager



Proposal Objective

This proposal seeks to make more efficient use of Directors’ and staff’s time, generate more Board
consensus, and give clearer direction to staff. It also seeks to facilitate the Board, as a whole, meeting its
responsibilities to the district and the public. Toward this objective, this proposal includes
recommenda tions for an updated committee structure. The proposed committee structure should
facilitate more detailed policy discussion which will free Board meeting time for higher level discussion
and remove most policy development from the RCI process. '

Proposed Committee Structure
The Board shall have four standing committees as follows in order to provide the opportunity for
Directors to work through the majority of policy issues and concerns prior to full Board meetings:

1. Finance, Budget & Bond Oversight

e Budget
e Financial Planning & Policy
e Audit

e Fares & Revenue
e Bond Oversight

2. Administration, Workforce & Legislation
Board Rules

Board Technology

Workforce

Administration

Legislation

¢ ¢ 6 o ©

3. Operations & Safety
e Operations
e Rider experience
e Police

Safety & Security

4. Planning

e Planning
Real Estate
Stations
Station Access
System Expansion
Sustainability

@ @ © ©

Committee Agendas: ltems may be placed on a Committee Agenda by a Board Appointed Officer, with
~ the consent of the Committee Chair, or by two members of the committee. Questions about which
Committee has jurisdiction of a particular item shall be resolved by the President of the Board of
Directors. Committee agendas shall be posted with the same notice as Board agendas.



Committee Membership: Each Director shall be a member of two committees, except the President and
Vice-President who shall be a member of one committee. Directors shall submit their Committee
preferences to the Board President. The Board President shall make committee assignments taking into
account Director preferences. Each Committee shall have four members.

Agendizin&tommittee items to Board: Items that receive at least three affirmative votes in committee
shall be forwarded to the full Board for consideration a full Board meeting.

Bypassing Committees: No action item that falls under the jurisdiction of a committee, other than
procurement and contracting, shall come before the full Board of Directors without receiving at least
three votes in Committee unless one of the following conditions is met:
o The General'Manager and the President together determine that an item requires the timely
attention of the board.
o At least three Directors ask the President to bring the item before the full Board.

Committee Meeting Schedule: ,
Board committees shall meet once a month for up to two hours on a regular to be determined schedule.
The committee meetings shall take place in the board room, with audio recording.

Committee Chairs: The President shall appoint Committee chairs and vice-chairs. The Committee chairs
shall be responsible for the orderly functioning of their committees.




BOARD RULES _ CHAPTER I}

329

3-2.10

3-2.11

Pledge of Allegiance
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag shall be made at meetings of the Board.
Reading of Resolutions

It shall be unneceésary for the District Secretary to read aloud any portion of a
written resolution submitted to the Board for actnon in the absence of a request
by a Director for such a reading.

Display of Electronic Voting

Votes taken using electronic voting system shall display the vote only after all
Directors have completed voting. Votes taken in compliance with Brown Act
requirements (i.e. roll call vote for teleconferenced meetmg) are exempt from
this rule.

New Rule, Adopted
March 10, 2016

SECTION 3. COMMITTEES

3-3.1

Number

Committees of the Board shall consist of the‘following:
(a)  Standing Committees:
| (1)  Administration.
(2)  Engineering and Operations.
(3)  Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation.
(b)  Special Committees:
Such special COmmitiees as may be authorized by the Board from time to
time. A special committee shall cease to exist when the Board determines
that the committee is no longer needed.
Special Committees shall adhere to the Brown Act.

Special Committeés shall be noticed 72 hours in advance.

L 4A



BOARD RULES - CHAPTER 1l

3-3.2

3-3.3

AII agendas will be dlstnbuted posted and pubhshed on-line before the
meetmg

The meetings will normally be held in the BART Board Room, Kaiser
Center 20" Street Mall, 344 20" Street, Third Floor, at 9:00 a.m. on the
first Thursday of each month, unless otherwise directed by the
Chairperson.

Materials provided to members in advance of the meeting will be available
on the District's website at www.bart.gov. Materials distributed at the
meeting will be made available to the public during the meeting and by
request to the District Secretary following the meeting.

Special committee meetings shall be recorded and such recordings shall
be available through the District Secretary's office.

Revised and Adopted
July 23, 2015

(c)  Ad Hoc Committees:

The Board may create such Ad Hoc Committees as it deems necessary
and proper. ltis the intent of the Board that such Ad Hoc Committee
meetings be open to the public and noticed as such in a manner
consistent with the Brown Act.
' ‘ New Rule, Adopted
July 23, 2015

Recording of Committee Meetings

The District shall record all meetings of committees except portions not open to
the public. Such recordings shall be available through the District Secretary’s
Office. Recording method (i.e.: audio, video, minutes, notes, etc.) may be |
determined by staff supporting the committee.

New Rule, Adopted
March 10, 2016

Membership
The President shall make appointments to all Committees and designate the

Chairperson and Vice Chairperson thereof. Any appointment by the President of
any Committee or liaison member or Committee Chairperson or Vice

-13

s



" BOARD RULES CHAPTER Iii

Chairperson of ‘any Committee shall be ratified by a majority vote of all members
of the Board. Such appointments shall be submitted directly to the Board for

ratification.
Revised and Adopted

July 23, 2015

(@) The Administration, Engineering and Operations, and Planning, Public
Affairs, Access, and Legislation Committees shall be composed of three
(3) members. No business of these Committees shall be conducted
unless a quorum of the Committee is present. A quorum of the
Administration, Engineering and Operations, and Planning, Public Affairs,
Access, and Legislation Committees shall be two (2) members of the

Committee. ,
Revised and Adopted

June 23, 2011

3-3.4 Attendance at Meetings

All Board members are authorized to be compensated in accordance with
Resolution Nos. 4739 and 5044 for attendance at Board, standing and special

committee meetings.
Revised and Adopted

March 13, 2008

No Director shall be compensated for a meeting from which the Director was
absent while on official District business unless that Director provides a timely,
brief written explanation of the official business conducted to the District
Secretary. ,

' New Rule, Adopted
‘November 19, 1998

“For purposes of this Rule, “official District business” shall mean acting in one’s
capacity as Director on behalf of the District. Examples of official District
business include, but are not limited to: meeting with legislators and other public
officials and their representatives on matters concerning the District; making or
attending presentations on behalf of the District; traveling to and attending other
meetings as District representatives; and participating in activities related thereto.

New Rule, Adopted
January 28, 1999



BOARD RULES | CHAPTER 1if

3-3.5 Term of Office

The term of office for members of the committees shall be from the date of
appointment until their successors are appointed. It is understood that the
committees are reappointed annually, following the election of officers.
Whenever a vacancy occurs on a standing or special committee, the President
shall make either a temporary or a permanent appointment to fill the vacancy,

subject to Board ratification.
' Revised and Adopted

June 11, 1998
3-3.6 Nature and Responsibilities of Committees
(@) - All.Committees are advisory only.

(b)  Tape recordings shall be kept of each committee meeting. These tapes
will be available for listening by each Director or member of the publlc
through the District Secretary's Office.

(c) Committees may initiate consideration of any problem or measure relating
to the general or specific functions assigned to that committee.

(d) Matters coming to committees which require action by the Board of
Directors may be recommended to the Board by the vote of a majority of
the committee members present at a committee meeting. If a matter
receives a tie vote in a committee, it shall be forwarded to the Board
without recommendation from the committee.

(e)  Atthe request of three Directors, any matter will be placed directly on the
agenda of an upcoming regular Board Meeting regardless of whether it
has been assigned to a specific committee, provided applicable meeting
notice and agenda requirements are met. Similarly, at the request of three
Directors, any topic will be scheduled for a Board workshop, provided
applicable meeting notice and agenda requirements are met. Such
requests shall be directed to the Secretary. "

Revised and Adopted
June 23, 2011

3-3.7 Functions of the Standing Committees
(@)  Administration Committee

This committee shall make recommendations to the‘ Board concerning the
following subjects:

M-15



BOARD RULES

(b)

SO ONORE W

CHAPTER I

Financial planning and budgets.
Insurance.

Personnel.

Employee relations.

Supply.

Rules of the Board of Directors.
General policy.

Real estate, except space acquisition.
Audit review.

0.  Strategic funding initiatives.

1 Small/Minority/Women owned Businesses.

To aid Directors in undertaking and fulfiling their responsibilities for
financial reporting to the general public, the Administration Committee will,
periodically, convene as a special Audit Review Group. Meetings of this
group may be called by the Chairperson or any members of the
Administration Committee. -

When acting in this capacity, the group will recommend to the full Board
the appointment of independent outside auditors. They shall also review
the annual financial statements of the District prior to their submission to
the Board of Directors and may examine and consider such other matters
in relation to the internal and external audit of the District's accounts and
in relation to the financial affairs of the District and its accounts as the
group may, in its discretion, determine to be desirable.

Engineering and Operations Committee

This committee shall make recommendations to the Board concerning the
following subjects:

Engineering and construction.

Space acquisition.

Transportation service planning and operations.
Equipment and communications facilities.
Maintenance.

Research and deve!opment

Physical design.

Safety, security and emergency management
Sustainability and “Green” initiatives.

©CXNOO BN =



BOARD RULES

(c)

CHAPTER Ili

Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation Committee

This committee shall make recommendations to the Board concerning the
following subjects:

CONDDOR LN =

Public information.
Passenger information.
Advertising.

Marketing.

Public relations.
Legislation.

Station access.

Station area development.
Strategic planning.

Strategic planning issues addressed by this committee shall concern
the followang subjects

1.

2.

Approach, direction and roles for the strategic plan process.
Responsibilities and tasks for subcdmmittees, task forces or work
groups, as needed, to further the development of and updates to the
strategic plan.

Review and revision of BART’s mission and objectives, as needed.

Identification of key issues and strategies to respond to changing
conditions and needs in the futu_re as related to the strategic plan.

Develop strategies that define how BART will realize its mission and
achieve its vision of the future.

Review the BART strategic plan on at least an annual basis.

Revised and Adopted
June 23, 2011

-17




Title VI Civil Rights Program
2016 Triennial Update

January 12, 2017
BART Board of Directors






Background

e General Program Requirements
* Notification to Beneficiaries of Protections under Title VI
e Title VI Complaint Procedures and Complain Form
e Recording and Reporting of Title VI Investigations, Complaints, and Lawsuits
* Promoting Inclusive Public Participation
e Providing Meaning Access to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons
* Minority Representation on Planning and Advisory Bodies
e Assisting and Monitoring Subrecipients

e Requirements and Guidelines for Fixed Route Transit Providers
e Collection and Reporting of Demographic Data
e System-Wide Service Standards and Policies
* Monitoring Transit Service
e Major Service Change Policy
* Disparate Impact and Disproportionate Burden Policy
e Equity Analysis of Service and Fare Changes





5 General Requirements:

Meaningful Access to LEP Persons

Limited English Proficient (LEP) persons are individuals for whom
English is not their primary language and who have a limited ability to
read, write, and speak, or understand English.

BART defines its LEP population as those persons who reported in the
2010 census that they speak English “less than very well.”

BART’s 4 county service area LEP population is 720,062, or 18.2 %.

Top languages spoken in the service area
Spanish Chinese

On-going Language Assistance Measures
e Translation and Interpretation Services Vendor
* Translation of Ticket Vending Machines at new stations





e e ]| Service Standards & Policies

Proposed Vehicle Load Standard /Passengers Per Car (PPC)

2013 Program

Period of Service
Load Standard

2016 Program
Proposed Load Standard

AM/PM Peak Period/
Peak Direction

100 PPC

Off-Peak 63 PPC

115 PPC

80 PPC

Proposed On-time Performance Standard

Train On-Time Performance 2013 Program
Goal

2016 Program
Proposed Goal

Goal 94%

92%






e e ]| Service Monitoring Results: Vehicle Load

Three Year Summary of Peak Vehicle Load Levels by Line (3 Hr. Peak)
Load Standard = 100 PPC

Low- 3 year
Line Station Range Minority | Income | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 avg.
el v | ve | 106 | 16 | 17 | u3
Yellow | Pitts/BayPoint to SFO No No 102 109 106 106
Yes Yes 98 108 107 104
Yes Yes 88 96 105 96
Yes Yes 75 76 76 76
Protected Line 92 99 101 97
Non Protected Line 102 109 106 106
% Difference Protected vs. Non-Protected -8.56

* No disparate impact or disproportionate burden found 5





e e ]| Service Monitoring Results: Vehicle Load

Three Year Summary of Off-Peak Vehicle Load Levels by Line
Load Standard = 63 PPC

Low- 3 year
Line Station Range Minority | Income | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 avg.
Yellow | Pitts/BayPoint to SFO No No 45 48 43 45
Yes Yes 42 46 41 43
Yes Yes 36 40 36 37
Yes Yes 34 38 37 36
Yes Yes 25 26 22 24
Protected Line 34 38 34 35
Non Protected Line 45 48 43 45
% Difference Protected vs. Non-Protected -28.61

* No disparate impact or disproportionate burden found





k5 Service Monitoring Results:

Vehicle Headway

Three Hour AM Peak Inbound Passengers per Train

- Average
AM Peak Base Additional Total
. . . Base . Passengers per
Line Ridership Headways ] “Rush Trains )
Trains . Train
(max load pt.) Trains”

Green 13,142 15 min 12 12 1095
Orange 5,813 15 min 12 12 484
Yellow 24,414 15 min 12 12 24 1017

Total 65,611 60 12 72 911
Protected

) 41,197 48 0 48 858
Lines
Non-

Protected 24,414 12 12 24 1017
Lines

% Difference Protected vs. Non-Protected -19%

* No disparate impact or disproportionate burden found






k5 Service Monitoring Results:

Vehicle Headway

Three Hour PM Peak Outbound Passengers per Train

. Average
PM Peak Base Additional Total
. . . Base y . Passengers per
Line Ridership Headways . Rush Trains ]
Trains . Train
(max load pt.) Trains”

Green 12,447 15 min 12 12 1037
Orange 6,266 15 min 12 12 522
Yellow 24,676 15 min 12 13 25 987

Total 66,263 60 13 73 908
Protected

] 41,587 48 0 48 866
Lines
Non-

Protected 24,676 12 13 25 987
Lines

% Difference Protected vs. Non-Protected -14%

* No disparate impact or disproportionate burden found






k5 Service Monitoring Results:

On-time Performance

Train On-Time Performance by Line

Line 2014 2015 2016 Average
Orange 92.90% 91.50% 92.10% 92.20%
Green 92.20% 87.10% 92.70% 90.70%
Yellow 89.60% 83.60% 86.80% 86.70%
Average 91.94% 87.34% 90.40% 89.90%

Goal 94.00% 94.00% 94.00%

Protected

) 92.53% 88.28% 91.30% 90.70%

Lines

Non-

Protected 89.60% 83.60% 86.80% 86.70%

Lines

% Difference Non-Protected vs Protected -4.61%

No disparate impact or disproportionate burden found






k5 Service Monitoring Results:

Transit Amenities

Transit Amenities Analysis of Station Pairs

Non-Protected

# of Categories with Less

Station Pair Protected Station . Amenities at Protected
Station .
Station
1 San Leandro Rockridge 5
2 Bay Fair Walnut Creek 8
3 Union City (minority) El Cerrito Plaza 4
4 South Hayward Orinda 3
5 South San Francisco Lafayette 5
6 Pittsburg/Bay Point Concord 5
7 Colma (minority) North Berkeley 3
2 12t St/Oakland City | Downtown Berkeley 1
Center
Average 4.25

10






 The Board of Directors approve the District’s Title VI Civil Rights
Program 2016 Triennial Update.

11






Adoption of Disparity Study Findings
and Recommendations and DBE
Program Update

Board of Directors
January 12, 2017






Why Conduct The Study

e Recipients of US Department of Transportation
funding are required to conduct a disparity study to
ensure that a race based program is narrowly
tailored and its application is limited to those
specific groups that have actually suffered
discrimination or its effects

e Disparity studies also support other BART programs
e Non Discrimination Program for Subcontracting
e Small Business Program

e The Board last adopted disparity study findings in
April 2009






Race and Gender Neutral Efforts

e In addition to race and gender conscious DBE goals on construction
contracts, the District has utilized race and gender neutral efforts:

Pre-bid conferences and matchmaking sessions, as well as outreach to
increase the pool of available small businesses including DBEs

Small Business Supportive Services to improve small businesses'
ability to successfully execute their contracts and build capacity

Small Business Bonding Assistance Program

Contract unbundling to create additional opportunities for small
businesses

DBE Program Small Business Elements utilizes micro small business set
asides and small business goals

Small Business Program for non-federally funded contracts which
utilizes bid preferences





Disparity Study Findings

 Miller3 Consulting was awarded an Agreement to
conduct a Disparity Study in April 2015
 The Disparity Study findings support:
e Continuation of race and gender conscious DBE goals in
construction
 Establishment of race and gender conscious DBE goals in:
 Architecture and Engineering (A&E)
e Professional Services
e Other Services (e.g., temporary help services, graffiti

removal, etc.)
e Procurement of Goods





lx] Disparity Study Recommendations

e Recommendations fall into three primary areas:

Internal business process changes

e Improve transparency and accountability

Proactively address need for expanded growth opportunities

e  Program refinements to improve D/M/WBE and SB participation
and inclusion

Technological enhancements

e Implement Diversity Management Software

e Complete implementation of Vendor Portal

e Leverage IT to support improved communication and to develop
dashboards

Increase reliance on analysis and forecasting to improve

opportunities for small businesses
e Create Contracting Plan Committee
* Increase prime opportunities for small businesses






‘oo DBE Program Changes

Utilize DBE goals when subcontracting opportunities are present on
USDOT-funded contracts

Count DBE participation on multiple tiers of subcontracting

DBE primes count towards the DBE contract goal only in construction
DBE contract goal must be met through the participation of DBE
subcontractors in A&E, professional services, other services, and
procurement of goods. DBE primes in these categories will only count
towards the District's Triennial DBE goal

Increase Micro Small Business Entity (MSBE) set-aside threshold:
e Construction from S2M to $S3M
* Professional Services including Architecture and Engineering from $3M to S6M
e Add self-performance requirement to MSBE set aside contracts

Develop Mentor-Protégé Program to increase the capacity of DBEs
Ensure utilization of listed DBEs through the implementation of non-
payment enforcement mechanism





oo ] Staff Recommendation

e Adopt the study findings and recommendations that
support continuation of race and gender conscious goals
for construction contracts and reestablishment of race

and gender conscious contract goals for:
e Architecture and Engineering
e Professional Services
e Other Services
* Procurement

 Approve changes to the DBE Program





That the Board adopts the attached Resolution and
Findings; approves the modifications to the Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise Program (DBE); and delegates to the

General Manager the authority to approve the DBE
Program documents






ATTACHMENT A

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE
PROGRAM

Submitted To
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION
REGION NINE
211 MAIN STREET, ROOM 1122
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 12, 2017

Revised 01/12/17






V.

VI.
VII.
VIIL.

StatEMENT OF POLICY c.uuiieeiiiieiiiiieiriieicrteeereeereteereeneereaseetensesenssressesenssesenssessnsesssnnens 4

[0 =T 4 1Y 4
P oY o] [Tor=] o 1 1 4V Uy 5
Responsibility for DBE Program Implementation and Administration ....................... 5
A = To T T o D1 g Yot e -SSR 5
S I T Y=Y = 1 Y o o - =Y SRR 6
C.  Office of CiVil RIGNES ..eviiiiiieeecee e e e e e e 6
D. Procurement and Materials Management .......ccccoccveeviriiieeenniieee e esreee e 7
E. Office of the General COUNSEl.........coooeiiiiiiiiee e 7
F. Board Appointed Officers, Executive Officers, Department Managers and District
] =) i PR PPRPRN 7
G. Business AdViSOry COUNCIl.....cccuuuiiiiiiiiiieieiieieeescitee st et e e e e e e e e saee e e s e araeeeenas 7
H. American Public Transportation Association's Diversity Council and the
Conference of Minority Transportation Officials.......ccccccevevivviieieiniiiee e 8
PR 0 4 o1 o TU T £ o 1T Yo T o VRSP 8
Administrative ReqUIrEmMENtS ......cccceveeiiieniiieeiiieeicteecereencereserenseeresserensessensessnssesens 8
A.  DBE Financial INStItULIONS ......uviiiieiiiii ittt e e e re e e 8
B.  CUCP DBE DirCEONY cooeeeeee et s e 8
ORI @ 1V7=1 ¢ ofo ] o Tol=T 0} { -1 f (o] o H PP 9
D. Race and Gender Neutral Efforts to Attain DBE Goals ........ccoccvvveivviveeecniiieeeeee, 9
E. DBE Program Small Business Elements.......cccccueeeeviiiieiiniiiee e 10
e B 1= S O TV =TTl o SRR 10
G.  SUPPOrtive SErvices Program .........uuuuueuuiuiuiuriiiruieriieiririeieieieerer——————. 10
H.  Mentor-Protégeé Program ...........ueeeeiieiieiiiiiee ettt e e sevrtre e e e e e e nnaees 11
T o oE [T =@ ol Y OSSR 11
J. Unified Certification Program .......ccccoccciiiiiiee et raen e e 11
K. Transit Vehicle Manufacturer Certification ........ccoocccviiiiiiiii e, 11
L. Caltrans Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program........ccccccceevvvvveeeeeeeecccnnnnnen, 11
Triennial DBE GOQlS ....cc.ciieeiiiieiiiieiiiieiiiiiieieeerineserenssesenssssessesenssssnnsessnssessnsssssnnans 12
Contract-Specific DBE GOalS.....cccccieuiiiimiiiieiiiiiicriieieeinieeenenssensnsessnesesenssessasessnnes 12
DBE Eligibility ..ccceuniiiiieeiiiieiiiiiiiieicinneeeccerrene e ssenns e s s senssessennsssssesnnsssssennsssssannnnes 13
A. Disadvantaged Busingss ENterpriSe .....ccoveeiiiieiiciiiiieie e ee e 13
B.  SMall BUSINESS CONCEIN oottt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e nr e e e e e e e s e e annneeens 13
C. Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals..........ccccceevieiiiiiiiieneeennnes 13
D. Personal Net WOIrth ...t e e e e e e 14
E. Non-Residence CertifiCation ........cccuveeiciiiie i 14
Procedures to Ascertain Eligibility and Utilization of DBES.......ccccccceereeeereencerennennes 15
A, DBE CertifiCation ..u.uiicceiee ettt e e e ee e 15
B,  TermMiNatioN .o 15
C. Remedies for Non-ComplianCe ......ccuveeeieeiiiiiiiiiieiiee et eeeeearree e e e e eans 16
D. Counting and Tracking DBE PartiCipation ......cccccccoeeeeuvrveereeeeeeiecirreeeee e e eeennnneee 16
Required Contract ProviSiONs......c.ccceceereeniereenereennerenseerenseerenseesnsessessessassessasesssnsesees 17
A, Nondiscrimination ASSUIANCE .....ccuuuieeeriiieeeeeiieeeeesireeeeeeteeeeeesareeesssaaeesssnsaeeaaans 17





Xl.

Xil.

Xill.

XIV.

B. Prompt Payment Policy and ProviSions .........eeeeviieccciiiieeeeeeeeccciieeeee e 18

Contract Compliance and RepOrting.....cc.cccecviiieeiiiiniiiiniiiniiiinninieinenensens 19
S = 1T T LT o I SRR 19
B. Reporting to the US Department of Transportation ...........ccceccveeeeeiiieeeecciieeenne 19
C. Other Reporting REQUIFEMENTS ......uuviiiiieeiieccciiee e e e e e s e e e e e e enaes 19

Public Participation and Outreach for the Triennial Goal .......ccccceeveurereencreenierennenne. 20
F A U] o] [Toll - [ ol o - 1 d o o ISP 20

LY TR o< | =T T=T o1 U PPN 20
AL Program REVIEW ... 20
B,  SEVEIADITY . .veiiiiiiiee e e e e 20

Special Requirements for Design-Build Contracts Under Public Contract Code........... 20
A, Category Of WOrk GOalS .....ccuuieeiiiiieicciiee ettt ree e s e e 20
B. Bonding Waiver for SUBCONTIractS.......ccccuuiiiiiiiiieiciiiee e 20
C. DBE Cost-Loaded SChedUIE ........ooviiiiiiieeeiee et 21
B o - Y=Y I o - | £ R URRRPPP 21

3|Page





Statement of Policy

It is the policy of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART” or the "District")
to ensure nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, or national origin in the award
and administration of federally funded contracts. It is the intention of the District to create a
level playing field on which a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”) or Small Business
Entity (“SBE”) can compete fairly for federally funded agreements, contracts and
subcontracts, including but not limited to construction, procurement and proposal contracts,
professional and technical services agreements and purchase orders.

As a recipient of federal funds, the District is committed to carrying out all requirements of
49 Code of Federal Regulations Part 26, establishing and maintaining the District’s DBE
Program (the “DBE Program” or “Program”). The District's DBE Program will assure that all
federally funded contracts and procurements are administered without discrimination on
the basis of race, color, sex or national origin, and that DBEs and SBEs have an equal
opportunity to compete for and participate in the performance of all federally funded
agreements, contracts and subcontracts awarded by the District. The District will implement
its DBE Program in good faith and shall not permit the use of race or gender conscious
guotas or set-asides in its administration.

The District's General Manager is responsible for adherence to this DBE Program and has
overall responsibility for directing development and implementation of this Program. The
General Manager has designated the Department Manager of the Office of Civil Rights as the
DBE Liaison Officer (the “Liaison Officer”). The Liaison Officer will be responsible for
development, implementation and monitoring of the DBE Program. It is the expectation of
the Board of Directors and the General Manager that the provisions of this DBE Program will
be adhered to both in the spirit and letter by all District personnel. This Policy will be
circulated to District employees and made available to the public.

This DBE Program is intended to implement the federal requirements pertaining to the DBE
Program, including, but not limited to, 49 CFR Part 26 as amended. In the event of any
inconsistencies between the terms of the District's DBE Program and the terms of 49 CFR
Part 26 as amended, the latter will prevail.

Objectives
The objectives of this DBE Program are to:

1. Ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of federally funded contracts;

2. Create a level playing field on which DBEs and SBEs can compete fairly for federally
funded contracts;

3. Help remove barriers to DBE and SBE participation in the bidding, award and
administration of District contracts;

4|Page





4. Assist in the development of DBE and SBE firms that can compete successfully in the
market place outside of the DBE Program;

5. Ensure that only firms that fully meet the eligibility standards of 49 CFR Part 26 are
permitted to participate as DBEs;

6. Ensure that the DBE Program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable law.

7. ldentify business enterprises that are qualified as DBEs or SBEs and are qualified to
provide the District with materials, equipment, supplies and services; and to develop a
supportive rapport with the owners and management of those enterprises;

8. Develop programs and procedures which will acquaint prospective DBEs and SBEs who
may participate in contracts with the District with the District's contract procedures,
activities and requirements. Implement programs that allow DBEs and SBEs to provide
the District with feedback on existing barriers to participation and suggestions on
effective procedures to eliminate those barriers;

9. Facilitate race-neutral competition by SBE concerns through the implementation of
Small Business Elements of the DBE Program (“SB Elements”);

10. Administer the DBE Program in close coordination with the various departments within
the District so as to facilitate the successful implementation of the DBE Program; and

11. Promoting the participation of all types of DBEs in a variety of fields, and encouraging
participation both as prime contractors and as subcontractors.

Applicability

Pursuant to 49 CFR Sections 26.3 and 26.21, the District, as a recipient of federal financial
assistance from the Federal Transit Administration (“FTA”) of the United States Department
of Transportation (“DOT”), is required to implement a DBE Program in accordance with 49
CFR Part 26. The DBE Program outlined herein applies to all District contracts that are
funded, in whole or in part, by the DOT, including those awarded by the District’s Sub-
recipients, in accordance with 49 CFR Parts 26.13, 26.21, 26.23, and 26.37.

Sub-recipients are responsible for adhering to the District’s DBE Program and to 49 CFR Part
26 in its entirety. This includes compliance with all Appendices to this document. The
Liaison Officer shall ensure that all Sub-recipients adhere to the letter and the spirit of the
District’s DBE Program.

In the administration of the DBE Program, the District will not directly or through
contractual or other arrangements, use criteria or methods of administration that have the
effect of defeating or substantially impairing the accomplishment of the objectives of this
DBE Program with respect to individuals of a particular race, color, sex or national origin.

Responsibility for DBE Program Implementation and Administration

A. Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing DBE policy.

5|Page





B. General Manager
The District's General Manager is responsible for adherence to this DBE Program and has
overall responsibility for directing development and implementation of this Program

C. Office of Civil Rights

The Department Manager has been designated by the General Manager as the Liaison
Officer, as referenced in 49 CFR Part 26.25. The Liaison Officer shall be responsible for
overseeing the DBE Program, recommending DBE policy, developing and implementing a
written DBE program and internal and external communication procedures. Pursuant to 49
CFR Part 26.25, the Liaison Officer shall have adequate staff to administer the District’s DBE
Program and shall have direct and independent access to the General Manager.

The Liaison Officer shall be responsible for all aspects of the DBE Program as outlined in
this document, and he or she will work closely with operating divisions and other
departments and consultants of the District, including the Office of the General Counsel, the
Department of Procurement and Materials Management, the Department of Maintenance
and Engineering, the Department of Planning, Development, and Construction, and other
departments which are responsible for making decisions relative to the District's
agreements, contracts and subcontracts, including but not limited to construction,
procurement and proposal contracts, professional and technical services agreements and
purchase orders.

The specific duties and responsibilities of the Liaison Officer or his/her designee(s) will
include but not be limited to the following:

1. Gathering and reporting statistical data and other information as required by FTA and
the Board of Directors;

2.  Working with appropriate departments to establish overall DBE participation goals;

Ensuring timely notification to the DBE community of bid and contract opportunities;

4. Identifying and implementing race-neutral methods of achieving DBE participation and
evaluating the success of such methods, including race and gender neutral SBE
participation;

5. Analyzing and assessing the available resources and evidence for the establishment and
achievement of an overall DBE participation goal;

6. Analyzing District progress toward DBE goal attainment, and identifying ways to
improve progress;

7. Monitoring overall DBE participation, adjusting overall goals and means of
achievement, and reporting to the District, the Board and FTA as needed;

8. Participating in the contract bid and award process including establishing contract-
specific DBE goals where appropriate, reviewing contract specifications, attending pre-
bid, pre-proposal and pre-construction meetings to explain the DBE Program, to
respond to questions from contractors and proposers and evaluating bids for
contractor responsiveness, responsibility and good faith efforts;

9. Advising the General Manager and Board of Directors on DBE matters;

w

6|Page





10. Maintaining and updating the DBE Directory in accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.31;

11. Maintaining and updating the Bidders List in accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.11;

12. Implementing race-neutral measures to facilitate DBE participation such as outreach,
matchmaking, small business program elements, other communication programs,
training and business development programs, restructuring and unbundling contracting
opportunities, simplifying bonding, surety and insurance requirements or other race-
neutral means identified as necessary to the success of the District’s DBE Program;

13. Assessing the critical technical and fiscal management needs of DBE firms; planning and
conducting DBE training and providing technical assistance;

14. Providing outreach to DBEs and community organizations with advice on DBE Program
issues and contract opportunities;

15. Determining all initial certification actions for DBE and small businesses elements,
including certifications, annual updates, denials and removals;

16. Participating in the implementation of a statewide Unified Certification Program in
accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.81;

17. Maintaining all necessary records and documentation of the DBE Program.

18. Developing and implementing the SB Elements of the District’s DBE Program.

D. Procurement and Materials Management

The Department Manager is responsible for ensuring that the appropriate provisions of the
DBE Program are included in all District contracts that are federally funded and for ensuring
non-discrimination in the District's procurement of goods and services. The Department
Manager is also responsible for ensuring the engagement of OCR staff with other District
staff during project design and conception phases to ensure that contracting will be done in
a manner best suited to facilitate DBE and SBE involvement.

E. Office of the General Counsel
The Office of the General Counsel is responsible for advising the Board of Directors, the
General Manager, and the Office of Civil Rights in the implementation of the DBE Program.

F. Board Appointed Officers, Executive Officers, Department Managers and District Staff
All Board appointed officers, executive officers, department managers and District staff are
responsible for the implementation of the DBE Program in their respective areas of
authority in coordination with the Liaison Officer. The performance of the executive
officers, department managers and District staff in the implementation of the DBE Program
shall be a part of their employee performance appraisal.

G. Business Advisory Council

The Business Advisory Council serves as a forum for communication between the DBE and
SBE contracting communities and the District and makes general recommendations on
DBE/SBE policies and practices that impact DBE/SBE utilization and participation in District
contracts.

7|Page





H. American Public Transportation Association's Diversity Council and the Conference of
Minority Transportation Officials

The American Public Transportation Association's (“APTA”) Diversity Council and the

Conference of Minority Transportation Officials (COMTO) serve as a forum for discussion of

actions that impact minority and women in the transit industry and provide educational

resources on current transit industry developments.

I. Ombudsperson

The Office of Civil Rights, in consultation with the project staff, on a contract-by-contract
basis, may assign an individual or firm to act as an Ombudsperson for subcontractors and
suppliers of any tier that are DBEs or SBE firms. The Ombudsperson may be available to any
such firm that is experiencing difficulties in any aspect of its contract work on contracts
awarded by the District. Such subcontractor or supplier will not be relieved of any of its
duties, rights, or obligations under its subcontract during the review by the Ombudsperson.
The Ombudsperson may be empowered to act as a mediator or fact-finder in disputes
between a prime contractor and such subcontractor or supplier, and may make
recommendations to the Office of Civil Rights and the project staff. (See Appendix G.)

Administrative Requirements

A. DBE Financial Institutions

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.27, the Liaison Officer will identify and explore the range of
services offered by banks and other financial institutions that qualify as DBEs in the San
Francisco Bay Area and determine areas in which the District may reasonably utilize their
services. The District will also encourage its prime contractors to use the services of DBE
financial institutions.

B. CUCP DBE Directory

BART is a member of the California Unified Certification Program (CUCP), which maintains
the DBE directory pursuant to 49 CFR 26.81 that identifies all firms that are eligible to
participate as DBEs in this Program. The District uses the DBE directory as a resource in
developing overall and contract-specific DBE participation goals and conducting outreach
and other programs for DBEs and SBEs.

The CUCP DBE directory is available to contractors and the public electronically on the
internet as well as in print. The CUCP updates the electronic version by including additions,
deletions, and other changes as soon as they are made. The DBE directory includes the
firms name, address, telephone number and types of work (utilizing the North American
Industry Classification System (NAICS) for which the firm is certified as a DBE. Additionally,
the DBE directory includes, whenever possible, the date the firm was established, the legal
structure of the firm, the percentage owned by disadvantaged individuals, capacity,
previous work experience and a contact person. A listing in the DBE directory does not in
any way pre-qualify the identified DBE firms with respect to licensing, bondability,
competence or financial responsibility.

8|Page





C. Overconcentration

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.33, if the Liaison Officer determines that DBE participation is
so over-concentrated in certain types of work or contracting opportunities that it unduly
burdens the participation of non-DBEs in that type of work, the Liaison Officer will develop
appropriate measures to address the overconcentration. The Liaison Officer will seek
approval from the FTA. Once approved, the measures will become part of this Program.

Measures to address DBE overconcentration in a particular field may include, but are not
limited to the following:

1. Developing ways to assist DBEs to move into nontraditional areas of work;
Varying the use of contract-specific DBE goals;
3. Working with prime contractors to find and use DBEs in other industry areas;

N

D. Race and Gender Neutral Efforts to Attain DBE Goals

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.51, the District will achieve as much of its overall DBE goal as
possible by using race neutral efforts to facilitate DBE participation. Race-neutral efforts
may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Arranging solicitations, times for presentation of bids, quantities, specifications, and
delivery schedules in ways that facilitate DBE and other SBE participation;

2. Providing assistance in overcoming limitations such as inability to obtain bonding or

financing;

Providing technical assistance and other similar services;

4.  Providing information and communication programs on contracting and business
procedures as well as specific contract opportunities;

5. Implementing a supportive service program to develop and improve immediate and
long-term business management, record keeping, and financial and accounting
capability for DBEs and other SBEs;

6. Providing services to help DBEs and other SBEs improve long-term development,
increase opportunities to participate in a variety of kinds of work, handle increasingly
significant projects, and achieve eventual self-sufficiency;

7.  Establishing a program to assist new, start-up firms, particularly in fields in which
participation by SBEs has been historically low;

8.  Ensuring distribution of the District's DBE data base through print and electronic
means to the widest feasible range of potential prime contractors;

9. Assisting DBEs and other SBEs to develop their capability to utilize emerging
technology and conduct business through electronic media;

10. Unbundling larger contracts when feasible into a series of manageable projects to
facilitate participation by SBEs;

11. Conducting internal training seminars to facilitate better understanding among project
managers and engineers regarding the DBE Program objectives;

12. Maintaining a website containing information on DBE certification, DBE Program, DBE

w

9|Page





procedures and a database of DBE firms;
13. Ensuring that the District’s SB Elements are open and available to all small businesses,
including DBEs.

E. DBE Program Small Business Elements

In accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.39, the District will establish DBE Program Small
Business Elements (“SB Elements”) as part of its DBE Program. DBEs are SBEs and thus
including active and effective SB Elements to its DBE Program will assist the District in
achieving as large a portion of its overall goal as possible through race and gender-neutral
means. The SB Elements will include all reasonable steps to eliminate obstacles to small
business participation on the District’s contracts. This includes, but is not limited to:

1. Race and gender-neutral SBE goals on DOT funded contracts;
2. Contract set asides for SBEs on DOT funded contracts;

As a component of the SB Elements the District shall establish a means to certify small
businesses and track information on the certified SBEs. The District shall develop
procedures to gather and report statistical data on the SB Elements of its DBE Program.

The Liaison Officer will ensure that the SB Elements integrate with and complement the
District’s other race and gender-neutral DBE Program efforts. The Liaison Officer shall work
in conjunction with all projects at the earliest stages of project development to ensure that
the projects have, to the fullest extent feasible, been developed in a way that encourages
DBE and SBE participation.

F. DBE Outreach

One method of providing race and gender-neutral efforts for DBE and SBE participation will
be through the District's DBE Outreach Program (the “Outreach Program”). The Liaison
Officer shall be responsible for identifying the most effective type(s) of outreach and
implementing outreach. Outreach includes, but is not limited to, contract-specific outreach,
matchmaking, vendor fairs, general outreach and outreach to community based
organizations (CBOs) and contractor or business groups.

G. Supportive Services Program

The District may provide a Supportive Services Program to assist DBEs and SBEs. The
District may also refer DBEs and SBEs to outside resources for assistance. This assistance
may include, but is not limited to, general instruction and training in bid preparation,
scheduling, estimating, procurement, change order preparation, negotiations, force account
invoicing, certified payroll preparation, insurance, bonding and financing required for a
District project. The Supportive Services Program is not intended to substitute for the
performance of any contractual requirements by the DBE and SBE firms. It is expected that
DBE and SBE firms will perform these tasks themselves with the assistance of such general
training as may be available. Any information or assistance provided by the District will not
relieve the prime contractor of the responsibility to manage subcontractor activities.

10|Page





H. Mentor-Protégé Program

A mentor-protégé program allows a prime contractor to mentor a DBE firm so that the DBE
firm can gain experience in the all phases of the construction industry, thereby enhancing
the capacity of the DBE firm. Should the Liaison Officer determine that a mentor-protégé
program would be an effective way to facilitate race-neutral DBE participation, a program
will be developed.

I. Hearing Officer

In accordance with 49 CFR Sections 26.53(d)(2) and 26.87(e) and as described more fully in
appendices E and F, all proceedings by the District in connection with the removal of
certification or reconsideration of a determination that a bidder has not met the DBE goal
or used good faith efforts will be heard by an outside independent hearing officer selected
in accordance with District procedures. The party or individual requesting the
reconsideration or hearing shall equally bear the burden of payment of any fees or costs
associated with the independent hearing officer with the District.

J. Unified Certification Program

A Memorandum of Agreement (the “MOA”) for a Statewide Unified Certification Program
has been developed by California transportation agencies that are recipients of federal
funds in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26. The MOA was accepted by the Secretary of the
U.S. Department of Transportation and is effective as of January 1, 2002. There are two
certifying clusters in California: Northern and Southern. BART is among the certifying
agencies within the Northern California cluster.

K. Transit Vehicle Manufacturer Certification

Each transit vehicle manufacturer, as a condition of being authorized to bid or propose on
FTA-assisted transit vehicle procurements, must certify that it has complied with the
requirements of 49 CFR Section 26.49, including the establishment of an annual overall DBE
participation goal that has been submitted to the FTA and either approved, or not
disapproved, by that agency. BART shall not include the amount of FTA assistance used in
transit vehicle procurements in the base amount from which the District’s overall annual
goal is established. Alternatively, the District may establish project-specific goals for DBE
participation in the procurement of transit vehicles in lieu of complying with the remaining
sections of 49 CFR Section 26.49, subject to approval from the FTA.

L. Caltrans Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program

For any contracts that receive Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) funding through
Caltrans, the District will include contract terms consistent with the Caltrans DBE Program
Local Agency Implementation Agreement.

11|Page





VI.

VII.

Triennial DBE Goals

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.45, the Office of Civil Rights will establish a triennial overall
DBE goal (“Triennial Goal”) according to the procedures in Appendix B, subject to the
approval of the Board of Directors, for the participation of DBEs in all projected contracts
utilizing DOT financial assistance for a period covering three fiscal years. The Triennial Goal
will be expressed as a percentage of the total amount of DOT funds the District anticipates
expending in three-year period covered by the triennial goal. A report outlining the steps
and calculations used to establish the District’s Triennial Goal (“Triennial Goal Report”) will
be submitted to the appropriate operating administration for review no later than October
31 for each three fiscal year period to be covered by the Triennial Goal.

The Liaison Officer will track and evaluate its goal on a quarterly basis. This tracking is for
informational purposes only and to ensure that the District is meeting the largest feasible
portion of the Triennial Goal through race neutral means. In the event that the District
amends its Triennial Goal, it shall be submitted to the appropriate operating authority in a
manner consistent with 49 CFR Section 26.45.

The District's overall goal is reflective of the amount of ready, willing and able DBEs that are
available to participate in contracting opportunities and is reflective of the amount of DBE
participation the District would expect absent the effects of discrimination. The District
intends to meet this goal, to the fullest extent feasible, through the race-neutral measures.
Where race-neutral measures are inadequate to meet the annual overall goal, the District
will establish contract-specific goals for particular projects with subcontracting
opportunities. Contract-specific goals will be established in accordance with the findings of
District’s availability and utilization study (“Disparity Study”), or any subsequent updates to
the Disparity Study. Overall project goals may be set for design-build, turnkey and/or multi-
year projects consistent with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26, as outlined in Section XIV.

Contract-Specific DBE Goals

In accordance with the procedures in Appendix C, the District will establish contract-specific
DBE goals on contracts with subcontracting opportunities to the extent that the District
cannot achieve its annual overall DBE goal with race-neutral measures. Where a contract-
specific DBE goal has been established, the bidder or proposer must meet the contract-
specific goal or demonstrate that it made sufficient good faith efforts to do so. Lower-tier
subcontractor DBEs may count toward the DBE goal. The bidder shall be entitled to a
hearing if the bidder fails to show either that it met the goal or that it made sufficient good
faith efforts to meet the goal. All proceedings by the District in connection with good faith
efforts will be held by an outside independent hearing officer selected in accordance with
District procedures. A bidder or proposer will be ineligible for award if it does not meet the
goal or demonstrate sufficient good faith efforts to do so. Contract specifications will
provide that contract award is conditioned on meeting these requirements.

12|Page





VIIL.

A contract specific goal shall only be established where supported by the findings of the
District’s Availability and Utilization Study or an update to that study.

DBE Eligibility

A. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise

A Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) is a for-profit, small business concern: 1) that is
at least fifty-one percent (51%) owned by one or more individuals who are socially and
economically disadvantaged or, in the case of a corporation, in which at least fifty-one
percent (51%) of the stock is owned by one or more socially and economically
disadvantaged individuals; and 2) whose management and daily business operations are
controlled by one or more of the socially and economically disadvantaged individuals who
own it.

B. Small Business Concern

A small business concern is an existing small business, as defined by Section 3 of the Small
Business Act and the Small Business Administration regulations implementing it (13 CFR Part
121), whose average annual gross receipts for itself and for its affiliates for the previous
three fiscal years does not exceed $23.98 million (or as adjusted for inflation by the
Secretary of DOT) pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.65(b).

C. Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals
There is an assumption that an individual is both socially and economically disadvantaged if
he or she is a citizen or lawfully admitted permanent resident of the United States and is:

1.  Black American (including persons having origins in any of the Black racial groups of
Africa);

2.  Hispanic American (including persons of Central or South American, Cuban,
Dominican, Mexican, Puerto Rican, or other Spanish or Portuguese culture or origin,
regardless of race);

3.  Native American (including persons who are enrolled members of a federally or state
recognized Indian Tribe, Alaska Natives, or Native Hawaiians));

4.  Asian-Pacific American (including persons whose origins are from Brunei, Burma
(Myanmar), Cambodia (Kampuchea), China, the Commonwealth of the Northern
Marianas Islands, the Federated States of Micronesia, Fiji, Guam, Hong Kong,
Indonesia, Japan, Juvalu, Kiribati, Korea, Laos, Macao, Malaysia, Nauru, the
Philippines, Samoa, Taiwan, Thailand, Tonga, the U.S. Trust Territories of the Pacific
Islands (Republic of Palau), or Vietnam);

5.  Subcontinent Asian American (including persons whose origins are from Bangladesh,
Bhutan, India, the Maldives Islands, Nepal, Pakistan, or Sri Lanka);

6. A Woman; or

7. A member of any additional group that is designated as socially and economically
disadvantaged by the Small Business Administration.

13|Page





The District will require each individual owner of a firm applying to participate as a DBE and
whose ownership interest is relied upon for DBE certification to submit a signed, notarized
certification that each presumptively disadvantaged owner is, in fact, socially and
economically disadvantaged. The District will also require each individual owner of a firm
applying to participate as a DBE and whose ownership interest is relied upon for DBE
certification to submit a sign, notarized statement of personal net worth with appropriate
supporting documentation.

Additionally, any individual may demonstrate, by a preponderance of evidence on a case-
by-case basis, that he or she is socially and economically disadvantaged. The District will
follow governmental requirements, including 49 CFR Section 26.67 and the guidelines in 49
CFR Part 26, Appendix E, for determining social and economic disadvantage.

D. Personal Net Worth

Personal Net Worth (PNW) means the value of the assets of an individual remaining after
total liabilities are deducted. As defined more specifically and limited in 49 CFR Part 26, an
individual's personal net worth does not include:

1. The individual's ownership interest in an applicant or participating DBE firm;
2. The individual's equity in his or her primary place of residence;

An individual's personal net worth includes only his or her own share of assets held jointly
or as community property with the individual's spouse. An individual owner of a firm whose
ownership and control are relied on for DBE certification cannot be determined to be
economically disadvantaged if he or she has a personal net worth exceeding $1.32 million
or as amended by Title 49 CFR Part 26.

E. Non-Residence Certification

BART’s market area is defined in its most recent Disparity Study. In order for a firm with a
principal place of business located outside of the Market Area to be eligible to benefit from
the race and gender conscious program, the firm must show that it has attempted to do
business in the Market area within two (2) years prior to the date of the advertisement of
the solicitation. All firms whose primary place of business is located in or is domiciled
within the Market Area are presumptively assumed to meet the following requirements.
The requirements may include but are not be limited to:

1. Currently or previously a party to a construction contract to do work in the Market Area.

2. Attendance at a BART sponsored outreach meetings, including pre-bid meetings, town
hall meetings and/or Board of Director meetings.

3. Any form of communication with BART, including purchasing contract documents,
requesting information from BART and attending or registering to attend BART
sponsored outreach events.

14|Page





Procedures to Ascertain Eligibility and Utilization of DBEs

In order to ensure that the DBE Program benefits firms actually owned and controlled by
socially and economically disadvantaged individuals, the District has established
certification procedures for DBEs and will follow the procedures contained in Appendix E.

A. DBE Certification

The California Unified Certification Program (CUCP), to which the District is a party, is
governed by the terms of the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) for a Unified Certification
Program, effective January 1, 2002. The CUCP provides "one-stop shopping" to applicants
for certification in California. An applicant need only apply once and the certification will be
honored by all recipients in the State.

The District is a certifying agency under the CUCP. Prospective DBE firms may obtain the
requisite DBE application forms from the District's web site at www.bart.gov, by contacting
the Office of Civil Rights directly, or through the CUCP or any of its members.

DBE firms certified pursuant to the California Unified Certification Program (CUCP) will be
counted towards a bidder's DBE participation goal unless successfully challenged under this
DBE Program. Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.81(c), all certifications by the CUCP shall be
pre-certifications, i.e., certifications that have been made final before the due date for bids
on a contract on which a firm seeks to participate as a DBE. Only firms that are certified as
eligible DBE's may participate as DBE's in the Program.

Certifying agencies of the CUCP will not process a new application for DBE certification from
a firm having its principal place of business in another state unless the firm has already been
certified in its home state.

When processing an application from a firm that has been certified by the SBA as a small
business, the District has two choices, following CUCP policy. It may either accept the SBA
certification decision, subject to the District's own on-site review, or it may use the firm's
SBA application package in lieu of requiring completion of the District's own application
form (in which case the District will still have to complete an on-site review, but will make
its own decision).

Certification procedures, including those applicable to initial certification, removal
(decertification), and certification appeals, are set forth in Appendix E.

B. Termination

Termination of DBE firms shall only be for good cause, as determined by the District in
accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.53 (f). Any termination of a DBE must be essential to the
contract and not merely discretionary, advantageous or for the convenience of the prime
contractor, consultant, or supplier. A prime contractor, consultant, or supplier must
immediately notify the Liaison Officer of a DBE's inability to perform, and must provide
documentation to substantiate any claim of non-performance. In order to terminate a DBE

15|Page



http://www.bart.gov/



firm, the prime contractor, consultant, or supplier must receive prior, written approval from
the District.

In the event that the District approves the termination of the DBE, the contractor will be
required to make good faith efforts to substitute the terminated DBE subcontractor with
another certified DBE. The contractor will be required to provide copies of new or amended
subcontract agreements.

C. Remedies for Non-Compliance

Non-compliance consists of failure or refusal to implement, meet or satisfy the applicable
governmental requirements related to DBE participation, including but not limited to 49 CFR
Part 26 and related federal guidelines or the applicable requirements of the District's DBE
Program and/or District contracts related to DBE participation.

The District may impose any remedies for non-compliance authorized by the federal, state
and local regulations and District contract specifications, including withholding of progress
payments, liquidated damages and termination of the contract in whole or in part.

D. Counting and Tracking DBE Participation

Only the work actually performed by a DBE will be counted towards the DBE goal. The cost
of supplies and materials obtained by the DBE or equipment leased (except from the prime
contractor or its affiliate) may also be counted.

DBE participation will not be counted toward the prime contractor’s achievements or the
overall goal until the DBE has been paid. In accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.51(g), The
Liaison Officer will track the participation of DBEs in contract-specific goal contracts
separately from the participation of DBEs in contracts without contract goals. On race-
conscious construction contracts, all work performed by a DBE prime and identified by the
scopes of work of the contract, will be counted toward the contract’s DBE goal. On all other
categories of procurement, the work of a DBE prime or joint venture does not count toward
any contract DBE goal. The Liaison Officer will not count towards the overall goal that
portion of a DBEs participation that is achieved after the certification of the DBE has been
removed during the performance of a contract. If the DBE's ineligibility is caused solely by
its having exceeded the applicable size standard during the performance of the contract,
the District will continue to count its participation on that contract toward overall and
contract goals.

1. Expenditures may only be counted if the DBE is performing a commercially useful
function on the contract. A DBE performs a commercially useful function when it is
responsible for execution of the work of the contract and is carrying out its
responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved. To
perform a commercially useful function, the DBE must also be responsible, with respect
to materials and supplies used on the contract, for negotiating prices, determining
quality and quantity, ordering the material, and installing and paying for the material
itself. To determine whether a DBE is performing a commercially useful function, the
District will evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry practices, whether the

16|Page





amount the firm is to be paid under the contract is commensurate with the work it is
actually performing and the DBE credit claimed for its performance of the work, as well
as other relevant factors.

A DBE does not perform a commercially useful function if its role in the contract is
limited to that of an extra participant through which funds are passed in order to obtain
the appearance of DBE participation. If the DBE does not perform or exercise
responsibility for at least 51 % of the total cost of its contract with its own work force, or
the DBE subcontracts a greater portion of the work of a contract than would be
expected on the basis of normal industry practice for the type of work involved, the DBE
is presumed not to be performing a commercially useful function

2. If materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE manufacturer, 100 percent of the cost
will be counted. If the materials and supplies are purchased from a DBE regular dealer,
60 percent of the cost will be counted. If the materials and supplies are purchased from
a DBE broker or a manufacturer’s representative, the entire amount of the fees or
commissions charged for assistance in the procurement of the materials or supplies, or
fees or transportation charges for the delivery of materials or supplies required on a job
site will be counted towards the DBE goal provided that the fees are reasonable and not
excessive as compared with fees customarily allowed for similar services.

3. Trucking will be counted in accordance with the provisions of 49 CFR Section 26.55.

4. Work performed by DBE subcontractors and suppliers at any tier may be credited
toward the DBE goal. DBE participation may not be counted more than once.

5. Prime Contractors, Consultants, or Suppliers shall submit monthly DBE Utilization
Reports, and all other requested reports or forms, on forms provided by OCR.

Required Contract Provisions

The District will include the following provisions in federally funded contracts, where
appropriate.

A. Nondiscrimination Assurance
Each federally funded contract the District signs with a contractor, and each subcontract
the prime contractor signs with a subcontractor, will include the following statement:

“The contractor, sub-recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national origin or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry
out applicable requirements of 49 CPR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT
assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material
breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other
remedy as the District deems appropriate as specified in the contract.”

17|Page





B. Prompt Payment Policy and Provisions
Each federally funded contract the District signs with a contractor will include the following
provisions:

“The Contractor shall include in its monthly invoice submission to BART, amounts to pay for
all Subcontractors’ acceptable invoices, no later than thirty (30) Days after receipt of such
invoices. As part of the monthly invoice submission, the Contractor shall include a copy of
the form obtained from BART’s designated website for electronic submittal of certified
payroll records with the names of Subcontractors that invoiced the Contractor during the
payment application period, the amount invoiced by each Subcontractor, and the period
during which the work included in the invoice was performed. This form with the above
referenced Subcontractor payment information shall be completed on BART’s designated
website for electronic submittal of certified payroll records. The Contractor shall promptly
pay any and all Subcontractors no later than seven (7) Days after receipt of payment by
BART, for satisfactory performance of its Contract, the amounts to which they are entitled,
after deducting any prior payments and any amount due and payable to the Contractor by
those Subcontractors. The Contractor shall pay all Subcontractors by an instrument that
guarantees availability of funds immediately upon deposit of said instrument. If the
Contractor determines the work of the Subcontractors to be unsatisfactory, the Contractor
shall immediately notify in writing the District (with a separate notice to the Office of Civil
Rights if the Subcontractor is a DBE or an SBE) and state the reasons. Failure by the
Contractor to comply with this requirement will be construed to be breach of Contract and
may be subject to sanctions as specified in the Contract.”

The District shall make incremental inspection of portions of the work and, upon approval
of the Contractor’s work at various stages of the Contract, promptly release retainage
attributable to the work that has been approved. Within thirty (30) Days after the District
has made such payment, the Contractor shall release to any Subcontractor who has
satisfactorily completed work covered by the District’s inspection and approval the
retainage owed to the Subcontractor for such work. The District’s incremental inspection,
approval, or release of a portion of the retainage under this Article shall not constitute
Acceptance.

Where there has been an incremental inspection and approval pursuant to this
Supplementary Conditions Article SC9.7, a Subcontractor’s work is satisfactorily completed
when the Contractor certifies to the District that all the tasks called for in the Subcontract
related to the work covered by the inspection and approval have been accomplished and
that the Subcontractor’s retention may now be released.

The Contractor shall maintain records to verify the release of such retainage to the affected
Subcontractors. Such records shall show the name and business address of such
Subcontractors and the total dollar amount actually paid, including the retainage, and the
date of payment. A monthly report based on these records and certified to be correct by
the Contractor shall be submitted with the monthly invoice referred to in General

18|Page





Xl.

Conditions Article GC9.7. The Contractor’s certification shall contain a formula used to
calculate the amount paid to the Subcontractor. No invoice will be approved for payment
unless the current report has been furnished.

The District may not pay for work that is performed or materials that are supplied by firms
other than the DBE listed for such work or material, unless the DBE is substituted in
accordance with the contract requirements.”

Contract Compliance and Reporting

The District will implement appropriate mechanisms to ensure compliance with the DBE
Program by all program participants under federal, state and local law. This includes
establishing contract monitoring and enforcement provisions consistent with 49 CFR Section
26.37(b).

A. Bidders List

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.11(c), the District will create and maintain a bidders list
consisting of all firms bidding on prime contracts and bidding or quoting subcontracts on
federally funded projects. For every firm, the following information will be included: firm
name, firm address and firm's status as a DBE or non-DBE. The District may also request
additional information from bidders such as the age of the firm, the annual gross receipts of
the firm and the ethnicity and gender of the owners, although this information is not
required to be provided by any bidders.

B. Reporting to the US Department of Transportation

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.11(b), the District will continue to report DBE participation
and Triennial Goal setting methods to the FTA as directed. In addition, the District shall
maintain prescribed statistical data.

C. Other Reporting Requirements

The District will track the amount awarded to the DBE, the amount paid to the DBE as
stated by the prime contractor, and the amount paid to the DBE as verified by the DBE.
Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.37 (b), the District will certify in writing that any work
committed to DBE firms is performed by the DBE firm to which the work has been
committed. A final DBE Utilization Report including amounts to be paid to the DBEs at the
end of the contract shall be submitted by Prime Contractors, Consultants, or Suppliers, with
the project close out change order, on the form provided by OCR.

The Liaison Officer will report the actual amount paid to DBEs to FTA. Contractors
performing work on the District's DOT assisted contracts are required to separately report
the DBE participation of their contracts achieved through race-neutral and through race-
conscious means.

19|Page





Xll.

Xill.

XIV.

Public Participation and Outreach for the Triennial Goal

A. Public Participation

Prior to finalizing the Triennial Goal Report, the District will consult with minority, women
and general contractor groups, community organizations, US DOT agencies or grantees (to
the extent necessary) or other officials or organizations which could be expected to have
information concerning the availability of disadvantaged, non-disadvantaged and SBEs, the
effects of discrimination on opportunities for DBEs and the District’s efforts to establish a
level playing field for DBEs and SBEs.

Miscellaneous

A. Program Review

The DBE Program will be reviewed by the Liaison Officer every five (5) fiscal years, or more
frequently as necessary at the sole discretion of the Board, to ensure that elements of the
DBE Program are tailored to address any discrimination that may exist in the industries
relevant to the District's contracting activities and to ensure that the DBE Program does not
disproportionately impact any particular group.

B. Severability

Should any part, term, provision or element of this DBE Program be decided by the courts to
be illegal or in conflict with any law of the United States or of the State of California or
otherwise rendered unenforceable or ineffective, the validity of the remaining parts, terms,
provisions, or elements shall not be affected.

Special Requirements for Design-Build Contracts Under Public Contract Code

In addition to the terms, conditions and provisions described above in Sections | through
XIll, the following terms, conditions and provisions are applicable to design-build contracts
awarded by the District under the authority of Public Contract Code Sections 22160 et seq:

A. Category of Work Goals

On any Design-Build contract with subcontracting opportunities, the District may establish
Category-of-Work goals of a type and level appropriate to meet either the contract goal or
the race-conscious portion of the project overall goal. The Category-of-Work goals will
address contracting activities in various areas of work throughout the life of the contract.
As more fully described in Section XIV.E, below, a bidder must commit to meet each of the
Category-of-Work DBE goal(s) or demonstrate that it could not meet said Category-of-Work
DBE goal(s) despite its good faith efforts

B. Bonding Waiver for Subcontracts

The District, in its discretion and on a contract-by-contract basis, may require a prime
contractor to eliminate bonding requirements for subcontracts under a certain size or which
meet a specific criteria. Invocation of this provision shall be determined in consultation
with the Office of Civil Rights.

20|Page





C. DBE Cost-Loaded Schedule
The District, in its discretion and on a contract-by-contract basis, may require a prime
Contractor to provide a DBE Cost-Loaded Schedule to the Office of Civil Rights.

D. Phased Goals

Where a Category-of Work goal has been set that is applicable to an initial project phase
(e.g., design and professional services), a bidder shall identify at bid all DBE firms, their
participation level and type of work to meet the initial Category-of-Work goal(s) or shall
demonstrate sufficient good faith efforts to meet such goal(s). In addition, where Category-
of-Work goals have been set that are applicable to subsequent project phases (e.g.,
construction), a bidder at bid shall commit to meet each subsequent Category-of-Work goal
identified in the Design-Build documents or shall demonstrate sufficient good faith efforts
to meet such goal(s). Notwithstanding a bidder’'s commitment at bid to meet a specific
level of DBE participation for Category-of-Work goals applicable to later project phases, a
bidder shall not be required to identify at bid the DBE firms it will use for this work. Rather,
the bidder’'s commitment will be monitored during performance of the contract in a
number of ways, including but not limited to the following:

1. Prior to commencement of work by the DBE, the contractor shall submit a monthly DBE
Participation Form identifying the DBE firm, its participation level and type of work to be
performed, along with a copy of the subcontract with the DBE. No credit shall be given
the contractor for participation by any DBE that has not been approved by the District.

2. The contractor shall file monthly DBE Utilization Reports, and all other requested
reports, on the form provided by OCR.

3. Ifrequired, the contractor shall periodically submit a DBE cost-loaded schedule.

4. BART shall undertake regular evaluation of the contractor’s progress regarding DBE
participation and may request corrective action plans as appropriate.

5. In accordance with current regulations, all DBEs that are to participate on the project
must be certified prior to bid. Moreover, subcontracts with DBEs are governed by the
requirements of Public Contract Code Section 20209.10 (c).

21|Page






San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-1

Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

E.1 INTRODUCTION

E.1.1 OVERVIEW OF SCOPE OF WORK

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) has established a Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise (DBE) Program, consistent with the requirements of 49 Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 26. BART has also established a Non-Discrimination for
Subcontracting Program for Non-Federally Funded Contracts. To support the District’s DBE
Program and to determine Availability analysis for its Non-Discrimination Program, BART
commissioned Miller? Consulting, Inc. (M? Consulting) on May 18, 2015 to conduct a
Disparity Study (the Study) by performing the scope of work outlined below:

a. Investigate whether or to what extent discrimination exists in the contracting
industry relevant to BART contracting activities in the BART market area;

b. Satisfy all legal requirements for such a study established by all relevant judicial
precedent including a determination whether statistically significant disparities exist
regarding DBE utilization in the contracting industry relevant to BART contracting
activities in the BART market area;

c. Provide data to support the District’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
program, including setting of its Triennial DBE Goal, Contract Specific DBE goals
and Small Business Entity (SBE) goals under 49 CFR Part 26; and,

d. Provide data on the availability of Small Business Entities (SBEs), Minority and
Women-Owned businesses in the BART market area to support the District’s Non-
Discrimination Program for Subcontracting on Non-Federally Funded Contracts (ND
Program) and Small Business Elements of the District’s DBE Program (SB Elements).

M? Consulting conducted this study consistent with current legal and regulatory standards
applicable to BART in the 9t Circuit and the State of California, including Western States
Paving Co., Inc, v. Washington State Department of Transportation, 407 F.3d 983 (9t Cir. 2005),
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), State
of California laws, including Proposition 209 and various other federal/state/local/ BART
sources.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-2

Executive Summary

E.1.2 OVERVIEW OF BART’S CURRENT RACE/GENDER-CONSCIOUS AND
RACE/GENDER-NEUTRAL PROGRAMS

BART administers four programs targeted to promote inclusion of DBEs and SBs and one
program that ensures that primes do not discriminate or give preference in the award of
subcontracts based on race, national origin, color, ethnicity or gender. The four programs
are:

e Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program;
e DBE Program Small Business Elements (SBE);
e Small Business (SB) Program; and,
¢ Non-Discrimination for Subcontracting Program.
An overview of each program is provided below.
A. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program (Federally Funded)

As a recipient of federal funds from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), BART’s
Disadvantaged Business Program has been developed pursuant to the requirements of 49
CFR Part 26'. The purpose of the DBE program is “to create a level playing field on which a
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”) can compete fairly for federally funded
agreements, contracts and subcontracts, including but not limited to construction,
procurement and proposal contracts, professional and technical services agreements and
purchase orders.”

Based on the results of the 2009 Disparity Study, BART could establish DBE goals on
Federally funded Construction contracts only. For Procurement and Professional Services,
including Architectural and Engineering, BART utilized exclusively race and gender-neutral
efforts.

1 49 CFR Part 26 was enacted on January 8, 1999 and revised on October 1, 2006 and October 2, 2014.

2 San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program, February 2012,
p- 4.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-3

Executive Summary

B. DBE Program Small Business Elements (SBE)

Under the DBE Program Small Business Elements, BART includes all reasonable steps to
eliminate obstacles to small business participation on Federally funded contracts. SBE
program efforts can include:

1. Race and gender-neutral SBE goals on Federally Funded contracts;

2. MSBE set-aside contracts on federal funded contracts. MSBE set-aside contracts
cannot exceed the following limits:

o Construction—$2 million
o Services—$3 million
o Procurement—$3 million

MSBE set-aside contracts are not eligible for SBE or DBE goals, although MSBE vendors are
encouraged to include SBE and DBE subcontractors.

C. Small Business (SB) Program (Non-Federally Funded)

BART has established a Small Business (SB) Program, pursuant to California Public
Contract Code Section 2002. The purpose of the SB Program is to encourage the full and
equitable participation by small businesses in Non-federally funded construction,
procurement and services contracts. The SB Program is targeted to:

e BART award of contracts;

e The award of contracts by Prime Contractors to First Tier Subcontractors; and,

e The award of contracts by First Tier Subcontractors to Second Tier Subcontractors.?
To encourage SB prime participation on contracts under $10,000,000, BART may, at its sole
discretion, apply a bid preference to SB Bidders of up to 5 percent of the lowest responsible
bidder’s bid amount up to a total amount of $250,000 on contracts valued under $10,000,000.

An annual limit of $2,000,000 for total dollar preferences is allowed each year. However, the
actual contract will reflect the actual amount of the bid.

3 BART Small Business (SB) Program Non-Federally Funded Contracts, 9/01/11, p. 2.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-4

Executive Summary

For contracts over $10,000,000, BART may apply a SB subcontracting, participation goal. For
prime vendors that meet the SB subcontracting goal, a bid preference up to 5 percent of the
lowest responsible bidder’s bid amount up to a total of $1,000,000 will be applied. However,
the actual contract will reflect the amount of the original bid. BART may, at its discretion,
count Second Tier Subcontractors toward the SB goal, upon the First Tier subcontractor

meeting the requirements outlined in the SB Program.4 Under California Public Code
Section 22160 et seq, BART may also establish three separate SB goals for construction,
services, and procurement on Design-Build contracts. A 5 percent preference will apply.

D. Non-Discrimination (ND) in Subcontracting Program (Non-Federally Funded)

Under Proposition 209 adopted by the State in 1996, BART is prohibited from taking
measures that discriminate for or against the participation of firms based on their race or
gender, unless required as a Federal grant requirement. As a result, in 1997, the BART Board
adopted BART’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting on Non-Federally Funded
Contracts (ND Program). Under the terms of the ND Program, the purpose is to ensure that
contractors do not discriminate or give a preference in the award of subcontracts on the basis
of race, national origin, color, ethnicity, or gender.

Under BART’s ND Program, which is a race and gender-neutral program, there has been
some measurable MWBE participation although it has not resulted in the overall
participation of MWBEs matching availability in BART’s Non-Federal construction,
procurement, or services contracting. The Disparity Study will provide up to date availability
percentages for MBEs and WBEs for the ND Program.

The ND Program does not require a bidder to subcontract any portion of the work. If the
bidder does not subcontract any of the work, the ND Program does not apply. Further, the
ND Program does not utilize subcontracting percentage goals nor require a bidder to make
good faith efforts to utilize minority owned business enterprise (MBE) and women owned
business enterprises (WBE) subcontractors.

However, if the bidder does subcontract a portion of the work, a determination is first made
whether the bidder has listed subcontracts in dollar amounts that reflect the availability
percentages of MBEs and WBEs in the pool of all subcontractors available to perform the
contract work. The availability percentages for MBEs and WBEs are not subcontracting
goals. They are, instead, what MBE and WBE participation would be expected in the absence

4 Ibid, pp. 6-8.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-5

Executive Summary

of discrimination. If the bidder meets the availability percentages, the bidder is presumed to
have not discriminated and is eligible for award of the contract.

If the bidder does not meet the availability percentages, the bidder must submit
documentation pertinent to determining if the bidder discriminated. If the documentation
shows no evidence of discrimination the bidder is recommended for award of the contract. If
documentation shows discrimination, a hearing is set before a hearing officer and the District
has the burden to prove that the bidder discriminated. A bidder is non-responsive only if it
does not cooperate in providing evidence of Non-Discrimination or if a finding is made after
a hearing that the bidder has discriminated in the award of subcontracts. A bidder cannot be
found non-responsive simply because it did not select subcontractors in a manner which
reflects MBE and WBE availability as long as it has not discriminated.

E.2 MILLER: CONSULTING’S APPROACH AND METHODOLOGY

M2 Consulting’s exclusive disparity study methodology includes ten analyses which lead to
overall conclusions and recommendations.

E.2.1 M® CONSULTING’S 10-PART DISPARITY STUDY METHODOLOGY

M? Consulting employs a 10-part disparity study methodology that provides a complete
factual predicate consistent with evolving case law and BART’s regulatory environment. The
statistical analysis—relevant market, availability, utilization, disparity and capacity—
comports with the requirements of City of Richmond v. J.A. Croson Co., 488 U.S. 469, 109
S.Ct. 706 (1989), Adarand Contractors, Inc. v. Federica Pena, 515 U.S. 200, 115 S. Ct. 2097
(1995) and Western States Paving Co., Inc. v. Washington State Department of
Transportation, 407 F.3d 983 (9th Cir. 2005) and determines whether there are statistically
significant disparities from which an inference of discrimination may be drawn. The
remaining analysis reflected under the industry and market analysis assist in determining
whether organizational factors (active discrimination or exclusion) or private sector and
marketplace factors (passive discrimination or exclusion) cause any disparity found.
Together, these findings allow BART to determine whether there is a compelling
governmental interest in utilizing race and gender-conscious remedies for any statistically
significant disparity. @ The combined analysis also leads to a set of customized
recommendations that includes race and gender-neutral initiatives and narrowly tailored
race and gender-conscious initiatives.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-6

Executive Summary

BART Disparity Study

Industry Analysis Statistical Analysis Market Analysis

eLegal Analysis *Relevant Market eAnecdotal and eFinding of eProcurement and
eProcurement and e Availability Survey Analysis discrimination, M/W/DBE
M/W/DBE Analysis eRace-Gender- passive or active, programmatic
Operational eUtilization neutral Analysis if any initiatives
Analysis Analysis ePrivate Sector e|dentification of *Goal-setting
*Disparity Ratios Analysis barriers to eNon-
*Regression and M/W(DBﬁ Discrimination
Capacity Analysis participation initiatives
eManagement and
Technical
Assistance

Description of Disparity Study Components

1. Legal Analysis outlines the legal standards of Richmond v. Croson, Adarand v. Pena and
their progeny, as well as around the country. Such a legal analysis provides critical
insight to current judicial opinions relevant to both DBE program design, Non-
Discrimination programs and disparity study analysis.

2. Procurement and DBE Program Operational Analyses examines BART’s contracting
history to determine the impact of BART’s policies, procedures and practices on
M/W/DBEs’ ability to do business with BART, along with the effectiveness of the DBE
and SB Program operations on increasing M/W/DBE participation.

3. Relevant Market Analysis determines the geographic boundaries within which BART
performs the substantial part (about 70 percent) of its business activities. The
identification of the bounds is also guided by legal criterion that BART must refine its
efforts to impact DBE business activity to its market area.

4. Availability Analysis determines the available M/W/DBE and non-M/W/DBE firms who
are available to do business with BART within the determined relevant market.

5. Utilization Analysis quantitatively examines BART’s contracting history and determines
the number of contracts and levels of expenditures with M/W/DBEs.

6. Disparity Analysis determines the difference between the availability of M/W/DBEs and
their utilization by BART and whether any disparity is statistically significant.

7. Capacity and Regression Analyses examines differences in capacity of firms based on
race and gender using established statistical methods and also examines whether
race/gender and ethnicity still impacts the participation decision once a set of variables
that proxy capacity are controlled for.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-7

Executive Summary

8. Anecdotal and Survey Analyses determine the experiences of M/W/DBEs and non-
M/W/DBEs attempting to do business with BART and in the business community overall.
Further, the survey provides information on business characteristics, such as owner
qualifications, years in business, capacity, and credit market experiences.

9. Race- and Gender-Neutral Analysis determines the effectiveness of race- and gender-
neutral programs in increasing M/W/DBE participation in both public and private sector
opportunities.

10. Private Sector Analyses determine M/W/DBE participation in private sector
opportunities. Factors that impact business formation and self-employment are also
analyzed in this analysis.

The methodology components that M? Consulting deploys reflect the continuing development
of case law that has increased the level and sophistication of the statistical analysis necessary
to comply with Croson and Adarand standards.

E.2.2 STATISTICAL METHODOLOGY

The statistical methodology below discusses in more detail relevant market, availability,
utilization, and disparity. It includes various definitions of availability and M? Consulting’s
“Ready, Willing and Able” (RWASM) model. M® Consulting has adapted this model to the
specific BART data sources available for this study. Also discussed are the types of utilization
analysis that will be performed. The statistical methodology section concludes by defining
the disparity ratio and significance tests, crucial for drawing conclusions regarding any
disparity in BART’s recent history of contracting with M/W/DBEs.

To conduct the analysis, M? Consulting collected vendor, bidder, contract award, purchase
order and payments data for calendar years 2011-2014, covering both Federally funded and
Non-federally funded contracts.

A. Relevant Market

The Croson statistical analysis begins with the identification of the relevant market. The
relevant market establishes geographical limits to the calculation of M/W/DBE availability
and utilization. Most courts and disparity study consultants characterize the relevant market
as the geographical area encompassing most of a public entity’s commercial activity. The
Croson Court required that an MBE program cover only those groups that have actually been
affected by discrimination within the public entity’s jurisdiction.5

5 Richmond v. Croson, at 725.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-8

Executive Summary

Two methods of establishing the relevant market area have been used in disparity studies.
The first utilizes vendor and contract awardee location of dollars expended by an entity in
the relevant industry categories. In the second method, vendors and contractors from an
entity’s vendor or bidder list are surveyed to determine their location. The former is based on
approaches implemented under the U.S. Justice Department guidelines for defining relevant
geographic markets in antitrust and merger cases. M? Consulting has developed a method
for determining an entity’s relevant market by combining the above methods and using an
entity’s bidder lists, vendor lists, and awardee lists as the basic foundation for market
definition.

By examining the locations of bidders, vendors, and winners of contract awards, M?®
Consulting seeks to determine the area containing a preponderance of commercial activity
pertaining to an entity’s contracting activity. While case law does not indicate a specific
minimum percentage of vendors, bidders, or contract awardees that a relevant market must
contain, M?® Consulting has determined a reasonable threshold is somewhere around 70
percent, each, for bidders, vendors, and contract award winners. Further analysis may be
necessary if there are “large” differences in the percentages of these three measures.

B. Availability Analysis

The fundamental comparison to be made in disparity studies is between firms owned by
minorities and/or women (“MBEs and WBEs”) and other firms (“non-MWBES”) ready, willing
and able to perform a particular service (i.e., are “available”), and the number of such
businesses actually being utilized by the locality or its prime contractors. This section
presents a discussion of the availability estimates for M/W/DBEs who are ready, willing and
able to perform work on contracts for BART.

Availability is the most problematic aspect of the statistical analysis of disparity. It is
intrinsically difficult to estimate the number of businesses in the marketplace that are ready,
willing and able to perform contracts for or provide services to a particular public entity. In
addition to determining an accurate head count of firms, the concomitant issues of capacity,
qualification, willingness, and ability complicate the production of accurate availability
estimates.

1. Miller3 Consulting, Inc. Availability Model
M2 Consulting employs two general approaches to measuring availability: the Ready, Willing

and Able (RWASM) Model and Marketplace Availability.  In summary, the Availability
measures can fall into the following categories:

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-9

Executive Summary

e RWASM__Those firms who are ready, willing and able to do business with BART;

e Public Sector Availability—Those firms who are ready, willing and able to do business
with similar public sector agencies within BART’s marketplace®; and,

e Marketplace Availability—All firms’ available in BART’s marketplace, as measured
by Census, Dun & Bradstreet and Reed Construction data.

The Availability matrix below in Figure E.1 outlines M? Consulting’s Availability Model. The
matrix starts with the optimum availability measure of those firms “ready, willing and able”
to do business with BART and cascades down to less optimum measures. Factors that
determine which level of availability best suits BART’s environment include quality of
available data, legal environment, and previous levels of inclusion of M/W/DBE in bidding
and contracting activity. For BART, Level 3 RWASM Availability was deemed the most
representative and robust, in light of the completeness of data provided by BART.

6 This analysis requires inter-governmental cooperation between public entities providing bidder, vendor and
awardee data, thus is not performed, unless such agreement is developed for individual agencies or a
consortium of agencies conducted a consortium disparity study.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-10

Executive Summary

Figure E.1
RWASM Availability Model

BART RWASM Availability

1. Prime and sub-bidders bv contract category for each vear of studv period

[ 2. Prime and sub-bidders bv contract categorv for fewer vears ]

3. Prime bidders, sub-awardees, prime awardees (informal purchases) for each year of study
period

[ 4. Prime bidders. sub-awardees. nrime awardees (informal purchases) for fewer vears period ]

5. Prime bidders, sub-awardees, prime awardees (informal purchases) + Vendors + certified M/W/DBEs for
fewer years period

Public SectorsM Availability

6. BART RWA measure+ similar public entitv prime and sub-bidders

[ 7. BART RWA measure + similar public entity prime and sub awardees ]

8. BART RWA measure + similar public entity prime, sub awardees and vendors + Master
M/W/DBEs List

Marketplace Availability

9. Census

[ 10. Dun & Bradstreet ]

[ 11. Reed Construction Data ]
Source: M3 Consulting, Inc.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.






San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Disparity Study
Final Report
January 12, 2017
Page ES-11
C. Utilization Analysis

Utilization represents the contracting and subcontracting history of Non-M/W/DBEs and
M/W/DBEs with BART. In developing the contract database to be used as the basis for
determining utilization, there are three alternative measures of utilization that can be taken
in each procurement category. These are:

1. The numbers of contracts awarded;
2. The dollar value of contracts received; and,

3. The raw numbers of firms receiving contracts.

The current report presents two of the three measures of utilization: the number of contracts
awarded and the dollar value of the contract awards. Both dollars and counts are reported in
order to determine if there are any outliers or large single contracts that cause utilization
dollar values to be at reported levels. These were preferred over the third measure—the
number of firms, which is less exact and more sensitive to errors in measurement.

For instance, if a single firm, owned by a Non-M/W/DBE, received 30 contracts for $5 million,
and ten African American-owned firms received one contract each worth $100,000, measured
by the number of firms, African American-owned firms would appear to be over utilized, and
Non-M/W/DBEs underutilized. Using the number of contracts and the dollar value of
contracts awarded, the aforementioned result would reverse (depending on relative
availability).

M2 Consulting’s position with regard to percentage estimates of utilization, by the dollar
value of contracts and number of contracts, is that discrimination would be more likely to
affect the dollars awarded than the number of contracts awarded to M/W/DBEs or the
number of M/W/DBEs utilized, particularly if there are stereotypical attitudes that
M/W/DBEs cannot handle larger contracts, and the largest volume of contracts awarded are
smaller contracts.

M? Consulting also sought to analyze subcontracting utilization data. Because prime
contractors, especially in Construction, Construction-related Professional Services and
Architecture and Engineering, often subcontract work to other contractors/consultants and
because the utilization of M/W/DBEs in the absence of a set-aside or goal provision usually
occurs at the subcontract level, assembling data on subcontract work is critical to utilization
analysis.

MILLER?* CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Disgari:yRStudxt/
inal Repor

January 12, 2017
Page ES-12

In the area of Construction and Architecture and Engineering contracting, the standard
presentation of utilization data by M? Consulting is to show Total “Pure Prime +
Subcontractor” utilization and Subcontractor utilization in separate tables, if data allows.
“Pure prime utilization” based on dollar value of contracts is defined here differently from
“prime contract award value” due to the necessity to avoid double-counting of subcontract
awards when examining subcontractor utilization. “Pure prime utilization” is correctly
defined as the value of prime contracts net of subcontract value. This magnitude, when added
to the value of subcontractor utilization, results in a correct measurement of “total”
utilization, by the M/W/DBE category.

D. Disparity Analysis

A straightforward approach to establishing statistical evidence of disparity between the
availability of M/W/DBEs and the utilization of M/W/DBEs by BART is to compare the
utilization percentage of M/W/DBEs with their availability percentage in the pool of total
businesses in the relevant market area. M® Consulting’s specific approach, the “Disparity
Ratio,” consists of a ratio of the percentage of dollars spent with M/W/DBEs (utilization), to
the percentage of those businesses in the market (availability).

Disparity ratios are calculated by actual availability measures. The following definitions are
utilized in the M? Consulting ratio:

A = Availability proportion or percentage
U Utilization proportion or percentage
D = Disparity ratio

Nw = Number of women-owned firms

Nm = Number of minority-owned firms

Nt = Total number of firms

Availability (A) is calculated by dividing the number of minority and/or women-owned firms
by the total number of firms. Utilization (U) is calculated by dividing total dollars expended
with minority and women-owned firms by the total expenditures.

Aw = Nw / Nt
Am = Nm/ Nt
D = U/A

When D=1, there is no disparity, (Ze., utilization equals availability). As D approaches zero,
the implication is that utilization is disproportionately low compared to availability. As D
gets larger (and greater than one), utilization becomes disproportionately higher compared

MILLER?* CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Dis[?-ari:yRStUd{
Inal Repor

January 12, 2017
Page ES-13

to availability. Statistical tests are used to determine whether the difference between the
actual value of D and 1 are statistically significant, (i.e., whether it can be stated with
confidence that the difference in values is not due to chance (see Figure E.2).

Figure E.2
Disparity Ratio Indicating Areas of Significant and Non-Significant Disparity and Overutilization

SIGNIFICANT
OVERUTILIZATION

NON SIGNIFICANT OVERUTILIZATION

1.00

NON SIGNIFICANT
UNDERUTILIZATION

SIGNIFICANT
UNDERUTILIZATION

Source: M? Consulting, Inc.

The statistical disparity ratio used in this study measures the difference between the
proportion of available firms and the proportion of dollars those firms received. Therefore, as
the proportion of contract dollars received becomes increasingly different than the proportion
of available M/W/DBEs, an inference of discrimination can be made.

1. Statistical Significance

The concept of statistical significance as applied to disparity analysis is used to determine if
the difference between the utilization and availability of M/W/DBEs could be attributed to
chance. Significance testing often employs the t-distribution to measure the differences
between the two proportions. The number of data points and the magnitude of the disparity
affect the robustness of this test. The customary approach is to treat any variation greater
than two standard deviations from what is expected as statistically significant.

MILLER?* CONSULTING, INC.






San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Disgari:yRStudxt/
inal Repor

January 12, 2017
Page ES-14

A statistical significant outcome or result is one that is unlikely to have occurred as the result
of random chance alone. The greater the statistical significance, the smaller the probability
that it resulted from random chance alone. P-value is a standard measure used to represent
the level of statistical significance. It states the numerical probability that the stated
relationship is due to chance alone. For example, a p-value of 0.05 or 5 percent indicates that
the chance a given statistical difference is due purely to chance is 1 in 20.

2. Practical Significance

The concept of statistical significance should not be confused with practical significance.
According to Mansfield, even if there is a statistically significant difference between a sample
value and a postulated value of a parameter, the difference may not really matter.” This
means disparities not statistically significant are not necessarily caused by chance. It also
means that chance cannot be ruled out as a cause.

The most commonly used practical significance measure in the EEO context is the 4/5th or
80 percent rule, which indicates how large or small a given disparity is. An index less than
100 percent indicates that a given group is being utilized less than would be expected based
on its availability, and courts have adopted the Equal Employment Opportunity

Commission’s “80 percent” rule, that is, that a ratio less than 80 percent presents a prima
facie case of discriminations.

Under the EEOC’s “four-fifths” rule, a disparity ratio is substantively significant if it is 0.8
or less on a scale of 0 to 1 or 80 or less on a scale of 1 to 100 (.e., Group A selection rate
divided by Group B selection rate). Codified in the Uniform Guidelines on Employee Selection
Procedures (UGESP, section 4D), the rule is described as follows:

“A selection rate for any race, sex, or ethnic group which is less than four-fifths
(4/5) (or eighty percent) of the rate for the group with the highest rate will
generally be regarded by the Federal enforcement agencies as evidence of
adverse impact, while a greater than four-fifths rate will generally not be

7 Mansfield, Edwin, Statistics for Business and Economics, p. 322. Two standard deviations imply 95 percent
confidence level which is the norm of the courts.

8 Engineering Contractors II, 122 F3d at 914; see 29 C.F.R. § 1607.4(D) (“A selection rate for any race, sex, or
ethnic group which is less than four-fifths (4/5) (or eighty percent) of the rate for the group with the highest rate
will generally be regarded by the Federal enforcement agencies as evidence of adverse impact, while a greater
than four-fifths rate will generally not be regarded by Federal enforcement agencies as evidence of adverse
impact.”)

MILLER?* CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Dis,gari:yRStUd{
Inal Repor

January 12, 2017
Page ES-15

regarded by Federal enforcement agencies as evidence of adverse impact.
Smaller differences in selection rate may nevertheless constitute adverse
impact, where they are significant in both statistical and practical terms and
where a user's actions have discouraged applicants disproportionately on
grounds of race, sex, or ethnic group. Greater differences in selection rate may
not constitute adverse impact where the differences are based on small
numbers and are not statistically significant.”

Thus, the 4/5th rule is a measure of the size of the disparity, but may need to be interpreted
in light of particular context (e.g., sample size, in combination with statistical significance
testing). However, case law suggests that the 4/5th rule can be interpreted as adequate stand-
alone evidence in some situations, although it is unclear exactly what circumstances warrant
such interpretation. The 80 percent rule is a general rule, and other factors such as statistical
significance, sample size, discouraged applicants, etc., should be analyzed. The rationale for
combining practical and statistical significance results is an intuitive one. In situations
where the measures come to identical conclusions, the analyst can usually feel very confident
in a finding of meaningful impact or no impact. In other situations, context may play an
important role when statistical and practical significance measures produce different
conclusions @.e., when a standard deviation analysis is greater than 2.0 but the 4/5th rule is
not violated)®.

E.3 FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS
E.3.1 SIGNIFICANT DISPARITY

Based on the statistical findings in the disparity chapter, the utilization of qualified firms as
reflected by the percentage of contracts or purchase orders awarded and payments made,
appears to be less inclusive than warranted, when compared to the availability of ready,
willing and able firms (RWASM). Thus, M? Consulting draws an inference of discrimination
against the following race, ethnicity and gender groups:

9 See Tables 1 and 2 that explain this in, “A Consideration of Practical Significance in Adverse Impact
Analysis,” Eric M. Dunleavy, July 2010, http://dciconsult.com/whitepapers/PracSig.pdf

MILLER?* CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Disparity Study

Final Report
January 12, 2017

Page ES-16

Table E.1.

Inference of Discrimination Based on Findings of Statistically Significant Disparity

By Race/Ethnicity/Gender

By Procurement Type

By Federal/Non Federal

Procurement Areas Overall Federal Non Federal

Architectural and
Engineering Services
Agreements

e African Americans
e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females

e Asian Americans

e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females
e African Americans

o Native Americans

e African Americans
e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females

Construction Contracts

e African Americans

e Asian Americans

e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females

e African Americans
e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females

e African Americans

e Asian Americans

e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females

Professional Services

e Asian Americans
e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females

e Asian Americans
e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females

e Asian Americans
e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females

Other Services

e African Americans
e Caucasian Females

e African Americans
e Caucasian Females

e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females

Procurement Contracts

e African Americans
e Asian Americans
e Caucasian Females

e African Americans

e Asian Americans

e Hispanic Americans
e Caucasian Females

e African Americans
e Asian Americans
e Caucasian Females

Source: M3 Consulting

Below is a discussion of the factors leading to and impacting the findings of statistically
significant disparities above.

E.3.2 STATISTICAL FINDINGS IMPACTING STATISTICALLY
SIGNIFICANT DISPARITY
A. Relevant Market

In order to estimate availability, the marketplace in which BART purchases from vendors
needs to be defined. This enables a practical count of “available” firms and also facilitates
policy implementation.

Based on the data provided for this study, five relevant markets were defined and are
presented below:

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Disgari:yRStudxt/
inal Repor

January 12, 2017
Page ES-17

e San Francisco-Oakland-Hayward, CA MSA—consists of the following five counties:
Alameda, San Francisco, Contra Costa, Marin, San Mateo; This MSA is a subset of
the San Francisco Bay Area;

e San Francisco Bay Area—consists of the following nine counties: Alameda, San
Francisco, Contra Costa, Marin, San Mateo, Solano, Napa, Santa Clara, Sonoma

e San Jose-San Francisco-Oakland, CA CSA—consists of the following twelve counties:
Alameda, San Francisco, Contra Costa, Marin, San Mateo, Solano, Napa, Santa Clara,
Sonoma, San Joaquin, Santa Cruz, San Benito

e San Jose-San Francisco-Oakland, CA CSA + Plus Sacramento County—consists of the
following twelve counties: Alameda, San Francisco, Contra Costa, Marin, San Mateo,
Solano, Napa, Santa Clara, Sonoma, San dJoaquin, Santa Cruz, San Benito,
Sacramento County

e State of California

e Nationwide

The relevant market for each industry category is summarized in Table E.1, for each
procurement type by location because of the commercial activity that BART conducts with
its vendors in different procurement areas.

Table E.2.
Summary of Relevant Market Determination

MSA Bay Area State Nationwide

Architecture and Engineering v

Professional Services v

Construction '

Other Services v

Procurement v

Source: M3 Consulting; BART Procurement Bidder Data, PeopleSoft Final Data, BART Planning and Development Work Plan Data; BART OCR
Vendor Payment Tracking Data; BART Plan Holders; BART Vendors

B. Availability Analysis

Based upon industry standards, M® Consulting’s practice, experience and understanding of
data available, credence is typically placed on RWASM estimates derived from bidders, sub-
bidders and awardees in that order of importance. Marketplace availability measures, based
on D&B Availability, are presented as a benchmark of minority and women-owned firm

MILLER?* CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Disgari:yRStudxt/
inal Repor

January 12, 2017
Page ES-18

availability (inclusive of certified and unverified MBEs/WBEs) and for BART to consider
potentially available firms for outreach purposes.

For construction, MBE availability percentage is about 18.43 percent which is almost evenly
derived from the Asian American and Hispanic American MBE groups and a smaller portion
to African American-owned firms. Caucasian Female-owned firms are similar to African
American-owned firms in their availability in the construction industry at 4.48 percent
available based on the RWASM availability measure. The marketplace availability measure
based on construction shows a lower presence of MBEs in the industry and a similar presence
of Caucasian Female-owned firms. In A&E, the availability of M/W/DBEs was at 29.82
percent based on RWASM availability estimates. MBEs were at 22.43 percent and Caucasian
Females at 7.39 percent in the MSA marketplace. The Dun and Bradstreet availability
measure shows a slightly lower representation in the marketplace of M/W/DBEs at 21.53
percent with Caucasian Female-owned firms almost at par with the RWASM availability
estimate at 8.1 percent in the MSA. For Professional Services, M/W/DBEs availability based
on RWASM gvailability was only at 11.89 percent, while the marketplace availability
reflecting the upper bound of available firms was at 14.45 percent. MBEs and Caucasian
Female-owned firm were both evenly low in availability based on RWASM availability
estimates.

Other Services witnessed a declining pattern in M/W/DBEs presence with only 7.22 percent
availability; Caucasian Female-owned firms represented 1.37 percent of availability.
Marketplace estimates of available firms shows a higher proportion of M/W/DBEs at 16.26
percent and of Caucasian Female-owned firms at 8.86 percent. It may imply that Caucasian
Female-owned firms are present in the market area, but do not participate in BART
contracts. The presence of Caucasian Female-owned firms in Procurement is considerably
higher in the marketplace at 8.33 percent compared to only 0.67 percent availability at BART.
In general, the Procurement industry shows a very small presence of M/W/DBEs in the
RWASM gvailability pool at 2.93 percent as opposed to 16.56 percent provided by Dun and
Bradstreet’s potentially available firms. Whether the latter meet the RWASM availability
criteria or express interest in BART contracting process remains to be explored.

MILLER?* CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Disparity Study

Final Report
January 12, 2017

Page ES-19

Table E.3.

Summary Table - RWASM Availability Level 3 Percentage Participation

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Relevant Market; 2011 - 2014

Ethnicity A&E! Construction? Prg:‘s:?:::;\al Other Services* | Procurement®

Race/Ethnicity/Gender

Non-M/W/DBE 62.27 67.25 82.60 83.51 93.63

African American 7.65 4.86 3.96 3.78 0.84

Asian American 10.29 6.48 2.42 0.69 0.84

Hispanic American 3.96 6.85 2.42 1.37 0.59

Other MBE 0.53 0.25 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total MBE 22.43 18.43 8.81 5.84 2.26

Caucasian Female 7.39 4.48 3.08 1.37 0.67

Total M/W/DBE 29.82 22.91 11.89 7.22 2.93

D&B MWBE 7.92 9.84 5.51 9.28 3.43

Total 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Source: M3 Consulting; BART Procurement Bidder Data, PeopleSoft Final Data, BART Planning and Development Work Plan Data; BART OCR
Vendor Payment Tracking Data; BART Planholders; BART Vendors
Level 3: Bidders, Sub-bidders, Formal and Informal Awards form PeopleSoft Data, Prime/Sub Payees from Work Plans and VPTS data
IMSA, 2Bay Area, 3State of California, “Nationwide

Table E.4.

D&B Summary Availability
San Francisco Bay Area

2014
A&E Construction Professional Other Services Procurement
Services

# % # % # % # % # %
Non- 2,471 78.47 6,775 88.18 | 11,286 85.55 8,994 83.74 9,615 83.44
MWBE
MBE 253 8.03 364 4.74 444 3.37 383 3.57 529 4.59
MWBE 170 5.40 165 2.15 419 3.18 411 3.83 419 3.64
WBE 255 8.10 379 493 1,044 7.91 952 8.86 960 8.33
Total 678 21.53 908 11.82 1,907 14.45 1,746 16.26 1,908 16.56
MWDBE
Total 3,149 | 100.00 7,683 | 100.00 | 13,193 | 100.00 | 10,740 | 100.00 | 11,523 100.00

Source: 2014 D&B Hoovers Data; M3 Consulting
*Bay Area—Consists of counties of San Francisco, Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Napa, Solano, Sonoma
**Equivalent to Caucasian Female-owned firms

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Dls;izfyRit:jrxt/

January 12, 2017
Page ES-20

When RWASM Availability is adjusted to the requirements of BART’s Non-Discrimination
Program in Subcontracting, the following availability results:

Table E.5.

Non-Discrimination Availability, Level 3 RWASM Availability
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Relevant Market; 2011-2014

AZE! Construction? P?:f\fi?:sr;al Se?r:l?:;é Procurement®

Race/Ethnicity/Gender
Non-MWBE 62.01 67.25 82.6 83.51 93.63
African American 7.65 4.86 3.74 3.78 0.75
Female 2.37 0.75 1.76 0.69 0.17
Male 5.28 4.11 1.98 3.09 0.59
Asian American 10.03 5.48 2.42 0.34 0.84
Female 2.64 1.62 0.66 0 0.25
Male 7.39 3.86 1.76 0.34 0.59
Caucasian Female 6.86 3.99 2.86 1.37 0.59
Hispanic American 3.69 6.35 2.2 1.37 0.59
Female 1.06 1.87 0.44 0.69 0.08
Male 2.64 4.48 1.76 0.69 0.5
Native American 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0
Other MBE 0.53 0.12 0 0 0
Female 0.53 0.12 0 0 0
Male 0.26 0 0 0 0
Total BART Certified MWBE 28.76 20.8 11.23 6.87 2.76
Female 13.46 8.34 5.73 2.75 1.09
Male 15.57 12.45 5.51 4.12 1.68
Other Certified S/M/W/DBE 1.32 2.12 0.66 0.34 0.17
Total MWBE 30.08 22,91 11.89 7.22 2.93
D&B MWBE 7.92 9.84 5.51 9.28 3.43
Total 100 100 100 100 100

Source: M3 Consulting; BART Procurement Bidder Data, PeopleSoft Final Data, BART Planning and Development Work Plan Data; BART OCR
Vendor Payment Tracking Data; BART Planholders; BART Vendors

Level 3: Bidders, Sub-bidders, Formal and Informal Awards form PeopleSoft Data, Prime/Sub Payees from Work Plans and VPTS data

IMSA, 2Bay Area, 3State of California, “Nationwide

MILLER?* CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Dls;izfyRit:jrxt/

January 12, 2017
Page ES-21

Often, it is argued that actual availability, based on bidders, is significantly impacted by the
presence of race and gender-conscious goals. BART’s data reflects M/W/DBE participation in
Construction, where BART does apply race and gender-conscious goals on Federal contracts,
but to suggest that the difference is due to the utilization of DBE goals would be conjecture.
This is highlighted even more by Utilization results, where BART has been able to achieve a
greater proportion of M/W/DBE utilization in A&E and Professional Services areas, where
race and gender-conscious goals cannot be applied.

Potentially, the difference in Potential Availability and Actual Availability could reflect the
impact on Actual Availability of “But-For Discrimination”, but it could also reflect the absence
of outreach by BART to potentially available firms, as well. In other words, from the RWASM
estimates, bidders, sub-bidders, and awardees are presumed to be actually available,
whereas the D&B figures includes firms that may not be actually available due to
discrimination or other factors. Significantly more research and analysis is necessary to
determine the reasons for differences in availability levels between RWASM and D&B. Other
than race and gender-conscious goals, such factors influencing the difference between RWASM
Availability measures and D&B Availability figures could include, but not be limited to:

¢ Firms available in D&B, while falling into a North American Industry Classification
System code utilized by BART, do not provide the specific goods and services required
by BART;

¢ Firms within the D&B availability pool may not be interested in doing business with
BART or in the public sector; and,

e As a public entity with consistent commitment in its Strategic Mission to community
economic development, BART may be viewed by the community as a more inclusive
environment, than the private sector or other public entities.

As the Office of Civil Rights begins to conduct inclusive outreach to and surveying of firms
on the D&B list to determine their interest and ability to provide their services to BART and
the willingness of unverified D&B Minority/ Women-business enterprises to become certified
to be eligible for BART’s race and gender-conscious initiatives, more conclusive
determinations can be made regarding the difference between RWASM and D&B availability
figures.

MILLER?* CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Executive Summary Dls;izfyRit:jrxt/

January 12, 2017
Page ES-22

C. Utilization Analysis

Table E.6 reflects a summary of utilization for all procurement types. This summary is
followed by more detailed analysis for A&E and Construction in Tables E.7 and E.8.

Based on the most robust data source for each procurement type—contract awards, purchase
orders or payments—M/W/DBEs achieved the highest levels of participation in A&E at 34.60
percent, utilizing on On-call A&E Payments, and the lowest levels of participation in
Procurement at 1.36 percent.

The level of achievement in A&E is worthy of note, given that there were no race and gender-
conscious goals utilized in this procurement category. On the other hand, in Construction,
the only procurement category where BART can utilize race and gender-conscious goals on
federal contracts, M/W/DBE participation reached only 11.38 percent, even though BART’s
overall triennial DBE goal was 22 percent for 2011-2013 and 23 percent for 2014-2016 and
despite achieving over 40 percent M/W/DBE participation at the subcontracting level. A key
difference between A&E and Construction levels of M/W/DBE participation is Pure Prime
participation, 36 percent for A&AE M/W/DBE Pure Prime utilization, combined with 32.38
percent for M/W/DBE subcontracting, contrasted with 0.85 percent for Construction
M/W/DBE Pure Prime utilization, combined with 40.64 percent for M/W/DBE subcontracting.

When comparing On-call A&E Payments data to On-call A&E Commitments data to see if
there are similar trends, it is revealed that African American-owned participation drops
from15.17 percent based on On-call A&E Commitments to 7.39 based on On-call A&E
Payments. Asian American-owned firms show the opposite trend, with 16.38 percent
participation based on On-call A&E Commitments and 23.39 percent based on On-call A&E
Payments.

For participation by specific MBE group and Caucasian Female-owned firms, Asian
American-owned firms had higher participation than African American-owned firms in A&E
and Construction, while African American-owned firms were more represented than Asian
American-owned firms in Professional Services and Other Services. African American-owned
firm participation in Professional Services was significantly higher than all other MWBE
groups at 12.37 percent. However, over 60 percent of this participation reflects awards to
one African American-owned firm.

Hispanic American-owned firms fared best in Construction at 4.62 percent and Other
Services at 3.60 percent. Although their level of participation was greater than the other
MBE groups and Caucasian Female-owned firms, it was not significantly so. Caucasian
Female-owned firms appear to have the lowest levels of participation, except in Professional
Services, where 0.54 percent participation outpaced that of Asian American- and Hispanic

MILLER?* CONSULTING, INC.





Executive Summary

American-owned firms.

Table E.6.

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Disparity Study
Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-23

D&B MWBEs reflected significant levels of participation in the
procurement categories of Construction and Other Services.

Summary Table - Utilization by Relevant Market
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Relevant Market; 2011 — 2014

A&EY® Construction®® Profe.ssmsnsal Other Services3? Procurement*®
Ethnicity Services™
% % % % %
Non-M/W/DBE 61.06 75.23 84.17 77.58 97.30
African American 7.39 3.11 12.37 1.80 0.23
Asian American 23.39 3.65 0.19 1.14 0.29
Hispanic American 1.37 4.62 0.37 3.60 0.81
Total MBE 32.15 11.38 12.93 6.54 1.33
Caucasian Female 2.45 2.02 0.54 0.12 0.03
Total M/W/DBE 34.60 13.39 13.47 6.65 1.36
D&B MWBE 4.35 11.38 2.36 15.77 1.35
Total 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Source: BART Purchasing, BART PeopleSoft Financial Management Information System;

1 Relevant Market = MISA

2 Relevant Market = Bay Area
3 Relevant Market = State of California
4 Relevant Market = Nationwide

5 Contract Awards data

6 On-Call Commitment data
7 Accounts Payable data

8 Purchase Orders data

M3 Consulting

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.






Executive Summary

Table E.7.

Architecture and Engineering
Pure Prime + Sub Contract—PDC On-call Payments, Detailed
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Relevant Market, 2011 — 2014

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Disparity Study
Final Report
January 12, 2017
Page ES-24

MSA*
Pure Prime + Sub Pure Prime Only Subcontractors Only Federal Prime + Sub Nonfederal Prime + Sub

Ethnicity $ % $ % S % $ % $ %

Non-M/W/DBE 59,019,734 61.06 34,721,756 58.71 24,297,977 64.76 26,541,208 60.52 32,478,525 61.50
African American 7,142,603 7.39 2,952,491 4.99 4,190,112 11.17 6,555,424 14.95 587,180 1.11
Asian American 22,609,351 23.39 15,911,699 26.90 6,697,652 17.85 4,347,004 9.91 18,262,347 34.58
Hispanic American 1,322,732 1.37 1,140,424 1.93 182,308 0.49 182,308 0.42 1,140,424 2.16
Total MBE 31,074,686 32.15 20,004,614 33.82 11,070,072 29.51 11,084,735 25.28 19,989,951 37.85
Caucasian Female 2,367,152 2.45 1,287,444 2.18 1,079,709 2.88 2,025,683 4.62 341,469 0.65
Total M/W/DBE 33,441,839 34.60 21,292,057 36.00 12,149,781 32.38 13,110,419 29.90 20,331,420 38.50
D&B MWBE 4,202,529 4.35 3,131,190 5.29 1,071,339 2.86 4,202,529 9.58 0 0.00
Total 96,664,101 100.00 59,145,004 100.00 37,519,097 100.00 43,854,156 100.00 52,809,945 100.00

Source: BART Procurement, M? Consulting,
*MSA—Consists of counties of San Francisco, Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, San Mateo

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.






Executive Summary

Table E.8.

Construction

Pure Prime + Sub Contract Awards—Detailed
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Relevant Market, 2011 — 2014

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Disparity Study
Final Report

January 12, 2017

Page ES-25

Bay Area*
Pure Prime + Sub Pure Prime Only Subcontractor Only Federal Prime + Sub Nonfederal Prime + Sub
Ethnicity S % S % S % S % $ %
Non-M/W/DBE 369,822,861 75.23 301,152,333 89.53 68,670,528 44.23 65,832,363 68.95 303,990,498 76.74
African American 15,296,069 3.11 234,500 0.07 15,061,569 9.70 2,695,633 2.82 12,600,436 3.18
Asian American 17,932,277 3.65 262,530 0.08 17,669,747 11.38 6,290,475 6.59 11,641,802 2.94
Hispanic American 22,699,984 4.62 2,352,622 0.70 20,347,361 13.11 4,301,848 4.51 18,398,136 4.64
Total MBE 55,928,330 11.38 2,849,652 0.85 53,078,677 34.19 13,287,956 13.92 42,640,374 10.76
Caucasian Female 9,906,681 2.02 - 0.00 9,906,681 6.38 3,033,670 3.18 6,873,011 1.74
Total M/W/DBE 65,835,011 13.39 2,849,652 0.85 62,985,358 40.57 16,321,626 17.10 49,513,385 12.50
D&B MWBE 55,938,248 11.38 32,351,458 9.62 23,586,789 15.19 13,320,639 13.95 42,617,609 10.76
Total 491,596,120 100.00 336,353,443 100.00 155,242,675 100.00 95,474,628 100.00 396,121,492 100.00

Source: BART Procurement, M* Consulting,
*Bay Area—Consists of counties of San Francisco, Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Napa, Solano, Sonoma

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.






San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-26

Executive Summary

BART’s utilization data suggests that BART has been able to achieve significant levels of
utilization of DBEs on Federally funded contracts, utilizing different techniques and not
solely relying on race and gender-conscious goals to do so. As stated previously, based on the
findings of its 2009 disparity study and Proposition 209, BART has only been able to apply
race and gender-conscious goals to Federal Construction activity. This activity represents
only about 20 percent of Construction dollars in the relevant market and slightly less than
10 percent of total dollars in the relevant market. Any M/W/DBE participation achieved
outside of these dollars, would have been achieved through race and gender-neutral means.

The procurement area of most note in this regard is A&E, whose overall levels of M/W/DBE
participation outpaced that of Construction. Given that Planning, Development and
Construction and Maintenance and Engineering, along with the Procurement Department,
are responsible for both A&E and Construction services, the procurement techniques and the
contracting vehicles utilized may have a significant influence on outcomes:

e A&E services—which includes Architecture and Engineering, Construction
Management, Environmental Services and other Design and Construction-related
Professional Services—are considered a Professional Service and are procured using
Requests for Proposal. For A&E Agreements, BART relies heavily on the contract
vehicle of Indefinite Quantity Contracts (IDIQ) on a Cost Plus basis. These
procurement and contract vehicles provide more discretion in decision-making at both
the prime and subcontracting levels.

e Construction, on the other hand, is primarily procured using Invitation to Bid (ITB)
for all Construction projects over $10,000, consistent with State of California law.
ITBs are procured on lowest responsible and responsive bid, unless a two-step bidding
process is utilized.

Further, it appears that the majority of M/W/DBE participation in Construction is found at
the subcontracting level, with little participation of M/W/DBE firms as prime contractors. In
contrast, on A&E, participation proportions reflect M/W/DBE commitments at both the prime
and subcontracting levels. When comparing Construction Thresholds from $0 to $1.5 million,
using Pure Prime + Subcontract Award data and Purchase Orders data, which is Prime level
activity only, the differences are stark. Based on Prime Award Purchase Order data,
M/W/DBE participation did not exceed 2.36 percent in any threshold. Given the levels of
participation achieved at the subcontracting level of almost 40 percent, with significant
participation in thresholds between $0 and $1.5 million, this prime level performance suggest
that BART views the achievement of race and gender-conscious goals as a subcontracting
requirement under ITBs, due to the low bid requirement. If such a view is indeed held by

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-27

Executive Summary

BART (and other public and private entities in the Bay Area), and procurement interviews
suggest that it may well be, this perspective/bias could have a significant influence on the
capacity of M/W/DBEs to grow and develop in the Bay Area. Additionally, while M/W/DBEs
have shown that they are capable of satisfactorily performing subcontracts of significant
value and size, State of California bonding insurance and financing required for Public
Works contracts affects the ability of many M/W/DBE firms to bid as prime contractors on
similarly sized contracts.

Given that specialization is a factor to be considered across all procurement categories, lower
levels of participation in other procurement categories—Professional Services, when outliers
are adjusted for, Other Services and Procurement—may reflect a lack of organizational focus
on inclusive efforts that promote M/W/DBE participation in these areas.

D. Disparity Analysis

Table E.9 summarizes the disparity ratios discussed in this chapter for each procurement
categories at the race/ethnic/gender group level, for BART procurements for the study period
2011-2014. Based on the foregoing analysis and the summary below, findings of statistically
significant disparity are made for the following groups in the following procurement
categories:

e Architecture and Engineering—African American-owned firms, Hispanic American-
owned firms, Caucasian Female-owned firms;

e Construction—African American-owned firms, Asian American-owned firms,
Hispanic American-owned firms, Caucasian Female-owned firms;

e Professional Services—Asian American-owned firms, Hispanic American-owned
firms, Caucasian Female-owned firms;

e Other Services—African American-owned firms, Caucasian Female-owned firms;

e Procurement—African American-owned firms, Asian American-owned firms,
Caucasian Female-owned firms.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





Executive Summary

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-28
Table E.9.
Summary Disparity Ratios by Race, Ethnicity and Gender
Utilization vs. RWA*M Availability Level 3
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Relevant Market; FY 2011-FY 2014
A&E Construction Professional Other Procurement
Ethnicity Services Services
(On-call (Contract (Purchase (Purchase (Purchase
Payments) Awards) Orders) Orders) Orders)
Ratio | Sign. | Ratio | Sign. | Ratio | Sign. | Ratio | Sign. | Ratio | Sign.
Non-M/W/DBE 0.98 S 1.12 S 1.02 S 0.93 S 1.04 S
African American 0.97 S 0.64 S 3.12 S 0.48 S 0.27 S
Asian American 2.27 S 0.56 S 0.08 S 1.65 S 0.35 S
Hispanic American 0.35 S 0.67 S 0.15 S 2.63 S 1.37 S
Total MBE 1.43 S 0.62 S 1.47 S 1.12 S 0.59 S
Caucasian Female 0.33 S 0.45 S 0.18 S 0.09 S 0.04 S
Total M/W/DBE 1.16 S 0.58 S 1.13 S 0.92 S 0.46 S
D&B MWBE 0.55 S 1.16 S 0.43 S 1.70 S 0.39 S

Source: BART Procurement, BART PeopleSoft Financial Management Information System, BART VPTS Data; BART On-Call Data; M? Consulting
Significance is S and Ratio is Greater than 1—Statistically Significant Overutilization; Significance is S and Disparity Ratio is Less than 1 —

Statistically Significant Underutilization;

Significance is NS and Ratio is Greater than 1—Over utilized, but not Statistically Significant; Significance is NS and Disparity Ratio is Less than 1 —
Underutilized, but not Statistically Significant;

ND: Not Defined

E. Capacity Issues

As disparities in procurement and contracting are often attributed to differences in capacity
of Non-M/W/DBE and M/W/DBE firms, the capacity analysis sought to examine if there were
any differences in capacity of firms based on race or gender that impact disparity outcomes
and could hinder firms from being actually and potentially available to BART. Because the

pool of 76 firms that have actually contracted with BART is too small to draw definitive
conclusions, M? Consulting can only conduct an analysis on the pool of total respondents that

include potential and actually available firms.

Therefore, this analysis does not support

drawing conclusions on any disparity outcomes since the sample of respondents is too small
to generalize toward the population of all firms. Moreover, on important questions that

discussed contracts and awards, the response rate was even smaller overall.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.






Executive Summary

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-29

Even so, M? Consulting was able to draw some conclusions from the various capacity analysis

conducted. Based on D&B, there is little difference in capacity based on number of employees

and revenues among the race/gender/ethnic groups in the Bay Area.

To analyze capacity of S/M/W/DBEs compared to Non-M/W/DBEs, M? Consulting
conducted a survey of vendors that registered to do business with BART and examined
the differences in capacity by race/gender/ethnic groups. Some summary highlights
from the survey are as follows:

o On average, majority women-owned firms are statistically significantly
younger, but do not have significantly lower start-up capital as well as gross
receipts.

o There is also no significant difference in the number of times women-owned
firms apply for a bond than their male counterparts but women-owned firms
are denied a bond significantly fewer times on average. Similarly, MBEs apply
almost half the times than Non-M/W/DBEs apply for bonds and loans/lines of
credit, but get denied significantly more often.

o Women-owned firms, including Caucasian Female-owned firms are denied
more often on loans or lines of credit, although this difference is not
statistically significant.

o MBEs and WBEs have significantly fewer full time employees and are younger
on average than Non-M/W/DBEs.

o While start-up monies are not significantly different between the groups, the

gross receipts between MBEs and WBEs are significantly smaller than Non-
M/W/DBEs.

After accounting for variables that may impact revenues of firms,
race/gender/ethnicity of the firm’s owner does not seem to have any influence, with
the exception of Caucasian Female ownership, wherein they seem to positively
influence revenues. Any variation in revenues of African-American owned, Hispanic
American-owned and Asian American-owned firms from similarly situated Non-
M/W/DBEs was purely due to chance.

Examining the factors that impact the self-employment decision, it is noted that
comparing similarly situated individuals (in terms of economic and demographic
variables), in the State, a non-minority male is 1.87 times more likely to be self-
employed as an African American, 1.62 times as likely as an Asian American, about

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-30

Executive Summary

1.15 times as likely as any Other Race and only little over half as likely as an Hispanic
American to be self-employed. Also, women are half as likely as men to be self-
employed.

e Further examining the likelihood of self-employment based on race and gender
characteristics, controlling for variables related to economic and demographic factors,
we find that compared to non-minority male, Asian American-owned and African
American-owned firms and Women-owned firms are significantly less likely to be self-
employed in California, whereas Hispanic Americans are significantly more likely to
be self-employed. Also, consistent with the literature, those in the Construction
industry appear to have more self-employment. Examination of the construction
industry shows consistent results.

¢ Examining the factors that impact self-employment earnings, we note that all other
variables kept constant, a self-employed Hispanic American will earn about $960
more than a non-minority firm; a self-employed African American will earn about
$1,546 less, an Asian American will earn about $1,535 less and a female will earn
$1,803 less than a male, if self-employed.

While capacity differences do not appear to be distinct in the size of the firms based on
revenues or full time employees based on race/gender or ethnicities, the constraints in
capacities are more notable in business formation and factors related to the self-employment
decision and earnings which include denials in bonds and loans/lines of credit.

E.3.3 QUALITATIVE FINDINGS IMPACTING STATISTICALLY
SIGNIFICANT DISPARITY

A. Procurement
1. Procurement Process

BART operates in a fairly decentralized procurement environment, with sponsor
departments having significant input on the “buy” decision in many instances. The
decentralization is particularly evident in the procurement area of A&E, where the
utilization of On-call (Indefinite Quantity contracts) provides Planning, Development and
Construction significant control over the manner in which dollars are expended post-award
through the execution of work plans. It is important to note that decentralized procurement
alone is not the primary concern, but whether there is sufficient infrastructure support and
organizational oversight to ensure transparency, accountability, efficiencies and above all,
fairness and inclusiveness on an on-going basis.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-31

Executive Summary

On procurements that it does not directly procure, the Procurement Department serves in a
mostly administrative role, particularly as it relates to change orders and work plans
executed against IDIQs. In so doing, BART’s procurement objectives of creating an inclusive,
efficient, fair and open procurement process are sometimes secondary to providing Sponsor
Department’s the greatest degree of flexibility in achieving their departmental objectives.
That flexibility has supported, in some instances, the ability of BART project managers, to
continuously select favored firms through the work plan process in A&E. In other areas
where the Procurement Department does directly procure, including Construction, BART’s
procurement process does not reflect an effort to include M/W/DBEs at the prime level on
either formal or informal purchases. M/W/DBE participation is viewed as a Senior
Management mandate, as opposed to a component of inclusive public sector procurement. M?
Consulting formulated barriers within the procurement system into the following areas:

e Lack of integration of diversity and inclusion throughout BART Strategic Plan
minimizes organizational focus on achievement of DBE, SB and MWBE inclusion in
BART opportunities as a policy objective.

e Decentralized procurement function without strategic oversight reduces BART’s
ability to develop an inclusive and sustainable procurement operation; lack of
enterprise resource planning (ERP) integration further exacerbates problems caused
by decentralization.

e Minimal procurement forecasting reduces BART’s ability to engage in effective
planning to meet BART’s strategic mission of “economic prosperity” and to achieve
inclusive procurement through its procurement opportunities.

e Underdeveloped vendor registration impacts BART’s ability to effectively identify
DBEs, SBs and MWBEs “ready and willing” to bid on BART opportunities, as well as
reduces BART’s ability to establish tailored project goals.

e While sealed bid and RFP processes are consistent with industry practice, over-
reliance on broad on-call contracts and lack of price caps reduces BART’s ability to
ensure inclusiveness and sustainability in levels of M/W/DBE participation in these
procurements.

e BART’s approach to the issue of contractor/consultant substitutions reflects an
organizational culture that is overprotective of prime vendor rights to the detriment
of BART’s rights, which includes BART’s strategic mission, as well as
subcontractors/subconsultants on BART projects.

e While BART’s General Manager has exhibited leadership in promoting DBE, SB and
MWBE participation through race-neutral programmatic initiatives and community
outreach, the effectiveness of these initiatives are lessened by the issues outlined
above, leading to greater organizational inefficiencies.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-32

Executive Summary

2. Data Infrastructure Challenges

Issues resulting from unchecked decentralization are greatly compounded by issues related
to BART’s data infrastructure. Given the size and complexity of many of BART’s A&E and
Construction contracts, some over $300 million, a combination of decentralization and data
systems limitations can mask operational issues that may have become discriminatory and
exclusionary. As such, these factors can impact the accurate reporting of BART awards,
commitments and payments, as required by 49 CFR Part 26, and the monitoring and
reporting that the California courts!® have deemed allowable and appropriate under
Proposition 209. We note that in an Equal Employment Opportunity environment, such
inability to provide accurate and complete reporting on key decision-making impacting
hiring, promotions and termination in and of itself could result in a finding of adverse impact.
The procurement and DBE (federal) and MWBE (principally state and local) regulatory
environment has not kept pace with EEO. Key data issues are summarized below:

e BART only implemented an online vendor portal in January 2016. Currently, only
RFPs are available on-line. Previously, for notification of opportunities and
solicitation, BART procurement specialists and buyers relied principally on individual
lists of firms that each had developed.

e BART’s bidder and sub-bidder data on formal contracts is maintained in hard-copy
formats, as well as any written quotes solicited. Telephone quotes are not always
recorded in any electronic formats. Furthermore, BART does not collect requisite data
on a consistent basis, including age of firm and annual gross receipts for bidders and
sub-bidders (and quotes) as required under 49 CFR Part 26.11. In 2013, OCR
attempted to begin compliance with the data collection requirements of 49 CFR Part
26, however, such an effort requires collaboration with Procurement. BART does not
have a system for collecting prime contractor’s sub-bidder data. Data needed on a
semi-annual basis to report DBE participation to FTA is performed through a manual
data collection process.

e BART’s award data is maintained in hard-copy formats in Procurement’s bid files.
OCR attempted to collect prime and subcontractor award and commitment data
directly from BART’s prime vendors through the Vendor Payment Tracking System,
but this effort has not produced reliable information.'! Prime vendor commitment

10 gee Hi-Voltage v. San Jose, 101 Cal Rptr. 653, 671 (2000) and Connerly v. State Personnel Board, 92 Cal.
App. 4th 16 (2001).

11 Ag discussed in Chapter 4: Statistical Methodology, in a comparison of contract information by individual
Contract ID, M? Consulting was unable to match a significant number of contract and subcontract values

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-33

Executive Summary

data is available from the PeopleSoft Financial Management system. Subcontractor
commitment data is potentially available through PeopleSoft in PDF invoices that
may or may not reflect detailed subcontractor data.

e Because of BART's reliance on IDIQs cost plus contract vehicles (on-call contracts) for
much of its A&E activity, BART’s data systems can not accurately capture award and
commitment data for A&E, as both are considered budgetary figures only. Definite
quantities for A&E can be determined only at the point of payment at both the prime
and subcontractor levels. OCR’s Vendor Payment Tracking System does not include
work plan data against the IDIQs. Only PDC’s work plan summaries and invoices
contain prime and subcontractor commitment (budget) and payments data.

e Payments data is maintained at the prime vendor level in the PeopleSoft financial
management system. Subcontractor data may be gleaned through a manual effort
from PDF's of invoices attached in PeopleSoft system. Subcontractor payments are
maintained in disparate systems utilized by project managers in sponsor departments
and resident engineers. OCR attempted to collect subcontractor payments through
the Vendor Payment Tracking System. However, lack of systems integration impacts
the reliability of this data system.

e These hard-copy, online and electronic databases are not integrated, thus limiting the
depth of analysis that BART can conduct on the impact of its annual spend decisions
on DBE, SB and MWBE participation, as well as BART’s overall impact on economic
development in the Bay Area. Furthermore, BART is not positioned to report on DBE,
SB and MWBE participation in real-time, which reduces its ability to quickly respond
to changes in DBE, SB and MWBE levels of participation on its contracting activity,
until well after procurement spend has occurred, and often, after payment has already
been made. Lastly, because complete and detailed procurement data is not available
in easily retrievable formats, reporting to FTA on DBE participation on a semi-annual
basis requires a significant data collection effort by OCR from different BART
departments and data collection for disparity studies performed every five years is
laborious, costly, and quickly outdated. Because OCR reports on the inclusiveness of
the “buy” decisions made by Procurement and Sponsor Departments, it is dependent
on the effectiveness and efficiency of data recorded by procurement decision-makers.

e This lack of procurement consistency, and its effect on perceived lack of accountability
and transparency also compromises BART’s ability to respond to community concerns
in a manner that builds trust and goodwill.

reflected in the VPTS data to other sources of data, ie On-call data, Purchase Order data, Payments data and
Contract awards data. Given that VPTS is designed to simply be a “storehouse” of information from these other
sources, VPTS data should directly match contract values in these sources.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-34

Executive Summary

A sound procurement system and data infrastructure is critical to meeting the spirit and
intent of Richmond v. Croson. The U.S. Supreme Court did not intend for race and gender-
conscious remedies to become permanent fixtures for public entities. Instead, these remedies
should be utilized only when needed. Without adequate insight into organizational decision-
making regarding procurement in real-time, BART does not have the flexibility to utilize this
“tool” in an as-needed manner, quickly responsive to a changing, organic procurement
process. Additionally, if the California courts do indeed identify a set of facts requiring the
utilization of race and gender-conscious remedies on non-federal procurement, this flexibility
may also be a key requirement to addressing the courts’ and voters’ concerns on the

utilization of such remedies as expressed in Proposition 209.12
B. Anecdotal

The anecdotal data from 49 participants was gathered through a series of 22 one-on-one in-
depth interviews and five focus groups, which included 27 participants. Those interviewed
included both minority and women business owners, as well as non-minority male business
owners. The objective of the in-depth interviews was to capture the experiences, attitudes,
issues, and perceptions of business owners seeking opportunities with BART, and with other
public and private organizations in the San Francisco Bay area.

The anecdotal testimony tended to reflect the impact of BART’s bureaucracy on the ability of
DBEs, SBs and MWBEs to do business with the agency in a fair and open manner.
Interviewees expressed concerns about the perceived large size of contracts, the repeated use
of the same firms, BART’s preference for large firms over DBEs, SBs and MWBEsSs, excessive
red tape, and the unfair cancellation of contracts to DBEs, SBs and MWBEs, as well as the
unwillingness to award to DBE, SB and MWBE at the prime level.

Interviewees also revealed perceived unfair practices by prime contractors including lack of
serious consideration provided at matchmaking sessions, excessive bonding and insurance
requirements for subcontractors, unwillingness to contract with DBEs, SBs and MWBEs
listed on winning bid (being dropped after contract award), and derogatory comments and
attitudes utilized. The contracting issues voiced by interviewees require more investigation
by BART to determine whether Public Contract Code 4100, Fairness in Subcontracting and
Subletting, is being violated as it relates to BART specific public works contracts.

The impact of the 2008 recession and Proposition 209 was also discussed by interviewees.
These events have resulted in a decline in the number of DBEs, SBs and MWBEs in the Bay

12 See Coral Construction, Inc. v. City and County of San Francisco, 50 Cal.4th 315 (2010).

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-35

Executive Summary

Area. The growth and development of these firms is also being impacted by the unavailability
of skilled employees.

C. Private Sector

The local demographics in the San Francisco-Oakland-Fremont MSA includes about 54
percent Whites, a little over 19 percent Hispanic/Latino Americans and Asian Americans
each, less than 8 percent African Americans. Of those persons who are in the labor force,
Hispanic Americans in the San Francisco-Oakland-Fremont MSA were represented to a
greater degree, with 70.6 percent of the total Hispanic population participating in the labor
force, compared to 67.6 percent of the White population. African Americans had the lowest
level of participation in the labor force at 61 percent of the African American population,
followed by Asian Americans at 66.0 percent.

It is expected that the differences in the availability of firms in the relevant market would be
representative of these statistics. As such, it is important to study the degree to which the
population is gaining education and experience that could lead to business formation.
Because of the intense focus on inclusion of DBEs, MWBESs and SBs in construction by many
public agencies, we focus here in these Private Sector Conclusions on that industry.

Among all racial and ethnic groups, Hispanic Americans have the greatest employment
presence in construction in the San Francisco-Oakland-Fremont MSA, at 47.8 percent of
Construction and Extractive Craft Workers and 52.3 percent of Laborers and Helpers. Asian
Americans have some representation in all areas of construction, whereas African Americans
have a relatively small presence in construction. Even so, in actual BART Construction
availability and utilization, Hispanic American-owned firms do not significantly outpace
other M/W/DBE proportions.

Further evidence of DBE and MWBE participation and penetration within the construction
marketplace was obtained from Reed Elsevier (Reed), which is a private firm that surveys
construction-related activity in various regions around the United States. The San Francisco-
Oakland-Fremont MSA and the San Jose-San Francisco-Oakland CSA regions were reported
for this disparity study. Reed bid and award data indicates that DBEs and MWBEs within
the San Francisco-Oakland-Fremont MSA appear to obtain few construction sector projects,
even in subcontracting opportunities. The Reed data is self-reported.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-36

Executive Summary

A more telling picture on M/W/DBE participation in the private sector emerges from a review
of City and County of San Francisco Building Permits data.'> Over 95 percent of building
permits, based on counts, were issued to Non-M/W/DBEs, compared to 80 percent in the
public sector. Based on actual dollar values of these building permits, almost 98 percent went
to Non-M/W/DBEs in both the Private and Public sector. Even when broken down into
threshold categories, starting with $0-50,000, Non-M/W/DBE participation was between 95-
99 percent in the different categories. Despite earlier evidence from Census EEO data that
Hispanic American dominated the construction industry occupations, in the public sector, no
permit was issued to any Hispanic American-owned firm represented on the Master
S/M/W/DBE certification list and only 0.01 percent and 0.3 percent of issued permits were
awarded to African American-owned firms and Asian American-owned firms, respectively.
Caucasian Female-owned firms were issued 0.01 percent of public sector building permits.

Of the top 20 awardees of building permits for the FY 2010-15, a total of three D&B MWBE
firms from the Master S/IM/W/DBE certification list are among the top 20 awardees that
received building permits. None of the three were among the RWASM firms within the
relevant market for BART.

D. Race Neutral

M3 Consulting reviewed over 100 Management, Financial and Technical Assistance
providers, along with Chambers of Commerce and other networking organization, in San
Francisco, Alameda and Contra Costa County. Further, 18 Executive Directors were
interviewed. Key concerns expressed by these leaders were as follows:

o Proposition 209 reduced the availability of contracting opportunities and reduced
contracting activity to MWBEs;

¢ MWBEs have a very difficult time obtaining loans, especially African Americans.
Some of the reasons cited are lack of resources, bad credit decisions, and generational
poverty;

e The lack of access to decision makers who award contracts prevents MWBEs from
obtaining business and growing their firms;

13 This did not include Alameda County and Contra Costa since the former was unresponsive and the latter
sent data in unusable formats. Thus these two counties were not included in the data presented.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-37

Executive Summary

e Lack of access to and participation in management, technical and financial
assistance programs;

e Unwillingness of prime contractors to utilize MWBEs, unless required to do so by
governmental agencies.

M2 Consulting found that, while these organizations had some impact on improving DBEs,
SBs and MWBEs management skills, access to capital, and greater exposure to the larger
business community, DBEs, SBs and MWBEs still face difficulty in gaining access to public
and private sector contracting opportunities. Additionally, while there have been some efforts
to address capacity in the Bay Area and BART has seen slight increases in DBEs, SBs and
MWBEs participation in contract awards in some industry categories, in general, the slow
growth in increased capacity remain an issue. While race and gender-neutral efforts may
have contributed in some degree to increased capacity and participation in contract awards,
race and gender-neutral programs alone have not been fully effective in increasing
availability, capacity or utilization of DBEs, SBs and MWBEs.

E.4 RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the foregoing findings and conclusions, M? Consulting developed recommendations
to address the factors creating the disparity. An overview of the recommendations are
provided in Section E.3 of this Executive Summary and in detail in Chapter 12, Conclusions
and Recommendations.

The recommendations below include both race and gender-conscious and race and gender-
neutral recommendations. These conclusions and recommendations should assist the BART
Board of Directors and BART Staff to determine whether the disparity rises to a level of
discrimination warranting the utilization of race and gender-conscious remedies within the
parameters of the U.S. Supreme Court’s Richmond v. Croson decision and its progeny,
including Western States Paving v. Washington DOT, decided by the 9t Circuit, along with
49 CFR Part 26 and Proposition 209.

If BART chooses to continue to utilize some form of a race and gender-conscious program, it
will need to meet the U.S. Supreme Court requirements of Richmond v. Croson. Narrow
tailoring is the crucial element in crafting appropriate Croson remedies. Courts, have struck
down many MWBE programs due to the failure of local jurisdictions to narrowly tailor their
remedies Once a factual predicate has been established, post-Croson case law presents
several broad guidelines for crafting recommendations for MWBE programs by a public
entity, based on the factual predicate findings.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-38

Executive Summary

e Race and gender-conscious MWBE programs should be instituted only after, or in
conjunction with, race/gender-neutral programs.

e MWBE programs should not be designed as permanent fixtures in a purchasing
system without regard to eradicating bias in standard purchasing operations or in
private sector contracting. Consequently, each MWBE program should have a sunset
provision, as well as provisions for regular review. Additionally, there is the
implication that reform of purchasing systems should be undertaken.

e MWBE programs should have graduation provisions for the MWBESs that have largely
overcome the effects of discrimination and no longer are in need of a remedy.

¢ Rigid numerical quotas run a greater risk of being overturned by judicial review than
flexible goals.

e Race and gender-conscious goals, if any, should be tied to MWBE availability and to
addressing identified discrimination.

¢ MWBE programs should limit their impact on the rights and operations of third
parties.

e MWBE programs should be limited in scope to only those group(s) and firms that
suffer the on-going effects of past or present discrimination.

These measures are designed to address the underlying systemic factors that contributed to
the disparity in contracting. In light of the findings and conclusions above, M?® Consulting is
providing the following recommendations to BART.

E.3.2 BART ORGANIZATIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS

BART enjoys forward looking leadership and a mission that matters as it relates to Equity
and Inclusion. In order to build upon this advantage, below is a summary of
recommendations to BART for organizational, cultural, structural and programmatic
changes that will lead to inclusive, transformative and sustainable change in BART’s
procurement operations and that will bring BART into regulatory compliance and alignment
with best practices. These recommendations are largely race and gender-neutral.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-39

Executive Summary

1. Change inclusion focus from programmatic (compliance with DBE regulations) to
organizational (commitment to inclusive procurement environment)
a. Identify BART’s inclusive procurement objectives
b. Connect BART’s inclusive procurement objectives, strategies, tactics and tasks to
BART strategic mission, which includes community economic development,
equity and inclusion objectives

2. Recognize that planning and procurement are often the first steps in actualizing the
Board’s Strategic Mission, particularly as it relates to community economic
development

3. Determine procurement operational structure that ensures reporting to the Board of
Directors and General Manager on

a. Manner in which procurement spend has met the strategic mission and policy
objectives established by the Board of Directors and General Manager

b. Targets and goals met by the entire organization

c¢. Procurement techniques and contracting vehicles that best meet the mission and
objectives established by the Board of Directors and General Manager

d. Remember: The Office of Civil Rights is the Advocate; OCR does not make the
“Buy Decision” and thus, cannot be solely accountable to the Board for the
organization’s performance on inclusive procurement.

4. Promote greater transparency and accountability in procurement and post-
award contract activity
a. Develop fully integrated data systems that address procurement, project
management, OCR and accounts payable requirements
1. To maximize transparency of procurement decision-making
1. To ensure compliance with requirements of 49 CFR Part 26
1i1. To allow for greater planning consistent with strategic mission and policy
objectives
iv. To allow BART staff to respond real-time to inclusion/exclusion issues
b. Review procurement methods and contract vehicles utilized to ensure
transparency and accountability on decision-making pre- and post-award
c. Monitor contracts for issues of overconcentration

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-40

Executive Summary

5. Ensure that Decision-Making within BART can be monitored, using an EEO
Applicant Flow model equivalent

a. Develop ability to track procurement spend in a manner that highlights decision-
making points (selection, evaluations, contract changes) to ensure decisions by BART
and its prime contractors/prime consultants are being made in a non-discriminatory
manner. RWASM and Disparity Analysis tracking and compliant reporting should
include the following:

1. Potential Availability from D&B Firms, Firms Receiving Building Permits
and/or Business License, certified DBE, SB and MWBE firms, non-certified
DBE, SB and MWBE firms, trade organization membership; on-line data bases

1. Registered Vendors, Plan Holders, Pre-Qualified Vendors

iii. Bidders and Sub-bidders (inclusive of quotes)

iv. Awardees and Payees and Sub-awardees and Sub-payees

v. Difference between prime and subcontracting opportunities; vendor
performance

vi. Contract terminations, for convenience and for cause; subcontractor
substitutions

6. Develop “development-based” inclusion programs based on 7 Stages of
DevelopmentSV
a. Planning

b. Financing
c. Designing
d. Construction
e. Equipping
f. Maintaining
g. Operating

7. Promote prime level participation

a. Identify prime-level procurement opportunities where a significant pool of DBEs,
SBs and MWBEs are available
Establish prime-level participation targets (federal only)
Increase the utilization of SB set-asides and sheltered market opportunities
Advertise small business opportunities
Review pool of DBE, SB and MWBE sub-bidders and subcontractors to
determine those ready for prime level awards
Utilize bid rotation on IDIQs
g. Unbundle contracts into commercially viable units

o a0

s

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-41

Executive Summary

h. Optimize joint ventures, mentor/protégé, distributorships
E.3.2 BART DBE, SBE and SB Recommendations

Further recommendations include augmenting BART's DBE, SBE and SB program
operations by developing effective outreach and matchmaking programs; maximizing the
utilization of small business and sheltered market programs; developing effective bonding
and insurance assistance programs; developing processes for certifying and tracking joint
ventures, mentor-protégé and distributorships; and developing working capital and
paymaster programs with Financial Assistance Providers.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





Executive Summary

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |
January 12, 2017
Page ES-42

E.3.3 UTILIZATION OF RACE AND GENDER-CONSCIOUS GOALS

In certain categories and for certain groups, race/gender-conscious means are supportable
activities toward the achievement of established goals, based on the findings of statistically

significant disparity. These categories are repeated here for convenience and include:

Table E.10.

Categories for Race/Ethnicity/Gender-Conscious Means of Addressing Disparity
By Procurement Type
By Federal/Non Federal

Procurement Areas

Overall

Federal

Non Federal

A&E

e African Americans
e Hispanic Americans

e Caucasian Females

Asian Americans
Hispanic Americans

Caucasian Females

African Americans
Hispanic Americans

Caucasian Females

Construction

e African Americans
e Asian Americans
e Hispanic Americans

e Caucasian Females

African Americans
Hispanic Americans
Caucasian Females

African Americans
Asian Americans
Hispanic Americans

Caucasian Females

Professional Services

e Asian Americans
e Hispanic Americans

e Caucasian Females

Asian Americans
Hispanic Americans
Caucasian Females

Asian Americans
Hispanic Americans
Caucasian Females

Other Services

e African Americans

e Caucasian Females

African Americans

Caucasian Females

Hispanic Americans

Caucasian Females

Procurement

e African Americans
e Asian Americans

e Caucasian Females

African Americans
Asian Americans
Hispanic Americans
Caucasian Females

African Americans
Asian Americans

Caucasian Females

Source: M3 Consulting

As significant disparity is eliminated in the above categories, the utilization of race and
gender-neutral means in attaining the established goals should be increased. However, in all
instances where race and gender-neutral means are utilized, if significant disparity re-
emerges, then race and gender-conscious techniques can be utilized on a non-permanent
basis to correct identified disparities. Given the recommendations regarding data capture,
these categories should be closely monitored, as BART implements the procurement and
organizational recommendations above, which may result in changes in disparity findings.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.





San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Disparity Study

Final Report, Volume |

January 12, 2017

Page ES-43

Executive Summary

E.4 SUMMARY

In summary, it is reiterated that Miller®* Consulting, Inc. found that BART purchasing
activities suggest that DBEs, SBs and MWBESs continue to have some difficulties obtaining
significant contracts with BART. In submitting specific findings within the Disparity Study
for BART, M? Consulting formulated recommendations that allow BART to rely upon race
and gender-conscious means when necessary to address ongoing hindrances to eliminating
disparities, while also addressing DBE, SB and MWBE participation through race and
gender-neutral efforts. Our economic and statistical utilization analyses could serve as part
of the policy and procedure-making decisions needed to ensure enhanced and legally
defensible DBE, SB and MWBE participation in BART’s purchasing processes.

MILLER? CONSULTING, INC.






Escalator Renovation Program - Phase 1- h

January 12, 2017

*






Escalator Renovation Program Phase 1
System Overview

» 177 escalators in the system today

« 54 street, 123 platform

« 120 units were installed prior to 1980

» Escalators consists of 8 manufacturers

* Had 2 major overhauls - 1985 and 2000.

* Program replaces the escalators as new
pending usage, availability and funding.





Powell St. — Phase 1

S J& /
Y
h :/ Q'& “/
T \ / ‘/’
Hallidie \__/ | /
Plaza \\‘ g ;
— & L :
e |
MARKET STREET
Westfield Fe T T T T T T T T T T Ty
e -
N O I T
EXISTING ESCALATOR SCHEDULE (STREET ESCALATORS)
LoC UNIT | MAXE | STATT § RSE STEPS | HANDRAN | MACH HM | MAIN 480 R | Panfl BRAR Aw SPEED GRILLE SUNP —DRAMN
V—30] 5-2 mt- 106A32 | 2043 B6_| 72403 | ToF oW T=110 ='-n 1 50 VES S e Wearhouse
W=30| 5-7 100960 | 21.95 Wl 127.9 ToP PIT C=108 100 S DRN STREPT LEVEL /_l\
‘?@‘??@O??‘F?@@@?‘??‘?@? -
' P
s o | %H"’— | ! | /
- S L[ K
. S
| — i — e -
[_ -+ #_ S = = = mu—i?;
| M . A— ]
- Nid & —
== \ 1y (-
L \ o n srcion CONCOURSE_LEVEL T z
/32" = 10" A1 30






Civic Center — Phase 1

Public
Library

& ESCALATO / §
M « N Plaz
{amt STREEY., 9 /mmE STREET, U aza /mmwnmuz
. /
\x-e:uunc s / - - / /
/ ESCALATOR A )
/" Orpheum /
Theatre u_:_:umu #56 N ~ / /
Lt ) - e\ e — Lo
: D I i ‘o B ? :
— L @ |
H
—
]
A D B R = ;
i s e s i i e o 2]
£ S ———— ey . !
E ; H STREET
R ey CVS Pharmacy
Hotel Whitcomb Trinity Plaza
® © 0 Q ® © ® ® ® ©
| T T VENDOR VAULTS i ]/ I T T
1028 ESCALATOR M2 ~ 1068 _ '
2C ELEVATCR #56 | |
0'an \ FLOWER VENDOR | MEN I ~~ STATION u:oﬁ—uu\ll i 1
MARKET/GROVE/HILE 024 ~ N\ A 1034 4 vEN A
ESCALATOR 56 TN, 190my CRALADN £1  WOREN 1074
ESCALATOR 57 Pk, g oo — I ‘~l1§ fon
B TR ECONDARY = 107H
- BAAT PAlD AREA H

“ g
f@
E

| o
P‘-

1076
1070

ELEvaTOR #57

- —
4 /
e - P == / 0"5 108E
101€ — P . /1044 / s
A SLAMAKET ™\ pscaiaon 510 o CITY/XPRESS "/ 1048
ESCALATOR 56 _/ / ESCALATOR 73 _/ 3 /
STATION ACENT-WUM V4 ESCALATOR P4 o:o—/ oaa- /
STATION AGENT- BART /S
VENDOR VAULTS —~ CONCOURS P

Bl Base
Options





Montgomery — Phase 1

McKesson Plaza

Sheraton Palace

New
Montgomery

(’f) (? € ;) 0 (%) (8)
T T\ .
]

=,
S
o
‘\‘“
.
"
(1a) ) (2) (3 OO (is) (7) ONEORRS) @)
T | | [ sees
!
| I i | | | \" T T Sees s AN K
; ESCALATOR S2/ . ey,
e SO o e G
1 ] 7 ’
[ AR S AR Y — iy — ELEATOR §52
B o e
b 1
- ]
MARKET STREET :
1
1
T _ A
_______________ S |
SECOND ST m R
_-___'L_--*.._’ ____________ E L
ssar Chase Bank o seion ) To mcoRe cesveR
| 5 '
PARTIAL STREET LEVEL PLAN
(1) D)

TYTN

'TT? (D) ff ? @f) ﬁ/\ ESCALATOR S1-
\IV ' /

//

W/

ESCALATOR S3 /;
| o L -»./%
A SANSOME/SUTTER / MARKET i

ELEVATOR $52
TO STREET

Ak
. | 's | | | |
104 G 3 CSCALATOR 55
1918 N pgoon L | | !
101C N 5 Saboisis o usisise s s sisis M‘lulw:l"fhh‘lr/hﬂtu
-

e

S =T
/ - WOMEN
108 Y\— 1 NN ESCALATOR #4
— 103 c \\ STATION AGENT—BAKT
104 N
ESCALATOR SHB VENDOR VAULTS
- STATION AGENT—MUNI
- Base CONCOURSE LEVEL PLAN

Options

N ELEVATOR #53
w2 TO lutrrmu

thTm AGENT —BART

08 N STATION AGENT-MUM
ESCALATOR 54

ON





Embarcadero — Phase 1

P STRELT \\.\‘ ’,'/ ‘fh / i oo T / DRUMM STRIET /"’ H
N N /" Wells Fargo yatt

» e 4 STREET ENTRANCE €
oR §1

Sushiritto A \'\\ { s ourace © / :{/ v / f i

MARKET STRELT VARKET STREET
B e = ™ i - - - e ~ S N i
sTRCTT ENTRANGE 8 i R PG&E R | i e R 7Z __________________ STREET INTRANCT T
| BOALE STRECT FSCALATOR 54 / FSCAATDR 52

ON " Federal Reserve

®

- VENDOR WALLTS VENDOR
ESCALATOR P2 VALLTS
STATION AGENT -wust ESCAATOR 52

VENDOR VALLTS SN e s
FLOWER VENDER ' ESCALAIOR M1
CONCESSION — 1048 1040 ESCALATOR M2
ESCALATOR wa—" ESCALATOR $4

N
_CONCOURSE LEVEL PLAN O

Options






SF Market Street Canopy Modernization — tn
Phase 1

January 12, 2017






SF Market Street Canopy Modernization —
Phase 1 Process

» Design competition ~ VIA Architecture selected

» Internal stakeholders = Maintenance + Engineering,
Transportation, Security, District Architect, Stations

» City stakeholders = Public Works, SFMTA, Planning, Mayor’s
Office, SFPD + SFFD

* Monthly coordination meetings with internal + City Stakeholders
* Public outreach in December 2014 and April 2015





SF Market Street Canopy Modernization -
Phase 1 Design Requirements

Safety + Security (lighting,
locks at top)

Transparency/Visibility
Vandalism

Maintenance + Operations
Weather + Splash
Structural

Repairability

Modularity

Climb ability

Ventilation

Pigeon Control

Finish Quality

Cost Value

Lifespan

Better Market Street
Impacts to Businesses
Art Opportunities
Performance





SF Market Street Canopy Modernization —
Phase 1 Concept






SF Market
Street Canopy
Modernization






Hayward Maintenance Complex (HMC)
&
Hayward Shop Modifications

HMC Presentation
January 12, 2017






Hayward Maintenance Complex (HMC)

Hayward Main Shop - In Construction
Retrofit — Install 7 new lifts

Component Repair Shop — In Construction

New Construction - Demo Old Bldg.

Civil, Site, and Trackwork — In Construction

New Construction

Vehicle Overhaul and Heavy Repair Shop

(VOHRS) - In Design
New Construction - Demo Old Bldg.

Central Warehouse — In Design
New Construction - Demo Old Bldg.

M&E Shop and Yard — In Design
New Construction — Demo Old Bldg.

December 1, 2016






Status of Funded Construction Contracts

 Contract 01RQ-130 Sandoval Way Access Road
» Complete

 Contract 01-RQ-140 Demolition of Building 4
» Complete

» Contract 01RQ-120 Site, Track and Systems

> In progress; expected completion 3/17
 Contract 01RQ-110 Component Repair Shop
> In progress; expected completion 10/17
» Contract 01RQ-110 Main Shop Modification

» In progress; expected completion 4/18






Component Repair Shop Construction






M & E Yard Construction






Status of Contracts Under Design

* New Building, Central Warehouse
» In progress; expected completion 1/17
 Maintenance & Engineering Shop
» In progress; expected completion 8/17
* Vehicle Overhaul and Heavy Repair Shop (VOHRYS)
» Expected completion 10/17
» Secondary Power System for HMC Compound
» In progress; expected completion 4/17
* New Yard Turntable
» Design complete; advertise winter/spring 2017

 Miscellaneous others






HMC Phase 1 Master Schedule

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Contract
04SF-150 - Rail Procurement Contract
01RQ-110 - Component Repair Shop & Main Shop*
Engineering
IContracting
IConstruction
Milestone 1: Completion of Hayward Main Repair Bay
Milestone 2: Completion of Component Repair Shop
Milestone 3: Substantial Completion
01RQ-120 - Site, Track, and Systems*
[Contracting
IConstruction
Milestone 1: Completion of Fencing
Milestone 2: Completion of Soundwalls
Milestone 3: Completion of All Utilities
Milestone 4: Completion of All Work l
01RQ-130 - Access Road
IContracting
Construction
01RQ-140 - Demolition of Building 4
[Contracting
IConstruction
01RQ-150 - Central Warehouse
Engineering
Contracting
IConstruction
01RQ-160 M&E Shop
Engineering |
[Contracting
[Construction (Structure)
IConstruction (Interior)
01RQ-170 Vehicle Overhaul Shop
Engineering TITIITIT7T,
[Contracting
Construction
01RQ-180 - Alternative Power Feed
Engineering [
Contracting
Construction
IConcord Wheel Truing Facility
Engineering
[Contracting
Construction
Richmond - Daly City Vehicle Lifts Project
Engineering
Contracting
Construction
01RQ-190 Turntable
[Engineering
[Contracting
Construction
Perimeter Landscaping & Security Fencing
Engineering
IContracting
IConstruction
Soundwall
Engineering |
[Contracting
Construction

2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

BEART






Forecast Summary ($ in thousands)

(status as of 9/30/2016)

$91,214
- 01RQ-120 Site, Trackwork and Systems 20,700
788
2,355
110,590
17,442
52,148
- Other Construction 0
- Owner Controlled Insurance Program 10,000
Subtotal Construction $305,237
Procurement — Trackwork, etc. 3,524
Other Costs (BART, Engineering, Const. Mgmt) 66,872
Subtotal Improvements $375,633
Right of Way Costs $57,300
Reserve
TOTAL PROGRAM COST $432,933

$27,263
12,072
309

767

Description Baseline | Expended Forecast at
Budget ITD Completion

$103,815
20,647
309

767
136,000
42,000
88,000
8,000
10,000
$409,538

4,500
66,000
$70,500
58,702

$538,740






Cost Increases

» Baseline Estimate established 2014, based on 2012 data.

* New regulations have added to scope. Example: MS4 requires treatment of all
stormwater runoff (including roof runoff).

* Increases in user scope have occurred. Example: Requirements for paint booth,
glass shop and seat shop in VOHRS.

» Design development led to changes. Example: Seismic retrofit of existing buildings
(as contemplated in 2012) found to be very expensive. New construction allows
better seismic performance and tailoring of structure to user needs.

* Normal design development, construction bidding climate have added costs.







m Metro Center Leases

January 12, 2017






Metro Center Location

W=

ST

Madison
Square

Park

—

8TH ST

JACKSON ST

::% =|

" I

1

- Plaza

N

“{ ake Merritt Sl °

L -:i}}fff:

G—
ey

MADISON ST

\j

MetroCenter Building

\_/

Approx. 1.38-acre parcel

OAK ST

| &=

U]

=

F

Lake Merritt
Station Parking

47

I_J_E—I Z
O & 11| ©
Ea LD E
seam N p =il
)

—

abajon Asueq

TM [

=l





Metro Center History

e Currently, BART owns approximately one third of the
condominium interests in the Metro Center

* In negotiations to purchase the remaining two thirds of the
condominium interests in the building from MTC and ABAG,
who have moved to a new headquarters in San Francisco

e Anticipated close of escrow first quarter 2017

* The third floor, portions of the first and second floors, and the
ground floor will eventually become the headquarters for
BART Police

 Remaining portion of the second floor will become
opportunity for other BART staff to relocate

* Interim/short term use for BART Police

e Long term site for high-density development





%e] Metro Center Leases

e TOD Policy — Support Transit-Oriented Districts
e B2 - “Form partnerships with public agencies, developers and
landowners, community development organizations ..., and consider
strategic land acquisition to help build TOD both on and off BART
property”
 BART entered into lease negotiations with Asian Health
Services (AHS) and East Bay Asian Local Development
Corporation (EBALDC) for portions of the space on the first
floor of the Metro Center
e Lease revenue will offset approximately 33% of annual
operating and maintenance costs of the building
e Auditorium and large conference room on the first floor will
remain common areas; BART will maintain the calendar for the

use of these spaces





Metro Center
ba

Proposed Tenant Space

Joseph P. Bort MetroCenter — First Floor

| ]
| ws || e N
o
18

Patio

Police
Space -
c:%?

— Tenant Spoca

%= 14,908

S E [k =

Locations of Fire Exits, Alarms
and Fire Extinguishers
Fire Alarm Panel is on Ground Floor Room 37

LT T T CEE T TTAT I AL

CEEEEEEEREEEE]S] ] -

FIRE EXTINGUISHER @

w FREAARMLEVER  [Auana]

i S - |
A0 FIRST AID 0

F,l ‘ EMERGENCYSUPPLES






Metro Center

e Space plans for all floors for BART Police and
other staff being finalized now

* Anticipated move-in for Police is Spring 2017
on third floor

e Anticipated tenant move-in will occur in
approximately the same time frame





Metro Center

e Lease to be initial 5-year term with two 1-year
options to renew

* Provides flexibility to move forward when
market and demand warrants

e Future TOD opportunity for the Lake
Merritt/Metro Center site





Conclusion

e Two separate leases for approximately 17,244 s.f.
administration use; approximately 3,119 s.f. café/restaurant
use

e Each for 5-year initial lease term

e First full fiscal year (FY18) lease revenue of approximately
$665,500

e 5-year lease term revenue of approximately $3,643,400

o Offsets approximately 33% of annual O&M costs of building





o] Motions

e The General Manager or her designee is authorized to
complete negotiations and execute the following lease
agreements relating to space on the first floor of the Joseph P.
Bort Metro Center Building, 101 8t" Street, Oakland California
and take any other actions necessary in connection with the
execution of said lease agreements:

e 1) Lease Agreement with Asian Health Services for the
Suite 100 space of approximately 14,908 s.f. and the
Library space of approximately 2,336 s.f., and

e 2)Lease Agreement with East Bay Asian Local
Development Corporation for the cafeteria space of
approximately 3,119 s.f.






Attachment A

Year after year, in good economic times and bad,
Bay Area residents rank transportation as one of
their highest priorities. Voters have proved this
time and again at the ballot box, including through
the passage of Regional Measure 1 in 1988 and
Regional Measure 2 in 2004, These measures
raised tolls on the Bay Area’s seven state-owned
toll bridges — and delivered dozens of the most
important transportation investments of the past

generation.

With these projects now completed or under

construction, it’s time for voters to consider a third

regional measure for the Bay Area’s next generation

of improvements.

New Carquinez Bridge

Thousands of people turned
out in late 2003 to celebrate
the opening of the Al Zampa
Bridge linking Solano and
Contra Costa counties.

Third Street Light Rail

San Francisco’s T-Third light-
rail project provided faster
and more reliable connec-
tions between downtown
and the city’s southeastern
neighborhoods.

Voter Approved Toll Bridge Measures
Deliver Big Returns

Long backups on northbound
Interstate 680 in Contra
Costa County vanished after
the 2007 opening of the new
Benicia-Martinez Bridge.

@ Regional Measure 1
(apital Project

@ Regional Measure 2~ | ...
(apital Project

@ Regional Measure 2
Operational Project

RM1 & RM 2 projects.ai | 2.3.15

Cordelia Truck Scales

The 2014 relocation of the
Cordelia Truck Scales is a
key piece in the $100 million
package of Regional Measure
2 projects to speed up traffic
through Solano County.

WELCOME TO THE 4th BORE

Caldecott Fourth Bore

Regional Measure 2
delivered $45 million for
the long-needed Caldecott
Tunnel Fourth Bore project.

San Mateo Bridge
Widening

The late Congressman Tom
Lantos was on hand in
2003 to cut the ribbon for
the newly widened San Ma-
teo-Hayward Bridge.

BART-0AK Connector

The 2014 completion of the
BART connection to Oakland
International Airport was
made possible by more than
$140 million of Regional
Measure 2 funding.

BART Warm Springs
Extension

BART’s Warm Springs
extension project, the first
part of the ongoing extension
to San Jose, will be com-
pleted in the fall of 2015.

1-880/SR 92

! Interchange

State Route 92 fell from the
list of most congested Bay
Area freeways following
completion of a Regional
Measure 1 project to replace
its interchange with

B4 Interstate 880.

Amount
REGIONAL MEASURE 1 ($ millions)
New Benicia-Martinez Bridge $1,200
Carquinez Bridge Replacement $518
Richmond-San Rafael Bridge Rehabilitation $117
San Mateo-Hayward Bridge Widening $210
I-880/SR 92 Interchange Replacement $235
Bayfront Expressway Widening $36
Richmond Parkway $6
US 101/University Avenue Interchange Improvements $4

Amount
REGIONAL MEASURE 2 ($ millions)
Transbay Transit Center’ $353
e-BART/Hwy 4 Widening? $269
BART to Warm Springs'? $304
BART Oakland Airport Connector’ $146
Solano Co. I-80 HOV Lanes & Cordelia Truck Scales' $123
SMART Rail $82
AC Transit Bus Rapid Transit? $78
Transit Center Upgrades and New Buses (Regionwide)  $65
I-580 HOV Lanes $53
Ferry Vessels? $46
Caldecott Tunnel Fourth Bore $45
Transit Technology (Clipper®, 511%, Signals) $42
Contra Costa I-80 HOV Lanes $37
BART Tube Seismic Retrofit? $34
San Francisco Third Street Light Rail $30
BART Central Contra Costa Crossover $25
Safe Routes to Transit Projects $23
Other Regional Projects $356
Transit Operations Support (Annual) $M

|

' Amount shown includes other toll revenue in addition to RM2
2 Under construction

REGIONAL MEASURE 3 — KEY POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION WORKSHOP





Attachment B

@' METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

. Regional Measure 3 —
Draft Principles for . . .
Regional Measure 3 Key Policy Considerations

Bridge Nexus
Ensure all projects benefit toll payers
in the vicinity of the San Francisco
Bay Area’s seven state-owned toll
bridges

Regional Prosperity
Invest in projects that will sustain the
region’s strong economy by enhanc-
ing travel options and improving
mobility in bridge corridors

When should the vote take place?
We recommend either the primary or general election

in 2018. This will require the Legislature to pass the en-
abling legislation no later than the end of August 2017.

How large of a toll hike should we seek?

A comparison of the revenue yield from a $1-$3 toll
surcharge as well as a comparison of toll rates on other
bridges are shown in the tables below. A multi-dollar toll

Sustainability
Ensure all projects are consistent
with Plan Bay Area 2040’s focused
growth and greenhouse gas reduction

surcharge could be phased in over a period of years.

strategy
: Toll Capital Funding
ST o.f Goqd ol Surcharge Annual Available
Invest in projects that help restore Amount Revenue (25-year bond)
bridges and transportation $1 $127 million | $1.7 billion
infrastructure in the bridge corridors
Demand Management $2 $254 million | $3.3 billion
Utilize technology and pricing to $3 $381 million | $5.0 billion
Freight Toll Rate Comparisons
Improve the mobility, safety and » Standard Carpool
environmental impact of freight el SRIONOS UL
Resiliency BATA Bridges $5.00 $2.50
Invest in resilient bridges and Golden Gate Bridge $7.50/$6.50 $4.50
approaches, including addressing Plate/FasTrak
= [l e MTA Verraz.ano $11.08'/$16.00 $3.08'2
Narrows Bridge EZ-Pass/Cash
Port Authority of New | 1 /12 50/$15.00
York/New Jersey $6.50
. Off-Peak/Peak/Cash
(Bridges and Tunnels)

|
"Results from EZ-Pass discount rate
2 Average rate, based on 24 trips

Continued on back page





Attachment B

@' METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Which counties should vote on the toll
increase?
Regional Measure 1 (1988) and Regional Measure 2

(2004) were placed on the ballot in only seven of the
nine Bay Area counties; Napa and Sonoma were ex-
cluded. We propose that all nine counties be included
in Regional Measure 3.

Should toll revenue be used for operating
purposes?

If a portion of toll revenue is reserved for operating
funding (such as to subsidize transit service), the
capital funding shown in the table on the prior page
would be reduced. For example, for every 10% of total
revenue reserved for operating purposes under a $2
toll scenario, the capital yield from toll revenue bonds
would be reduced by approximately $300 million. Ac-
cordingly, we recommend restricting operating funding
to the smallest possible amount. If an operating pro-
gram is created, we recommend establishing perfor-
mance standards similar to those in Regional Measure
2 as a condition of funding eligibility.

Should congestion pricing be expanded?
The $6 peak/$4 off-peak weekday toll on the San
Francisco-Bay Bridge has successfully reduced
congestion on that span by encouraging some
commuters to change their time or mode of travel.
The $6/$4 differential toll also raises about the same
amount of revenue as would a flat $5 toll on that span.
To further reduce congestion, we suggest consider-
ation of a greater discount between the peak and off-
peak rate for the Bay Bridge in Regional Measure 3.

Should a FasTrak® discount be authorized?
The Golden Gate Bridge district offers FasTrak
Discounts to incentivize more drivers to sign up for
FasTrak, since electronic toll collection significantly
speeds up traffic throughput on the bridge. RM 3 is

an opportunity to remove a statutory restriction that
currently prohibits BATA from offering similar FasTrak
discounts. We recommend pursuing this change to
help reduce delays and associated emissions.

Should trucks pay an additional toll?

The last toll hike approved by the Bay Area Toll
Authority (BATA) in 2010 included a substantial
increase in the axle-based rate paid by commercial
vehicles and trucks. As a result, we recommend that
Regional Measure 3 be a flat surcharge added to all
vehicles crossing the seven state-owned bridges.

What kind of projects should be
considered for funding?

Since bridge tolls are fees and not taxes, the use

of toll revenue should benefit the payers of the fee. In
other words, the projects funded by Regional Mea-
sure 3 should provide safety, mobility, access, or other
related benefits in the toll bridge corridors. Regional
Measure 1 funded primarily a small set of bridge re-
placement and expansion projects. By contrast, Re-
gional Measure 2 funded a much larger set of both
bridge, highway, and transit projects in the bridge
corridors. Given the region’s significant needs on all
modes, we expect that Regional Measure 3 will re-
semble its immediate predecessor in the breadth and
modal mix of projects.

("0akland Army B

~j| Naval Supply Ce
SECOND EXIT

REGIONAL MEASURE 3 — KEY POLICY CONSIDERATIONS





Attachment C

Share of Bridge Toll Revenue by Bridge

2%

= SF - Oakland Bay Bridge, 32%
® Benicia-Martinez, 16%
|
= Carquinez, 17%
= Dumbarton, 8%
m Richmond-San Rafael, 11%

= San Mateo - Hayward, 14%

m Antioch, 2%

Source: FY16 Toll Revenues Collected by Bridge, MTC Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, June 30, 2016

Share of Toll Revenue by County of Residence

County

m Alameda, 31%

m Contra Costa, 18%
= Marin, 4%

= Napa, 2%

m San Francisco, 10%

= San Mateo, 8%

m Santa Clara, 2%

m Solano, 14%

= Sonoma, 2%
m Qut of Region, 9%

2%

Source: 2015 MTC FasTrak Data - Average Typical Weekday Transactions by County of Billing Address





Attachment C

Share of Voters by County

County
= Alameda, 22%
6% 0
m Contra Costa, 15%
= Marin, 4%
Napa, 2%
m San Francisco, 12%
= San Mateo, 10%
4%

m Santa Clara, 22%

Source: 2016 California Secretary of State Report of Registration (registered voters by county as of 10/24/2016)

® Solano, 6%

m Sonoma, 7%

2%









